
 

Meeting Notice 

 
Commission Chair 
Supervisor Scott Haggerty, District 1 
 
Commission Vice Chair 
Vice Mayor Rebecca Kaplan, 
City of Oakland 
 
AC Transit 
Director Elsa Ortiz 
 
Alameda County 
Supervisor Richard Valle, District 2 
Supervisor Wilma Chan, District 3 
Supervisor Nate Miley, District 4 
Supervisor Keith Carson, District 5 
 
BART 
Director Thomas Blalock 
 
City of Alameda 
Mayor Trish Spencer 
 
City of Albany 
Vice Mayor Peter Maass 
 
City of Berkeley 
Councilmember Laurie Capitelli 
 
City of Dublin 
Mayor David Haubert 
 
City of Emeryville 
Mayor Ruth Atkin 
 
City of Fremont 
Mayor Bill Harrison 
 
City of Hayward 
Mayor Barbara Halliday 
 
City of Livermore 
Mayor John Marchand 
 
City of Newark 
Councilmember Luis Freitas 
 
City of Oakland 
Councilmember Dan Kalb 
 
City of Piedmont 
Mayor Margaret Fujioka 
 
City of Pleasanton 
Mayor Jerry Thorne  
 
City of San Leandro 
Mayor Pauline Cutter  
 
City of Union City 
Mayor Carol Dutra-Vernaci 
 
 
Executive Director 
Arthur L. Dao 

Alameda County  
Transportation Commission 
Thursday, May 28, 2015, 2:00 p.m. 
1111 Broadway, Suite 800 
Oakland, CA 94607 

Mission Statement 
The mission of the Alameda County Transportation Commission  
(Alameda CTC) is to plan, fund, and deliver transportation programs and 
projects that expand access and improve mobility to foster a vibrant and 
livable Alameda County. 

Public Comments 
Public comments are limited to 3 minutes. Items not on the agenda are 
covered during the Public Comment section of the meeting, and items 
specific to an agenda item are covered during that agenda item discussion.  
If you wish to make a comment, fill out a speaker card, hand it to the clerk of 
the Commission, and wait until the chair calls your name. When you are 
summoned, come to the microphone and give your name and comment. 

Recording of Public Meetings 
The executive director or designee may designate one or more locations from 
which members of the public may broadcast, photograph, video record, or 
tape record open and public meetings without causing a distraction. If the 
Commission or any committee reasonably finds that noise, illumination, or 
obstruction of view related to these activities would persistently disrupt the 
proceedings, these activities must be discontinued or restricted as determined 
by the Commission or such committee (CA Government Code Sections 
54953.5-54953.6). 

Reminder 
Please turn off your cell phones during the meeting. Please do not wear 
scented products so individuals with environmental sensitivities may attend  
the meeting. 

Glossary of Acronyms 

A glossary that includes frequently used acronyms is available on the  
Alameda CTC website at www.AlamedaCTC.org/app_pages/view/8081. 

http://www.alamedactc.org/app_pages/view/8081


 

 

Location Map 

Alameda CTC 
1111 Broadway, Suite 800 
Oakland, CA  94607 

Alameda CTC is accessible by multiple 
transportation modes. The office is 
conveniently located near the 12th Street/City 
Center BART station and many AC Transit bus 
lines. Bicycle parking is available on the street 
and in the BART station as well as in electronic 
lockers at 14th Street and Broadway near 
Frank Ogawa Plaza (requires purchase of key 
card from bikelink.org). 

Garage parking is located beneath City Center, accessible via entrances on 14th Street between  
1300 Clay Street and 505 14th Street buildings, or via 11th Street just past Clay Street.  
To plan your trip to Alameda CTC visit www.511.org. 

 
Accessibility 

Public meetings at Alameda CTC are wheelchair accessible under the Americans with Disabilities 
Act. Guide and assistance dogs are welcome. Call 510-893-3347 (Voice) or 510-834-6754 (TTD)  
five days in advance to request a sign-language interpreter. 

     
 
Meeting Schedule 

The Alameda CTC meeting calendar lists all public meetings and is available at 
www.AlamedaCTC.org/events/upcoming/now. 
 
Paperless Policy 

On March 28, 2013, the Alameda CTC Commission approved the implementation of paperless 
meeting packet distribution. Hard copies are available by request only. Agendas and all 
accompanying staff reports are available electronically on the Alameda CTC website at 
www.AlamedaCTC.org/events/month/now. 
 
Connect with Alameda CTC 

www.AlamedaCTC.org facebook.com/AlamedaCTC 
 @AlamedaCTC 
 youtube.com/user/AlamedaCTC 

http://www.511.org/
http://www.alamedactc.org/events/upcoming/now
http://www.alamedactc.org/events/month/now
http://www.alamedactc.org/
http://www.facebook.com/AlamedaCTC
https://twitter.com/AlamedaCTC
http://www.youtube.com/user/AlamedaCTC


 
 
 

 *(A = Action Item; I = Information Item) 

 

Commission Meeting Agenda 

 Thursday, May 28, 2015, 2 p.m. 

 

 
Chair: Supervisor Scott Haggerty,  

Alameda County, District 1 

Vice Chair: Councilmember Rebecca Kaplan,  

City of Oakland 

Executive Director: Arthur L. Dao 

Clerk: Vanessa Lee 

1. Pledge of Allegiance 

2. Roll Call 

3. Public Comment 

4. Chair and Vice Chair Report    

5. Executive Director Report   

6. Approval of Consent Calendar 

On May 11, 2015 Alameda CTC standing committees approved all action 

items on the consent calendar, except Item 6.1. 

Page  A/I* 

6.1. Approval of April 23, 2015 meeting minutes 1 A 

Recommendation: Approve the April 23, 2015 meeting minutes   

6.2. I-580 Corridor High Occupancy Vehicle/Express Lane Projects (PN 

720.4/720.5/724.1/724.4/724.5): Monthly Progress Report 

7 I 

6.3. I-580 Express Lanes: Status Update on Cooperative Agreement with Bay 

Area Toll Authority for Customer Services 

29 I 

6.4. I-580 Express Lanes: Update on Hours of Operation 35 I 

6.5. Congestion Management Program (CMP): Summary of Alameda CTC’s 

Review and Comments on Environmental Documents and General Plan 

Amendments 

39 I 

6.6. 2014 Performance Report Update 43 I 

6.7. Alameda CTC Administrative Code Amendments 53 A 

Recommendation: Adopt amendments to the Alameda CTC 

administrative code. 

  

6.8. 2016 State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP): Development 

Schedule and Principles 

73 A 

Recommendation: Approve the 2016 STIP Development Schedule and 

Principles. 

  

http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16333/6.1_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16334/6.2_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16334/6.2_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16335/6.3_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16335/6.3_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16336/6.4_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16337/6.5_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16337/6.5_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16337/6.5_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16338/6.6_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16339/6.7_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16340/6.8_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16340/6.8_Combo.pdf


 *(A = Action Item; I = Information Item) 

 

6.9. I-680 Southbound Express Lane Operations (PN 950.0): Terminate 

Professional Services Agreement No. A08-001 and Execute New 

Professional Services Agreement with Electronic Transaction Consultants 

Corporation 

83 A 

Recommendation: Approve and authorize the Executive Director to: 

1) Allocate $4,500,000 of 2000 Measure B funds to the project; 

2) Terminate Agreement No. A08-001 with Electronic Transaction 

Consultants Corporation on June 30, 2015; and 

3) Execute a new Agreement with Electronic Transaction Consultants 

Corporation for Operations and Maintenance, and   Capital 

Improvement services for a not-to-exceed amount of $3,100,000, 

subject to I-680 Sunol Smart Carpool Lane Joint Powers Authority 

approval of FY 2015-16 Operating Budget. 

  

6.10. Alameda CTC FY2014-15 Sales Tax Measure B and Measure BB Budget 

Update 

89 A 

Recommendation: Approve Alameda CTC FY2014-15 sales tax 

Measure B and Measure BB budget update. 

  

6.11. Resolution Authorizing the Executive Director to Examine Measure BB 

Transaction (Sales) and Use Tax Records 

93 A 

Recommendation: Adopt a resolution authorizing the Executive 

Director to Examine Measure BB Transaction (Sales) and Use Tax 

Records. 

  

6.12. Alameda CTC FY2014-15 Third Quarter Investment Report 97 A 

Recommendation: Approve the Alameda CTC FY2014-15 third 

quarter investment report. 

  

6.13. Alameda CTC FY2014-15 Third Quarter Financial Report 117 A 

Recommendation: Approve the Alameda CTC FY2014-15 third 

quarter financial report. 

  

7.Community Advisory Committee Reports  

   (Time limit: 3 minutes per speaker) 

  

7.1. Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee - Midori Tabata, Chair 133 I 

7.2. Citizens Watchdog Committee – James Paxson, Chair 135 I 

7.3. Paratransit Advisory and Planning Committee – Sylvia Stadmire, Chair 137 I 

8. Planning, Policy and Legislation Committee Action Items 

On May 11, 2015, the Planning, Policy and Legislation Committee approved 

the following action items, unless otherwise noted in the recommendations. 

  

8.1. Legislative Update 147 A/I 

Recommendation: Receive an update on state and federal legislative 

activities and approve legislative positions. 

  

http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16341/6.9_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16341/6.9_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16341/6.9_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16341/6.9_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16342/6.10_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16342/6.10_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16343/6.11_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16343/6.11_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16344/6.12_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16345/6.13_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16346/7.1_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16347/7.2_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16348/7.3_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16349/8.1_Combo.pdf


 *(A = Action Item; I = Information Item) 

 

8.2. State Route Relinquishment Proposal by Caltrans 163 I/A 

Recommendation: Receive information on the State Route 

Relinquishment Proposal by Caltrans and take a legislative position on 

SB 254. 

  

8.3. Update on Countywide Plan Development and Regional Transportation 

Plan (verbal) 

 I 

9. Finance and Administration Committee Action Items 

On May 11, 2015, the Finance and Administration Committee approved the 

following action items, unless otherwise noted in the recommendations. 

  

9.1. Alameda CTC  Investment Policy 195 A 

Recommendation: Approve the Alameda CTC Investment Policy.   

9.2. Alameda CTC Proposed Consolidated Budget for FY2015-16 211 A 

Recommendation: Approve the Alameda CTC proposed consolidated 

budget for FY15-16 

  

10.  Member Reports   

11. Adjournment   

Next meeting: June 25, 2015 

All items on the agenda are subject to action and/or change by the Commission. 

http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16350/8.2_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16351/9.1_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/16352/9.2_Combo.pdf


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 



 
 
 

 *(A = Action Item; I = Information Item) 
 

Alameda County Transportation Commission 
Meeting Minutes 
Thursday, April 23, 2015, 2:00 p.m. 6.1 

 

1. Pledge of Allegiance 

2. Roll Call 
A roll call was conducted. All members were present with the exception of Commissioner 
Commissioner Miley and Commissioner Harrison. 
 
Commissioner Bucci was present as an alternate for Commissioner Valle. 
Commissioner Campbell-Washington was present as an alternate for Commissioner Chan. 
 
Subsequent to the roll call: 
Commissioner Miley and Commissioner Harrison arrived prior to the vote on Item 6.8 of the 
Consent Calendar.   
 
Commissioner Carson left during Item 8.  
Commissioner Blalock left during item 9.  

3. Public Comment 
There were no public comments.  

4. Chair and Vice Chair Report  
There was no Chair and Vice-Chair report.   

5. Executive Director Report 
Art Dao stated that the Executive Directors report could be found in the 
Commissioners’folders as well as on the Alameda CTC website. Art stated that he met with 
CEO’s and elected officials at the National Transportation Infrastructure Day on April 9, 
2015. He also reminded the Commission that Bike to Walk and School Day was scheduled 
for May 15, 2015.  

6. Approval of Consent Calendar 

6.1. Approval of March 26, 2015 meeting minutes 
6.2. I-580 Eastbound and Westbound Express Lanes (724.4/724.5): Reimbursable Service 

Agreement with California Highway Patrol (CHP) 
6.3. I-580 Corridor High Occupancy Vehicle/Express Lane Projects (PN 

720.4/720.5/724.1/724.4/724.5): Monthly Progress Report 
6.4. Congestion Management Program (CMP): Summary of Alameda CTC’s Review and 

Comments on Environmental Documents and General Plan Amendments 

Page 1



 *(A = Action Item; I = Information Item) 
 

6.5. California Transportation Commission March 2015 Meeting Summary 
6.6. Measure BB Master Programs Funding Agreements with Direct Local Distribution Funds 

Recipients 
6.7. Measure BB Funding Agreements for Measure BB Allocations Approved in March 2015 
6.8. Measure BB Affordable Student Transit Pass Program  
6.9. Alameda CTC Transportation Fund for Clean Air (TFCA) FY 2015-16 Program Guidelines 
6.10. I-580 Corridor Projects: Cooperative Agreement Amendments with Caltrans for 

Additional Funding for Express Lane Implementation  
6.11. I-680 Northbound Express Lane Project (PN 721.0): 2000 Measure B Funding Allocation, 

Cooperative Agreement, Contract Amendment and two (2) Request for Proposal 
(RFP) Actions  

6.12. Webster Street SMART Corridor Project (PN 740.0): Construction Contract Acceptance 
(Alameda CTC Resolution 15-016) 

6.13. Administrative Amendments to Various Project Agreements 
6.14. Contract Amendments to Administrative Professional Services Contracts with Acumen 

Building Enterprise, Inc., GenSpring Family Offices, LLC, and Vavrinek, Trine, Day, & Co., 
LLP 

6.15. Amendment to the Alameda CTC Health Reimbursement Arrangement (HRA) Plan for 
Retirees 

6.16. Community Advisory Appointment 
 

Item 6.1 was pulled off the Consent calendar for further discussion. Commissioner 
Spencer requested to amend the minutes by stating that she “opposed the ACA 4 
bill”.  
 
Item 6.14 was pulled off the Consent Calendar for further discussion. Commissioner 
Fujioka requested clarification on the process for agenda items coming from 
Committee to the Commission. Art described the relationship between the Standing 
Committee meetings and the Commission meetings and described the approval 
and recommendation process for items coming from the Committees to the full 
Commission.  
 
Item 6.8 was pulled off the Consent Calendar for further discussion. Commissioner 
Carson stated that the program has brought about a lot of discussion and wanted to 
know the RFP process. Tess reviewed the RFP process and stated that the program 
was developed over the past year.  
 
Arun Goel then gave a presentation on the program that covered the programs 
purpose and term.  He also covered the consultant scope and tasks and gave 
information on the expedited timeline for the program, including the procurement 
process and anticipated consultant program.   
 

Page 2



 *(A = Action Item; I = Information Item) 
 

Commissioner Carson wanted to know the amount of funding that will be used for 
administering the program. Arun stated that the consultant will come on board to 
determine what type of pilot the program will use, which will in turn define the 
amount of administrative efforts that will be needed to run the program.   
 
Commissioner Kaplan asked if the selected consultant team will use data from the 
AC Transit bus pass program. Art stated that the data will be used as a reference.   
 
Commissioner Ortiz asked if AC Transit will be responsible for the program should 
funding from Alameda CTC be cut. Art stated that the roles of transit operators need 
to be defined and he stated that it is the Alameda CTC’s responsibility and intention 
to develop a sustainable pilot program. The full program will come before the 
Commission before implementation.  
 
Commissioner Miley questioned if the transit pass will be restricted only to students 
who are attending school-related activities or can it be used universally. Arun stated 
that the consultant will vet that issue and a policy will come to the Commission for 
approval.  
 
Commissioner Miley wanted to know how flexible the development of the program 
is. Arun stated that there is no prescriptive process at this moment and the intent of 
bringing the consultant on board is to develop the program.  
 
A letter was presented by ACCE and Genesis and there were six public comments 
on this item. Public comments were heard from: 
John Classen 
Nathaniel Arnold 
David Lyons 
Ellen Murray 
Marcia Lovelance 
Dennis Fagley 
 
Commissioner Kalb suggested that staff consider some of the priorities in the letter 
from ACCE and Genesis.  
 
Commissioner Halliday wanted to ensure that truancy was addressed when 
considering how flexible the pass will be.  
 
Commissioner Fujioka questioned how committee members will be selected and 
wanted to know how the work of the committees will be addressed by the full 
Commission. Arun stated that the process started in January and it was identified 
that three committees would be developed with membership being vetted through 
the stakeholders and consultant team. The committee would report to the full 
Commission.    

Page 3



 *(A = Action Item; I = Information Item) 
 

   
Commissioner Kaplan moved to approve the Consent Calendar. Commissioner 
Halliday seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.  
 

7.  Community Advisory Committee Reports 
7.1. Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee (BPAC) 

Midori Tabata, BPAC Chair, stated that the committee received training on complete 
streets and reviewed TDA Article 3 projects. She stated that the committee also 
reviewed a request from the city of Hayward for ADA accessible ramps and reviewed 
the Master Plan from the city of Piedmont. She concluded by reviewing vacancies 
and stating that the next meeting is scheduled for July 9, 2015. 
    

7.2. Citizens Watchdog Committee (CWC) 
There was no one present from the CWC.  
 

7.3. Paratransit Advisory and Planning Committee (PAPCO) 
Sylvia Stadmire, Chair of PAPCO, stated that the committee met on April 16, 2015 for 
the finance committee meeting. The committee reviewed the budget and will review 
planned services for next year. She stated that the next full PAPCO meeting will be 
held April 27, 2015, where the committee will review requests for Measure B gap 
funding and will receive an update from LAVTA and BART. She concluded by 
reviewing outreach efforts and current vacancies on the committee.  

8. I-580 Express Lane Policy Committee Action Items 

8.1.  I-580 Express Lanes: Outreach and Education Update  
Heather Barber presented the I-580 Express Lanes outreach and education update. 
She provided information on the express lane objectives and key messages for 
carpoolers. Heather covered the education and outreach that will be done 
throughout the county and coordination with partners agencies as well outreach 
events that will be attended to provided educaational information on the lanes. 
 
Commissioner Haggerty asked when the lane become the Bay Area Express Lane. Art 
stated that it is a partnership with MTC to do collaborative outreach together so that 
there is continuity between the lanes. 
 
Commissioner Haggerty questioned why there are street lights along the highway. Art 
stated that the stree lights there in compliance with a highway design requirement by 
Caltrans.   
 
This item was for information only.  

9. Planning, Policy and Legislation Committee Action Items 

Page 4



 *(A = Action Item; I = Information Item) 
 

9.1. Legislative Update 
Tess Lengyel provided an update on state and federal legislative activities and 
recommended that the Commission approve legislative positions. She recommended 
positions on the following bills: 
 
AB 194 (Frazier)- support position Kaplan/Dutra-Vernaci (Carson, Blalock absent) 
 SB 16 (Beall)- Support and seek amendments 
  
Commissioner Kaplan moved to approve the recommended position on AB 194. 
Commissioner Dutra-Vernanci seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously 
(Carson and Blalock absent) 
 
There was discussion regarding possible amendments for SB 16 to encourage the 
author to reward all self-help counties in the state. Tess stated that the bill came into 
print last week and will provide significant interim solutions for roadway issues 
throughout the county. Staff recommended a support and seek amendments position 
on this bill.  
 
Commissioner Kaplan motioned to change the position to “seek amendment” and 
bring the bill back to the Commission next month. Commissioner Capitelli seconded 
the motion. The motion passed unanimously (Carson and Blalock absent).    
 

10.  Programs and Projects Committee Action Items  

10.1. Report on Coordination with the City of Oakland on its Prior Request for $39.2 Million of 
Measure BB Funds 
Tess Lengyel informed the Commission that staff met with the City of Oakland and the 
Port of Oakland to discuss the project requests and based on the meetings, the City of 
Oakland’s request will be deferred until the submittal for all of the projects as part of 
the Countywide Transportation Plan update. 
 
This item was for information only.  
 

11. Member Reports  
There were no member reports.  

12. Adjournment 
The next meeing is: 

Date/Time:    May 28, 2015 @ 2:00 p.m. 
Location:       Alameda CTC Offices, 1111 Broadway, Suite 800, Oakland, CA 94607 

Attested by: 

____________________ 

Page 5



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 6



 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150528\Consent Items\6.2_580_MonthlyUpdate\6.2_I580_HOV_EL_Update.docx 

  

Memorandum  6.2 

 

DATE: May 21, 2015 

SUBJECT: I-580 Corridor High Occupancy Vehicle/Express Lane Projects (PN 
720.4/720.5/724.1/724.4/724.5): Monthly Progress Report 

RECOMMENDATION: Receive a monthly status update on the I-580 Corridor High 
Occupancy Vehicle/Express Lane Projects. 

 

Summary  

The Alameda CTC is sponsoring the I-580 Corridor High Occupancy Vehicle (HOV)/Express 
Lane Projects along the I-580 corridor in the Tri-Valley. The Eastbound I-580 Express Lane 
Project will convert the newly constructed eastbound HOV lane, from Hacienda Drive to 
Greenville Road, to a double express lane facility.  The I-580 Westbound Express Lane 
Project will convert the westbound HOV lane (currently under construction) to a single 
express lane facility from Greenville Road to San Ramon Road/Foothill Road.   

Construction of express lane civil infrastructure, for the combined eastbound and 
westbound express lanes, is being implemented through multiple contract change orders 
(CCO’s) on the on-going HOV Lane construction contracts for constructing the necessary 
infrastructure, such as signing, sign gantries for dynamic messaging and toll reading, 
electrical conduit for connecting power and communication sources, and striping to 
accommodate the express lanes.  The final component of express lane implementation, 
system Integrator contract will install the required communication equipment, toll 
hardware and integrate the toll subsystems, utilizing emerging technologies/software 
development.  Coordination with regional agencies and California Toll Operators 
Committee is crucial for implementing express lanes on I-580.  The express lane facility is 
scheduled to open for public use in November 2015.   

For detailed information on project funding, schedule and status of each corridor project, 
including the Eastbound HOV Lane Project - Segment 3 Auxiliary Lanes, the Westbound 
HOV Lane Project (Segments 1 and 2), the Eastbound I-580 Express Lane Project, 
Westbound I-580 Express Lane Project and Toll System Integration activities, see 
Attachments A, B, C, D and E of this report. This item is for information only. 

 

 

 

Page 7



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150528\Consent 
Items\6.2_580_MonthlyUpdate\6.2_I580_HOV_EL_Update.docx 
 

Background 

The projects in the I-580 Corridor will provide increased capacity, safety and efficiency for 
commuters and freight along the primary corridor connecting the Bay Area with the 
Central Valley.  In its role as project sponsor, the Alameda CTC has been working in 
partnership with Caltrans, California Highway Patrol, the Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission (MTC), Alameda County, and the cities of Livermore, Dublin, and Pleasanton 
to deliver the projects. 

The I-580 Corridor HOV Lane Projects will be completed with the construction of three final 
projects in the Livermore Valley (two westbound HOV segments and one eastbound 
auxiliary (AUX) lanes project).  All of these projects are currently in construction and are 
being administered by Caltrans. Construction activity began in March 2013 and will 
complete by late 2015 in parallel with completion of express lane infrastructure. 

For efficiency purposes, the I-580 Eastbound and Westbound Express Lane Projects have 
been combined into one construction project. All the contract change orders (CCO’s) for 
express lane-civil infrastructure construction have already been issued to the on-going 
construction contracts along I-580 (I-580 Westbound HOV, I-580 Eastbound Auxiliary Lane 
and Freeway Performance Project). The benefit of implementing CCO’s is to avoid 
working in the environmentally sensitive areas, minimize additional traffic disruptions to 
the traveling public, reduce or eliminate re-work and potentially finish construction 
sooner.  Specific items in CCO’s include: 

• Electrical Conduit – across and along I-580  

• Service and controller cabinets 

• Striping – stripe to final express lane configuration  

• Install K-rail along median at sign locations  

• Median concrete barrier 

• Fiber Optics Cable 

• Sign structures including tolling gantries, dynamic messaging signs, lighting 
standards and other sign structures. 

Development of system integration is nearing completion and toll system installation is 
about to begin..  To avoid schedule conflicts, the toll system installation activities have 
been coordinated with on-going HOV lane construction projects within the corridor.  
Installation activities of express lane-toll system will be completed and tested prior to 
opening the toll lanes to general public in November 2015. 

Fiscal Impact:  There is no significant fiscal impact to the Alameda CTC budget due to this 
item. This is information only.  

Page 8



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150528\Consent 
Items\6.2_580_MonthlyUpdate\6.2_I580_HOV_EL_Update.docx 
 

 

Attachments 

A.  I-580 Eastbound HOV Lane Project Monthly Progress Report (PN 720.5) 

B. I-580 Westbound HOV Lane Projects Monthly Progress Report (PN 724.4/724.5) 

C.  I-580 Eastbound Express Lane Project Monthly Progress Report (PN 720.4) 

D.  I-580 Westbound Express Lane Project Monthly Progress Report (PN 724.1) 

E.  I-580 Express Lanes System Integration Monthly Progress Report 

F.  I-580 Corridor HOV Lane Projects – Location Map 

G. I-580 Corridor Express Lane Projects – Location Map 

 

Staff Contact  

Stefan Garcia, Project Controls Team 

Kanda Raj, Project Controls Team 

  

Page 9

mailto:sgarcia@alamedactc.org
mailto:kraj@alamedactc.org


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 10



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20150511\4.1_580_MonthlyUpdate\4.1A_I580EBHOVLaneStatusUpdate.doc 

 

ATTACHMENT A 

I-580 Eastbound HOV Lane Project (PN 720.5) 

Monthly Progress Report 

April 2015 

 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

 

The Eastbound I-580 HOV Lane Project is completing one final construction segment, 

Segment 3 Auxiliary (AUX) Lanes, between Hacienda Drive and Greenville Road. The 

Project scope includes: 

 Construction of auxiliary lanes from Isabel Avenue to First Street; 

 Pavement width necessary for a double express (high occupancy toll lane 

facility); 

 Final lift of asphalt concrete (AC) pavement and striping for entire eastbound 

project limits from Hacienda Drive to Portola Avenue; 

 The soundwall that was deleted from the I-580/Isabel Avenue Interchange 

Project; and 

 The widening of two bridges at Arroyo Las Positas in the eastbound direction. 

 

CONSTRUCTION STATUS  

 

Traffic Handling & Night Work 

Construction activities include both day and night work. Significant work is involved in 

rehabilitating the existing pavement which requires closing traffic lanes; however, no 

complete freeway closures are anticipated. Due to heavy daytime traffic volumes, 

closing traffic lanes in the daytime is not feasible. For this reason, pavement 

rehabilitation work can only be done during nighttime hours. Night work will include 

setting lane closures and shifting traffic lanes (placement of safety barrier (k-rail) and 

striping work), existing pavement rehabilitation work (crack and seat, slab replacement 

and overlay) and electrical work.  Caltrans lane closure charts permit the contractor to 

perform this work at night between 9pm and 4am. Work behind k-rail and all bridge 

work is expected to occur during daytime hours. 

 

Construction Challenges 

Alameda CTC staff is working in close coordination with Caltrans to implement the 

project within limited funding.  Challenges and managed risks for this project include: 

 Bird Nesting on structures and in adjacent field areas 

 Installation of future express Lane components to facilitate express lane 

completion.  Project staff is working to combine HOV and express lane 

construction work in a manner that will keep the single HOV lane open until the 

double lane HOV/express lane facility is completed 

 

Completed Activities – 80% of the contract work was completed as of 03/20/15 

Construction activities began in April 2013.  Work completed to date includes: 

 Construction of auxiliary lanes from Isabel Ave. to First St. 

 Las Positas Creek (EB and WB) bridge widening 

 Widening of major box culvert at Arroyo Seco and modification of drainage 

facilities; Creek diversion is removed and area restored 

 Most retaining walls on the outside of the freeway corridor 

 

6.2A 

 

Page 11



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20150511\4.1_580_MonthlyUpdate\4.1A_I580EBHOVLaneStatusUpdate.doc 

 

 

Ongoing & Upcoming Activities 

Caltrans maintains a project website 

(http://www.dot.ca.gov/dist4/projects/i580wbhov/) and conducts public information 

and outreach efforts in cooperation with Alameda CTC. Ongoing and upcoming work 

activities include: 

 Construct remaining retaining wall #18 and sound wall east of Portola Ave. 

 Install Lighting and Traffic Operation Systems 

 Install infrastructure to support express lane operations 

 Pull fiber optic trunk line on south side of I-580 from Hacienda Dr. to Greenville Rd. 

 Rubberized hot mix asphalt and open graded asphalt concrete will be placed 

on main line I-580 between Hacienda Dr. and Greenville Rd. from June through 

September 2015 

 

FUNDING AND FINANCIAL STATUS 

 

The I-580 Eastbound HOV Project is funded through federal, state and local funds. 

 

Funding Plan – SEGMENT 3  

Project 

Phase 

Funding Source ($ million) 

CMIA RM2 TVTC FED SHOPP Meas. B Total 

PA&ED      0.02 0.02 

PS&E  1.72 1.30 0.23   3.25 

ROW  0.17 0.08    0.28 0.53 

Construct 

Cap 

17.87 2.20 0.14  4.69 6.57 31.47 

Construct 

Sup 

2.53 1.12 0.10   0.71 4.46 

Total 20.40 5.21 1.62 0.23 4.69 7.58 39.73 

Total Project Cost: $39.7M 

 

 

SCHEDULE STATUS  

 

The Eastbound AUX Lane project between Hacienda Drive and Greenville Road was 

advertised on July 9, 2012; bids were opened on October 5, 2012. Caltrans awarded 

the contract to OC Jones & Sons (with a bid 6.33 percent below the Engineer’s 

Estimate) on November 16, 2012. With the inclusion of infrastructure to support express 

lane operations, construction is now planned to complete in late 2015. 

 

Project Approval December 2011 (A) 

RTL May 2012 (A) 

CTC Vote May 2012 (A) 

Begin Construction 

(Award) 

November 2012 (A) 

End Construction October 2015 (T) 

 

Page 12

http://www.dot.ca.gov/dist4/projects/i580wbhov/


 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20150511\4.1_580_MonthlyUpdate\4.1B_I580WBHOVLaneProjectsStatusUpdate.doc 

 

ATTACHMENT B 

I-580 Westbound HOV Lane Projects (PN 724.4/724.5) 

Monthly Progress Report 

April 2015 
 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

 

The Westbound (WB) I-580 HOV Lane Project includes three segments: 

 SEGMENT 1 – WB HOV Eastern Segment from Greenville Road to Isabel Avenue 

 SEGMENT 2 – WB HOV Western Segment from Isabel Avenue to San Ramon Road 

 SEGMENT 3 – Bridge widening at Arroyo Las Positas Creek.  This work is included in the 

construction contract for the Eastbound (EB) HOV Lane Project (see Attachment A).   

 

CONSTRUCTION STATUS – SEGMENTS 1 & 2  

 

Traffic Handling & Night Work 

Construction activities include both day and night work. Significant work is involved in 

rehabilitating the existing pavement which requires closing traffic lanes; however, no 

complete freeway closures are anticipated. Due to heavy daytime traffic volumes, 

closing traffic lanes in the daytime is not feasible. For this reason, pavement 

rehabilitation work can only be done during nighttime hours. Night work will include 

setting lane closures and shifting traffic lanes (placement of safety barrier (k-rail) and 

striping work), existing pavement rehabilitation work (crack and seat, slab replacement 

and overlay) and electrical work.  Caltrans lane closure charts permit the contractor to 

perform this work at night between 9pm and 4am. Work behind k-rail and all bridge 

work is expected to occur during daytime hours. 

 

Construction Challenges 

Alameda CTC staff is working in close coordination with Caltrans to implement the 

project within limited funding.  Challenges and managed risks for the project include: 

 

SEGMENT 1 (Eastern Segment) 

 Installation of future express Lane components to facilitate express lane 

completion.  Project staff is working to combine HOV and express lane 

construction work in a manner that will allow the HOV/express lane facility to be 

opened concurrently 

 Additional widening of the North Livermore Avenue structure to accommodate 

express lane width requirements 

 New retaining wall to account for recent, accelerated erosion within the Arroyo 

Seco Creek adjacent to the widening necessary for westbound lanes 

 Coordination with concurrent Caltrans projects in the area to reduce cost 

 Bird Nesting on structures and in adjacent field areas 

 Revision of pavement slab replacements to prioritize in areas most in need 

 

SEGMENT 2 (Western Segment) 

 Installation of future express lane components to facilitate express lane 

completion.  Project staff is working to combine HOV and express lane 

construction work in a manner that will allow the HOV/express lane facility to be 

opened concurrently 

6.2B 

 

Page 13



 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20150511\4.1_580_MonthlyUpdate\4.1B_I580WBHOVLaneProjectsStatusUpdate.doc 

 

 Elimination of a retaining wall to reduce project cost 

 Changes to the pavement cross section to reduce project cost 

 Bird Nesting on structures and in adjacent field areas 

 Revision of pavement slab replacements to prioritize in areas most in need 

 

Completed Activities 

Construction activities began in March 2013.  Work completed to date includes: 

 

SEGMENT 1 (Eastern Segment) – 73% of the contract work was completed as of 03/20/15 

 North Livermore Avenue bridge widening 

 Bridge widening at Arroyo Las Positas (2 locations)  

 Arroyo Seco RCB culvert extension 

 Construct major drainage facilities (e.g. double box culvert) 

 Concrete pavement slab replacements  

 Excavate and construct retaining walls and soil nail walls 

 Median barrier reconfiguration 

 Soundwall construction at Vasco Road 

 Paving of ramp and gore areas 

 Installation of electroliers in the median 

 Installation of sign structure foundations in the median for express lane tolling 

system signage 

 

SEGMENT 2 (Western Segment – 79% of the contract work was completed as of 03/20/15 

 Median widening from Airway Boulevard to Hacienda Drive 

 Temporary striping, shift traffic lanes and placement of safety barrier (k-rail) to 

allow for Stage 2 outside widening 

 Median widening and barrier reconfiguration 

 Bridge widening at Dougherty Undercrossing near Dublin BART station  

 Bridge widening at Tassajara Creek  

 Precast slab pavement replacements 

 Retaining walls substantially completed 

 Outside widening from Airway Boulevard to Hacienda Drive 

 Installation of electroliers in the median 

 Installation of sign structure foundations in the median for express lane tolling 

system signage 

 

Ongoing & Upcoming Activities 

Caltrans maintains a project website 

(http://www.dot.ca.gov/dist4/projects/i580wbhov/) and conducts public information 

and outreach efforts in cooperation with Alameda CTC. Ongoing and upcoming work 

activities include: 

 

SEGMENT 1 (Eastern Segment) 

 Install drainage facilities in median 

 Install Lighting and Traffic Operation Systems 

 Install infrastructure to support express lane operations 

 Final pavement layers will be placed on main line I-580 between Greenville Road 

and Airway Boulevard from April through September 2015 

 

 

Page 14

http://www.dot.ca.gov/dist4/projects/i580wbhov/


 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20150511\4.1_580_MonthlyUpdate\4.1B_I580WBHOVLaneProjectsStatusUpdate.doc 

 

SEGMENT 2 (Western Segment) 

 Install drainage systems 

 Complete retaining walls 

 Install Lighting and Traffic Operation Systems 

 Install infrastructure to support express lane operations 

 Final paving and striping between Airway Boulevard and Hacienda Drive will 

begin in June 2015 

 

FUNDING AND FINANCIAL STATUS 

 

The I-580 Westbound HOV Lane Project is funded through federal, state and local funds 

available for the I-580 Corridor. The total project cost is $143.9M, comprised of 

programmed (committed) funding from federal, state and local sources.   

 

Funding Plan – SEGMENT 1 (Eastern Segment) 

 

Project 

Phase 

Funding Source ($  million) 

CMIA RM2 TCRP FED SHOPP Meas. B TVTC Total 

Scoping   0.53 0.04         0.57 

PA&ED   4.38           4.38 

PS&E   2.29 0.11 0.15   1.69 0.42 4.66 

ROW   1.16       0.04  1.20 

Utilities   0.32           0.32 

Const Cap 35.34   5.92 6.19 13.54 1.60   62.59 

Const. Sup 6.52   1.59     1.08   9.19 

Total 41.86 8.68 7.66 6.34 13.54 4.41 0.42 82.91 

Total Project Cost: $82.9M 

 

Funding Plan – SEGMENT 2 (Western Segment) 

 

Project 

Phase 

Funding Source ($  million) 

CMIA RM2 TCRP FED SHOPP Meas. B TVTC Total 

Scoping   0.36 0.02         0.38 

PA&ED   2.92           2.92 

PS&E   1.53 0.07 0.10   1.12 0.28 3.10 

ROW   0.77       0.03   0.80 

Utilities   0.21          0.21 

Const Cap 33.73   2.49   9.61 0.10 0.30 46.23 

Const. Sup 6.75         0.58   7.33 

Total 40.48 5.79 2.58 0.10 9.61 1.83 0.58 60.97 

Total Project Cost: $61.0M 

 

Page 15



 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20150511\4.1_580_MonthlyUpdate\4.1B_I580WBHOVLaneProjectsStatusUpdate.doc 

 

 

 

 

 

SCHEDULE STATUS 

 

SEGMENT 1 (Eastern Segment): 

The Westbound HOV Eastern Segment from Greenville Road to Isabel Avenue was 

advertised on July 16, 2012 and bids were opened on September 19, 2012. Caltrans 

awarded the contract to Ghilotti Construction Company, Inc. (with a bid 16.33 percent 

below Engineer’s Estimate) on November 20, 2012. With the inclusion of infrastructure to 

support express lane operations, construction is now planned to complete in early 2016. 

 

Project Approval January 2010 (A) 

RTL May 2012 (A) 

CTC Vote May 2012 (A) 

Begin Construction (Award) November 2012 (A) 

End Construction January 2016 (T) 

 

SEGMENT 2 (Western Segment): 

The Westbound HOV Western Segment from Isabel Avenue to San Ramon Road was 

advertised on June 25, 2012 and bids were opened on August 29, 2012. Caltrans 

awarded the contract to DeSilva Gates Construction (with a bid 23.32 percent below 

Engineer’s Estimate) on October 29, 2012.  With the inclusion of infrastructure to support 

express lane operations, construction is now planned to complete in mid 2015. 

 

Project Approval January 2010 (A) 

RTL April 2012 (A) 

CTC Vote April 2012 (A) 

Begin Construction (Award) October 2012 (A) 

End Construction July 2015 (T) 

 

Page 16



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20150511\4.1_580_MonthlyUpdate\4.1C_I580EBHOTLaneProjectsStatusUpdate.doc 

 

 

ATTACHMENT C 

I-580 Eastbound Express Lane Project 

Monthly Progress Report 

April 2015 
 

 

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

 

The I-580 Eastbound Express Lane Project will convert the newly constructed eastbound 

HOV lane, from Hacienda Drive in Dublin/Pleasanton to Greenville Road in Livermore, to 

a majority double express lane facility for the a distance of approximately 11 miles. 

 

PROJECT DELIVERY STATUS 

   

 Civil design is complete and combined with the westbound component as one 

contract package. The civil construction is being implemented through the 

Contract Change Orders (CCOs) process; under the three I-580 HOV lane projects 

currently in construction (I-580 Westbound HOV Lane - West Segment, I-580 

Westbound HOV Lane - East Segment and I-580 Eastbound HOV Lane - Segment 3 

with Auxiliary Lanes). All the CCOs have been issued and coordinated with Caltrans 

construction management staff and the contractors 

 Electronic toll system design is complete 

 Caltrans issued permit for the system integrator to begin installing toll system 

equipment 

 

RECENT ACTIVITIES 

 

 Construction activities are progressing, for detailed civil construction updates see 

Attachment A  

 Construction coordination meetings have been held to ease construction sequence 

between the civil and systems construction projects  

 Toll system updates are provided in Attachment E 

 

UPCOMING ACTIVITIES 

 

 Coordinate civil construction activities to begin toll system installation in April 2015, 

civil construction updates are provided in Attachment A  

 Toll system updates are provided in Attachment E 

 

POTENTIAL ISSUES/RISKS 

 

With the exception of final paving and striping, the civil construction activities are 

scheduled to be completed in spring 2015 to allow electronic toll system installation so 

that the express lane facility can be opened by November 2015. Construction schedule 

is very aggressive. Staff has been working closely with Caltrans and the toll system 

integrator, Electronic Transaction Consultant Corporation (ETCC) to monitor progress 

and take appropriate actions to maintain the schedule. 

 

6.2C 

 

Page 17



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20150511\4.1_580_MonthlyUpdate\4.1C_I580EBHOTLaneProjectsStatusUpdate.doc 

 

 

 

 

FUNDING AND FINANCIAL STATUS 

 

The total project cost of the combined express lane project is $55 million and is fully 

funded with a combination of federal, regional and local fund sources. 

 

 

SCHEDULE STATUS 

 

I-580 Eastbound Express Lane Project Schedule: 
 

Project Approval March 2014 (A) 

Civil Design Completion April 2014 (A) 

Begin Construction June 2014 (A) 

End Construction 

(Civil and System Integration) 

November 2015 (T) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 18



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20150511\4.1_580_MonthlyUpdate\4.1D_I580WBHOTLaneProjectsStatusUpdate.doc 

 

 

ATTACHMENT D 

I-580 Westbound Express Lane Project 

Monthly Progress Report 

April 2015 
 

 

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

 

The I-580 Westbound Lane Project will convert the planned westbound HOV lane 

(currently in construction), to a single express lane facility from Greenville Road in 

Livermore to San Ramon Road / Foothill Road in Dublin / Pleasanton, a distance of 

approximately 14 miles. 

 

PROJECT DELIVERY STATUS 

 

    

 Civil design is complete; it has been combined with the eastbound component as 

one contract package. The civil construction is being implemented through the 

Contract Change Order (CCO) process under the three I-580 HOV lane projects 

currently in construction (I-580 Westbound HOV Lane - West Segment, I-580 

Westbound HOV Lane - East Segment and I-580 Eastbound HOV Lane - Segment 3 

with Auxiliary Lanes). All the CCOs have been issued and coordinated with Caltrans 

construction management staff and the contractors 

 Electronic toll system design is complete 

 Caltrans issued permit for the system integrator to begin installing toll system 

equipment. 

 

RECENT ACTIVITIES 

 

 Construction activities are progressing, see Attachment B for civil construction 

updates 

 Construction coordination meetings have been held to ease construction sequence 

between the civil and toll systems construction projects  

 Toll system updates are included in Attachment E 

 

UPCOMING ACTIVITIES 

 

 Coordinate civil construction activities to begin system installation in April 2015, civil 

construction updates are provided in Attachment B 

 Toll system updates are included in Attachment E 

 

POTENTIAL ISSUES/RISKS 

 

With the exception of final paving and striping, civil construction activities are 

scheduled to complete in spring 2015 to allow electronic toll system installation so that 

express lane facility can be opened by November 2015. This schedule is very 

aggressive. Staff has been working closely with Caltrans and the toll system integrator, 

6.2D 

 

Page 19



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20150511\4.1_580_MonthlyUpdate\4.1D_I580WBHOTLaneProjectsStatusUpdate.doc 

 

Electronic Transaction Consultant Corporation (ETCC) to monitor progress and take 

appropriate actions to maintain the project schedule. 

 

 

FUNDING AND FINANCIAL STATUS 

 

The total project cost of the combined express lane project is $55 million and is fully 

funded with a combination of federal, regional and local fund sources. 

 

 

SCHEDULE STATUS 

 

I-580 Westbound Express Lane Project Schedule: 

 

Project Approval August  2013  (A) 

Civil Design Completion April 2014 (A) 

Begin Construction June 2014  (A) 

End Construction  

(Civil and System Integration) 

November 2015 (T) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 20



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20150511\4.1_580_MonthlyUpdate\4.1E_I580ExpressLaneSystemIntegrationUpdate.doc 

 

 

ATTACHMENT E 

I-580 Express Lanes System Integration 

Monthly Progress Report 

April 2015 
 

  
SYSTEM INTEGRATION SCOPE DESCRIPTION 

 

The I-580 Express Lane civil contract will construct the necessary civil infrastructure to 

implement the express lanes on I-580, these Items include signing, sign gantries for 

dynamic messaging and toll reading, electrical conduit for connecting power and 

communication sources and pavement striping.  The System Integration component of 

the project will include communication and tolling hardware design, software 

development, and factory testing of equipment/design, toll system 

equipment/hardware installation and toll system integration. It will also consist of field 

testing the toll equipment and all subsystems, including the interfaces to the Bay Area 

Toll Authority - Regional Customer Service Center and Caltrans, prior to implementing 

the new express lanes. 

 

Detailed Discussion 

 

Electronic Transaction Consultants Corporation (ETCC), the project toll system 

integrator, has been updating the electronic toll system design to support the “near 

continuous” access configuration in both directions of I-580.  System integration in the I-

580 corridor includes the most recent technologies for software, hardware and traffic 

detection to efficiently manage current and forecasted traffic congestion by optimizing 

the existing corridor capacity.  The system integrator, however, will continue to own the 

software while the implementing agency will pay for a license to allow for the use of the 

toll integrator’s software.   

 

As reported during I-580 Workshops which were held in 2013, the “near continuous” 

concept provides additional access opportunities while reducing the foot-print required 

for implementing a shared express/general purpose lane facility.  In addition, it looks 

and feels similar to a High Occupancy Vehicle (HOV) facility and, therefore, is 

expected to provide driver familiarity through the corridor. 

 

Throughout the facility, real-time traffic/travel conditions will be gathered through traffic 

monitoring stations/devices and demand-based toll rates will be calculated, utilizing a 

dynamic pricing model algorithm.  Calculated toll rates will be displayed on Dynamic 

Message Signs (DMSs) ahead of potential express lane entry locations in order to inform 

travelers.  The DMSs are expected to display two rates, the first rate is for travel within 

the current or immediately downstream zone and the second rate is for travel to a 

major destination within the corridor (determined as the end of the line in the I-580 

Corridor).  To support near continuous access configuration, the electronic toll system 

has been developed to implement zone tolling and automated toll violation 

enforcement (involving license plate image capture and review process).  Closely 

6.2E 

 

Page 21



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20150511\4.1_580_MonthlyUpdate\4.1E_I580ExpressLaneSystemIntegrationUpdate.doc 

 

spaced toll antennas and readers will be placed approximately at ¾-mile intervals to 

effectively read FasTrak® / FasTrak flex® transponders.  A transponder will be read once 

within a (tolling) zone by a toll reader and will be charged a fee for use of the lane.   To 

enact toll violation enforcement the Commission will have to adopt a “Toll Ordinance” 

under the purview of Vehicle Code Section 40250 which allows toll operators to enact 

such ordinances, including the penalties associated with violations.  Several 

administrative steps will have to be finalized prior to the Commission adopting a toll 

ordinance.  Staff has been discussing the details, timeline and process associated with 

development and adoption of a toll ordinance at the Commission meetings.  

Express lane implementation on I-580 will depend on services provided by others, 

primarily by the Bay Area Toll Authority (BATA).  Therefore, staff is closely working with 

BATA to finalize the switchable (aka FasTrak flex®) transponder rollout plan, a new I-580 

customer service agreement for BATA provided services such as toll collection, FasTrak 

account relations, toll violation/delinquent notices and penalty collection services, etc., 

and the interface requirements for interacting toll systems with BATA operated regional 

customer service center.  Project toll system development and implementation are 

contingent on finalizing the above. 

 

PROJECT STATUS 

  

Software and hardware design   

Development of toll system is nearing completion.  ETCC has been proceeding with 

software and hardware development, consistent with project concepts presented 

during the I-580 Workshops held in 2013.  Zone tolling and an automated toll violation 

system are part of the design development.  Toll stem will also include tools to support 

the California Highway Patrol’s efforts in curtailing vehicle occupancy violation. 

Sequencing of ETCC’s filed installation has been coordinated with the on-going 

Caltrans construction projects to determine feasible construction windows for the toll 

system installation.  
 

Agency staff, in cooperation with regional partners, has embarked on a comprehensive 

public education and outreach program to support the implementation of the express 

lanes.  Staff is working closely with the cities of Livermore, Pleasanton and Dublin staff to 

provide advance project information to the local communities.   

 

RECENT ACTIVITIES   

  
     To coordinate the sequence of construction activities, staff has been conducting 

monthly coordination meetings with ETCC and Caltrans construction 
     ETCC has already procured several back office equipment and performed factory 

acceptance test 
     Caltrans approved ETCC’s design and issued permit to install toll system.  ETCC is 

about to begin its toll system installation. 
     Continued to discuss interface requirements with BATA’s vendor Xerox for processing 

transponder-based and image-based toll trips.  An interface testing (successful 

testing of toll transaction/trip information transfers) is expected in August 2015. 

Page 22



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20150511\4.1_580_MonthlyUpdate\4.1E_I580ExpressLaneSystemIntegrationUpdate.doc 

 

     Continued to work with BATA on tasks necessary for distributing FasTrak flex toll 

transponders, reaching out to the patrons and completing a customer services 

agreement 

       Conducted outreach events in the cities of Pleasanton and Stockton 

 

 

UPCOMING ACTIVITIES 

 

 Continue outreach and education efforts to public/stakeholders focused on 

educating them about the benefits of express lanes, how to use the lanes, new 

technologies, including the required use of switchable transponders, and how the 

public can acquire a new transponder, etc.   

 In May 2015, staff expect to conduct additional outreach events in the cities of 

Dublin, Pleasanton, Livermore and Tracy. 

 Continue to work with the cities, Caltrans and contractors to install advance 

message signs within the corridor, to provide advance project information. 

 Continue to work with Xerox to finalize interfacing requirements with BATA Regional 

Customer Service Center 

 Continue to coordinate with BATA to complete a customer services agreement by 

May/June 2015 for collecting tolls and processing toll violation enforcement services 

 Continue to work with Caltrans to complete an Operations and Maintenance 

(O&M) Agreement by spring 2015 

 Continue to work with California Highway Patrol to approve a Service Agreement by 

spring 2015 

 Continue to install toll system equipment 

 Upon completing toll system installation, ETCC will perform site/field acceptance 

testing in early fall 2015 to validate its hardware and software design, prior to 

opening the new express lanes facility.  

 Toll system will be fully operational in November 2015. 
 

 

FUNDING AND FINANCIAL STATUS 

 

The total project cost of the combined Eastbound and Westbound I-580 Express lane 

project is $55 million, and is fully funded with a combination of federal, regional and 

local fund sources. 

 

Page 23



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 24



580

580

680

84

84

680

Portola Ave

Airway       

Las Posita
s Rd

S V
asco Rd

G
reenville Rd

N
 V

asco Rd

S Livermore Ave

Hopyard
   Rd

Haciend
a  

Santa    Rita      Rd
Tassajara    Rd

Fallon Rd

San Ram
on Rd

D
ougherty Rd

Foothill    

Pleasanton

Dublin

Dr

Fir
st 

St

Isabel     A
ve

NCa n yon 

N
 Liverm

ore A
ve

El  Charro 

Bl vd

Rd

Portola 

AveLivermore
Municipal Airport

Livermore

Altamont Pass R
d

Rd

 I-580 Corridor HOV Lane Projects - Location map 

 I-580 Eastbound HOV Lane (Complete) 
  

 I-580 Eastbound AUX Lane (PN 720.5) 
  

 I-580 Westbound HOV Lane (West - PN 724.4) 
  

 I-580 Westbound HOV Lane (East - PN 724.5) 

6.2F

Page 25

sgarcia
Sticky Note
Accepted set by sgarcia

sgarcia
Sticky Note
Accepted set by sgarcia



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 26



I-580 Policy Committee 

I-580 Express Lanes Project 
Location Map

6.2G

Page 27



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 28



 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150528\Consent 
Items\6.3_Customer_Service_Agreement\6.3_I580EL_UpdateOn-BATA-ACTC-
RCSCAgmt_20150423.doc 

 

 

Memorandum  6.3 

 
DATE: May 21, 2015 

SUBJECT: I-580 Express Lanes: Status Update on Cooperative Agreement with Bay 
Area Toll Authority for Customer Services 

RECOMMENDATION: Receive update on pending Cooperative Agreement with Bay Area 
Toll Authority for customer services necessary to support express lane 
implementation. 

 

Summary  

The I-580 Express Lanes project (“Project”) is part of an overall 550-mile Bay Area express lane 
network that will expand commuter choices and maximize efficiency of this highly 
congested I-580 corridor by employing emerging technologies, such as real-time congestion 
pricing and automated toll violation enforcement.  The Project will implement high 
occupancy vehicle (HOV)/express lanes from Hacienda Drive to Greenville Road in the 
eastbound direction and from Greenville Road to San Ramon Road/Foothill Road in the 
westbound direction, as shown in Attachment A - Project Location Map. 

Tolls for solo drivers will be collected through all electronic toll (AET) collection method by the 
use of FasTrak® transponders.  Bay Area Toll Authority (BATA) is the only agency in the Bay 
Area region that is set up to distribute FasTrak® toll tags, maintain accounts, collect tolls, 
process violation penalties, and provide related customer services for the regional patrons.  
Since spring 2014, staff has been developing a services agreement with and negotiating the 
scope and fee associated with the above referenced services with BATA and its vendor 
Xerox.  Staff will provide a status update of the agreement at the Committee meeting.   

This is an informational item.   

Background 

Over the last two decades, the I-580 corridor has consistently been rated as one of the 
most congested freeway segments within the San Francisco Bay Area region.  As the next 
step in strategic investments in this corridor, Alameda CTC is implementing express lanes 
in both the east- and west-bound directions.  The express lanes will include the 
implementation of an electronic toll system (ETS) that will provide a new choice to single 
occupancy vehicle (SOV) users, enabling them to make use of the unused capacity in 
the HOV lane for a fee, if they choose to use the lanes. 

Page 29



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150528\Consent Items\6.3_Customer_Service_Agreement\6.3_I580EL_UpdateOn-BATA-
ACTC-RCSCAgmt_20150423.doc 

 

By providing this new choice, express lanes are expected to provide the following 
benefits: 

• Optimize the existing corridor capacity and improve efficiency of the corridor 
• Provide travel reliability 
• Create a revenue source to pay for future corridor improvements, including 

o HOV gap closures 
o Transit and other highway improvements that directly help reduce 

corridor congestion 

Tolls will be collected through AET collection method by the use of FasTrak®/FasTrak flex® 
(the new switchable transponder, which will be available to the public beginning June 
2015).  Toll system will include a violation enforcement system (VES) to implement 
automated toll evasion violation enforcement which is expected to curtail toll evasions.  In 
order to enact toll evasion violation penalties, the Commission will have to adopt a toll 
enforcement ordinance.  Staff plan to present the toll ordinance at the June and July 2015 
Commission meetings for approval.  The toll enforcement ordinance must include many 
different elements, including, liabilities for failure to pay the required tolls; penalties and 
administrative processes associated with toll evasion violations; and situations when toll 
evasion notices or penalties will be dismissed or waived.  The administrative processes 
includes processing violation notices, responding to customer inquiries about the notices; 
providing impartial administrative hearing, and preparing toll operator packages for court 
proceedings, etc. 

Since BATA is already set up to provide similar services on seven Bay Area Toll Bridges and will 
be responsible for collection of tolls for the express lanes, staff consider BATA as the ideal 
agency to provide the above referenced administrative services.  In addition, Section 149.5 
of Streets and Highway Code stipulates that Alameda CTC enters into an agreement with 
BATA for toll collection and customer services.  Consequently, staff are in the process of 
negotiating a scope and fee proposal with BATA for its services to provide the administrative 
procedures associated with the toll evasion violation process, in addition to toll collection, 
account maintenance and general customer services associated with the FasTrak® 
accounts.  Staff have also requested that BATA provide a cost estimate to provide customer 
service support at selected public outreach events to register patrons for FasTrak® accounts. 

In summary, BATA is expected to provide the following administrative services: 

• Provide initial office set-up and staff training for toll collection/customer services 

• Issue toll tags and respond to customers regarding new toll accounts 

• Maintain new accounts/accounting 

• Provide customer service staff support at selected public outreach events to 
facilitate FasTrak® account registration 

Page 30



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150528\Consent Items\6.3_Customer_Service_Agreement\6.3_I580EL_UpdateOn-BATA-
ACTC-RCSCAgmt_20150423.doc 

 

• Collect tolls 

• Review image-based trips to find matching FasTrak® account 

• Process toll evasion violation notices 

o Mail 1st notice 

o Respond to customer inquiries about the notices 

o Issue 2nd notice (delinquent notice), when applicable 

o Provide impartial administrative review of notice 

o Place hold on DMV records (when applicable) 

o Prepare packages for court proceedings (when applicable) 

The scope and fee negotiation with BATA is currently underway.  Staff will provide a 
verbal status update of this agreement at the May 2015 meeting and plan to present the 
cooperative agreement with BATA for approval at the June 2015 Commission meeting. 

This is an informational item.   

Fiscal Impact: There is no fiscal impact. 

Attachments 

A.  Project Location Map 

 

Staff Contact  

Kanda Raj, Project Controls Team 

Page 31

mailto:kraj@alamedactc.org


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 32



I-580 Policy Committee 

I-580 Express Lanes Project 
Location Map

6.3A

Page 33



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 34



 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150528\Consent 
Items\6.4_HoursofOperation\6.4_I580EL_UpdateOn_HoursOfOperation_20150423.doc 

 

 

Memorandum  6.4 

 
DATE: May 21, 2015 

SUBJECT: I-580 Express Lanes: Update on Hours of Operation 

RECOMMENDATION: Receive an update on hours of operation necessary for the express 
lane implementation 

 

Summary  

The I-580 Express Lanes project (“Project”) is part of an overall 550-mile Bay Area express lane 
network that will expand commuter choices and maximize efficiency of this highly 
congested I-580 corridor by employing emerging technologies, such as real-time congestion 
pricing and automated toll violation enforcement.  The Project will implement high 
occupancy vehicle (HOV)/express lanes from Hacienda Drive to Greenville Road in the 
eastbound direction, and from Greenville Road to San Ramon Road/Foothill Road in the 
westbound direction, as shown in Attachment A - Project Location Map. 

One of the policy issues that staff discussed in workshops held in 2013 is the need to define 
the hours during which the express lanes will be operational, to help manage the congestion 
and provide travel reliability.  The California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) is 
mandated by State and Federal statues to define the hours of operation within the State in 
consultation with the Regional Transportation Planning Agency (RTPA) and California 
Highway Patrol (CHP).  Staff have been meeting with these agencies to determine the hours 
of operation and will provide an update at the Committee meeting.   

This is an informational item.   

Background 

Over the last two decades, the I-580 corridor has consistently been rated as one of the 
most congested freeway segments within the San Francisco Bay Area region.  As the next 
step in strategic investments in this corridor, Alameda CTC is implementing express lanes 
in both the east- and west-bound directions.  The express lanes will provide a new choice 
to single occupancy vehicle (SOV) users, enabling them to make use of the unused 
capacity in the HOV lane for a fee, if they choose to use the lanes. 

As discussed at the I-580 Policy Committee (I-580 EL PC) Meeting in February 2015 (Item 
4.2: Business Rules Update), Section 149.5 of California Streets and Highway Code 

Page 35



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150528\Consent 
Items\6.4_HoursofOperation\6.4_I580EL_UpdateOn_HoursOfOperation_20150423.doc 

 

 

stipulates that the express lanes operate within the HOV hours of operation without 
degrading the operation of the general purposes lanes.  Furthermore, Sections 21655.5 (a) 
& (b) and 21655.6 (a) of the California Vehicle Code provide the authority to Caltrans for 
studying, designating occupancy and selecting the hours of operations of the lane; in 
cooperation with the RTPA {which is the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) for 
the San Francisco Bay Region}.  An HOV Lane Committee comprised of Caltrans, MTC 
and CHP staff periodically meets to discuss the hours of operation and recommend 
changes to the Bay Area HOV Lane Network.  Since last year, the Alameda CTC staff 
have been discussing the operational requirements with Caltrans to efficiently manage 
current and forecasted traffic demand.  Based on its initial review of the request, Caltrans 
requested that Alameda CTC perform additional traffic analysis to demonstrate the 
benefits of extending the HOV/express lane hours of operation beyond the current HOV 
lane hours.  On March 10, 2015, a formal request was forwarded to the HOV Lane 
Committee to review the results of the traffic analysis and consider revising the hours of 
operation.  The HOV Lane Committee met on April 21, 2015 and reviewed the operational 
needs of the project.  Based on additional review time requested by MTC, the Committee 
agreed to reconvene on May 6, 2015 to make a final decision on revising the hours of 
operation. Staff will provide an update on the status of this item at the May 11, 2015 I-580 
EL PC meeting. 

This is an informational item.   

Fiscal Impact: There is no fiscal impact. 

Attachments 

A.  Project Location Map 

 

Staff Contact  

Kanda Raj, Project Controls Team 

Page 36

mailto:kraj@alamedactc.org


I-580 Policy Committee 

I-580 Express Lanes Project 
Location Map

6.4A

Page 37



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 38



 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150528\Consent 
Items\6.5_EnvDocs\6.5_EnvironmentalDocReview.docx 

 

 

Memorandum 6.5 

 

DATE: May 21, 2015 

SUBJECT: Congestion Management Program (CMP): Summary of the Alameda 
CTC’s Review and Comments on Environmental Documents and 
General Plan Amendments 

RECOMMENDATION: Receive an update on the Alameda CTC’s Review and Comments on 
Environmental Documents and General Plan Amendments. 

 

Summary 

This item fulfills one of the requirements under the Land Use Analysis Program (LUAP) element 
of the Congestion Management Program (CMP). As part of the LUAP, Alameda CTC reviews 
Notices of Preparations (NOPs), General Plan Amendments (GPAs), and Environmental 
Impact Reports (EIRs) prepared by local jurisdictions and comments on them regarding the 
potential impact of proposed land development on the regional transportation system.  

Since the last update on April 13, 2015, the Alameda CTC reviewed one Final Environmental 
Impact Report (FEIR). Comments were submitted on this document and the comment letter is 
included as attachment A. 

Fiscal Impact: There is no fiscal impact. 

Attachments: 

A. Response to Final Environmental Impact Report for the Children’s Hospital and 
Research Center Oakland Campus Master Plan Project 

Staff Contact  

Tess Lengyel, Deputy Director of Planning and Policy 

Daniel Wu, Assistant Transportation Planner 

 

Page 39

mailto:TLengyel@AlamedaCTC.org
mailto:dwu@alamedactc.org


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 40



6.5A

Page 41



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 42



 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150528\Consent 
Items\6.6_2014_PerfRepoort\6.6_PerformanceReport.docx 

 

 

Memorandum 6.6 

 

 DATE: May 21, 2015 

SUBJECT: 2014 Performance Report 

RECOMMENDATION: Receive an update on the 2014 Performance Report 

 

Summary 

The Performance Report is a document prepared annually by the Alameda County 
Transportation Commission (Alameda CTC) that looks at the state of the transportation 
system in Alameda County.  The Performance Report tracks trends in a series of performance 
measures, which are quantitative metrics used to assess progress toward specific goals.  The 
performance measures capture overall commuting patterns, as well as individual modes and 
infrastructure including roadways, transit, biking, and walking.  The measures are designed to 
be aligned with the goals of the Alameda Countywide Transportation Plan (CTP) and the 
Congestion Management Program (CMP) statute.  The Performance Report, together with 
the Alameda CTC’s other transportation system monitoring efforts, are critical for assessing 
the success of past transportation investments and illuminating transportation system needs 
that will require investments in the future. 
  
Background 

The Performance Report is one of several performance monitoring documents produced by 
the Alameda CTC.  The emphasis of the performance report is county-level analysis using 
existing, observed data that can be obtained on an annual basis.  The Performance Report 
complements other monitoring efforts such as biennial level of service monitoring and 
annually collected bicycle and pedestrian counts which assess performance of specific 
modes at a more detailed level. 
 
The Performance Report satisfies one of the five legislatively mandated elements of the CMP 
that the Alameda CTC must prepare as a Congestion Management Agency.  More broadly, 
the Performance Report is a vital part of the Alameda CTC’s work to plan, fund, and deliver 
transportation projects and programs throughout Alameda County.    

This Performance Report is intended to cover fiscal year 2013-14 (FY13-14).  Because some 
data sources are reported based on calendar years or publication of new data may lag 

Page 43



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150528\Consent 
Items\6.6_2014_PerfRepoort\6.6_PerformanceReport.docx 

 

 

behind the preparation time of this report, data are not always available for this period.  
Therefore, this report uses the most current data available in the late-2014 to early-2015 
timeframe when data for FY13-14 are unavailable. 

The Executive Summary of the Performance Report is included as Attachment A.  The full 
report is available online at the following link: 

http://www.alamedactc.org/app_pages/view/8129 

Fiscal Impact: There is no fiscal impact. 

Attachments  
A. 2014 Performance Report Executive Summary 

Staff Contact 

Tess Lengyel, Deputy Director of Planning and Policy 

Matthew Bomberg, Assistant Transportation Planner 

Dan Wu, Assistant Transportation Planner 

 

Page 44

http://www.alamedactc.org/app_pages/view/8129
mailto:TLengyel@AlamedaCTC.org
mailto:TLengyel@AlamedaCTC.org
mailto:mbomberg@alamedactc.org
mailto:dwu@alamedactc.org


DRAFT

2014 PERFORMANCE REPORT | ALAMEDA CTC     1

Executive Summary
Alameda County’s extensive multimodal transportation network 
provides mobility and access for people and goods traveling 
within the County and beyond. Alameda CTC’s fiscal year  
2013-14 (FY2013-14) Performance Report describes trends in a 
series of performance measures that track progress toward key 
goals across overall travel patterns, roadways, transit, biking, 
walking, and livable communities.

Travel Patterns

Commutes of Alameda County residents have become more 
regional in recent years. From 2005 to 2013, the percentage of 
residents who also work within the County decreased from  
67 percent to 65 percent. Significant job growth in San Francisco 
and the Peninsula/South Bay may be leading to this growth in  
commuting outside Alameda County. 

Alameda County residents commute to work using various 
transportation modes. In 2013, 63 percent of Alameda County 
residents drove alone to work, while 10 percent carpooled. More 
than a quarter of residents used a non-driving mode to work, with 
transit riders accounting for more than half of workers who do  
not drive. 

In the last decade, Alameda County's commute-to-work mode 
share has become more multimodal. Driving-alone and carpool 
mode shares to work have declined several years in a row and 
were at 63 percent and 10 percent in 2013, respectively. From 
2000 to 2013, BART exhibited the largest commute mode share 

The Performance Report fulfills 
Alameda CTC’s requirements 
as the congestion management 
agency for Alameda County 
pursuant to California 
Government Code Section 
65089(B)(2). The Performance 
Report includes performance 
measures consistent with 
goals required by the CMP 
statute and articulated in 
Alameda CTC’s adopted 
Countywide Transportation 
Plan. The Performance 
Report is designed to use 
either publically available 
data sources that have 
widespread use within the 
transportation planning 
industry or data sources 
that are readily available 
from local jurisdictions and 
agencies. Emphasis is placed 
on measures for which new 
data are available on an annual 
basis. The Performance 
Report is published in the 
spring following the most 
recently completed fiscal 
year. However, due to lags 
in availability of some data 
sources, data on several 
measures may be from before 
the stated year of the report. 
Appendix B provides detailed 
information regarding all 
data sources used in the 
Performance Report.

6.6A

Page 45



DRAFT

2    ALAMEDA CTC | 2014 PERFORMANCE REPORT

Executive Summary

increase (3 percent), followed by work from home (2 percent), 
and bicycling (1 percent).

Alameda County residents’ journey to work travel times also 
increased across all travel modes from 2005 to 2013; overall 
average travel time to work increased by about 3 minutes. During 
this time period, residents who commuted by bus saw the largest 
increase in average travel time (nearly 6 minutes). Alameda 
County workers commuting by BART experienced the longest 
average travel time; more than 40 percent of these workers 
experience commutes of longer than 1 hour.

The drivers' licensing rate of Alameda County residents has also 
decreased from 2005 to 2013; this trend is consistent with the 
national drivers' licensing rate trend. The greatest decrease in 
drivers' license rate is among drivers below age 35. From 2005 to 
2013, the drivers' licenses per 100 people dropped from 49 to 39 for  
16-19 year olds and from 96 to 80 for 20-34 year olds.

Roadways

A robust economy and regional employment growth have led  
to roadway traffic volume increases, particularly at freeways  
and bridges leading into Alameda County. From FY2012-13 to  
FY2013-14, median daily volumes at these key gateways grew 
around 1-2 percent. Traffic volumes on the San Mateo and 
Dumbarton Bridges grew around 8-9 percent, and could be 
attributed to employment growth on the Peninsula and in the  
South Bay.

The increase in roadway traffic volume led to slower and more 
congested roadway system performance in 2014. Average freeway 
speed in all time periods (weekday a.m., weekday midday, 
weekday p.m., and weekend midday) declined from FY2012-13 to 
FY2013-14. The a.m. and p.m. peak-hour speeds declined by more 
than 5 percent at many key freeway segments in the County. The 
most severe freeway delay (excess travel time from speeds dropping 
below 35 mph) climbed by 15 percent in FY2013-14 over the previous 
year. The Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) found that 

Page 46



DRAFT

2014 PERFORMANCE REPORT | ALAMEDA CTC     3

In Alameda County,  

22 percent of roads 

are considered in 

poor condition. 

Addressing outstanding 

maintenance needs 

will require significant 

future funding.

Executive Summary

in 2013, six of the Bay Area’s 10 most congested freeway segments 
are in Alameda County; this finding corroborated the County’s 
trends in freeway volume, speed, and congestion.

Local street and road average pavement condition Index (PCI),  
a measure of pavement quality, has remained relatively constant in 
recent years as cities have been unable to reduce a considerable 
backlog of deferred maintenance due to available repaving 
funding levels. In 2013, the local street and road PCI was 67. Around 
22 percent of local street and road centerline mileage in Alameda 
County has a PCI of “poor” or “failed,” and additional miles are “at 
risk,” meaning they will deteriorate rapidly if preventive maintenance 
is not undertaken. 

Pavement condition on the state highway system is assessed using 
three levels of distress—poor ride only, minor pavement distress 
(pavement in poor condition with significant cracks), and major 
pavement distress (pavement in poor condition with extensive 
cracks). The most recent California Department of Transportation 
(Caltrans) evaluation shows that in 2012, 22 percent of Alameda 
County’s state highway system lane miles were in these three levels 
of distress with 7 percent and 3 percent of lane miles in minor and 
major distress, respectively. Poor pavement quality affects road  
users of all types, and addressing outstanding maintenance  
needs will require significant future funding and adherence to  
“fix it first” commitments.

Collisions on Alameda County roadways declined from 2002 to 2011, 
but increased from 2011 to 2012 (the most recent year for which 
complete data is available). From 2011-2012, the number of fatalities 
increased 31 percent to 77, and the number of injury and fatal 
crashes increased by 6 percent to 6,605. These increases indicate 
that roadway safety requires continued attention. 

 

 

Page 47



DRAFT

4    ALAMEDA CTC | 2014 PERFORMANCE REPORT

Transit ridership  

growth reached its 

highest level in over  

five years, though 

ridership remains below 

pre-recession levels.

Transit

Transit plays a critical role in Alameda County by providing vital 
accessibility to individuals and businesses in the County. Transit 
ridership increased by 1.2 percent from FY2012-13 to FY2013-14, 
the third consecutive year of ridership growth. The growth brought 
ridership to its highest level in more than five years (more than  
96 million annual boardings), though ridership remains below  
pre-recession levels. However, Alameda County’s population 
growth has outpaced the transit ridership increase; in FY2007, 
Alameda County saw about 67 annual boardings per person,  
but saw only 61 annual boardings per person in FY2014. 

Bus and ferry services saw ridership increases from FY2012-13 to  
FY2013-14, while BART and commuter rail ridership remained 
relatively constant. Bus ridership increased for the second 
consecutive year after four years of decline or stagnation during 
the recent recession, but remained roughly 10 million riders 
below the FY2007 level. Note that although bus ridership began 
to recover, service levels have generally not been restored from 
major service cuts instituted during the recession. BART ridership 
stayed flat in 2014 compared to 2013, most likely attributable to 
BART strike days in July and October 2014, but has grown more 
than 40 percent since 2005.

Service utilization—the ratio of how many people ride transit to 
the amount of revenue service operated—is a more accurate 
measure of transit operator success than just ridership, as it 
accounts for efficiency. BART's boardings per revenue vehicle  
hour (RVH) remained relatively constant from FY2012-13 to  
FY2013-14, following steady improvement since 2005, as BART 
successfully attracted new riders while adding minimal additional 
service. AC Transit’s boardings per RVH have also remained 
relatively constant from FY2012-13 to FY2013-14 but have increased 
steadily since 2009. This trend can be attributed to AC Transit 
cutting service faster than boardings declined (FY2009 to FY2011) 
and ridership growth in the last two years. Other smaller operators 
exhibit a broad range of service utilization trends, as described in 
detail in this report.

Executive Summary

Page 48



DRAFT

2014 PERFORMANCE REPORT | ALAMEDA CTC     5

Bicycling accounts for a 

small percentage of the 

total commute share, 

but overall trends show 

an increase in cyclists 

from 2010 to 2013

Executive Summary

Commercial speed refers to the speed that transit vehicles travel, 
accounting for delays from traffic, signals, and boarding/alighting. 
It is a key indicator for passenger experience and operator costs. 
AC Transit has seen declines in commercial speed going back to 
2005, and LAVTA saw declines in 2013 and 2014. Correcting this 
trend requires operator and local jurisdiction partnerships. 

Transit service reliability can be measured by the time and 
distance operated between service disruptions. Vehicle 
breakdowns and other equipment failures are frequently a 
product of aging equipment and infrastructure. All transit 
operators saw a reduction in the distance or time that their 
vehicles operated between service interruptions in FY2014.  
These trends point to the fact that Alameda County’s transit 
operators have a number of aging assets that require 
rehabilitation or replacement.

Bicycling

Bicycling is a form of transportation that can be affordable for 
users, is linked to positive public health outcomes, and contributes 
to environmental sustainability. Bicycling’s work-trip mode share 
remained relatively consistent in 2013 as compared to 2012, but it 
has nearly doubled over the last decade. The number of cyclists 
observed at the 63 count locations monitored by Alameda CTC 
declined over the last year for all time periods. This trend could 
be attributed to the manual counts coinciding with the BART 
strike from September to October of 2013. Although no counts 
were conducted on strike days, the uncertainty around transit 
service may have led people to work from home or use other 
transportation modes instead of bicycling to access transit.

Collisions involving bicyclists dropped in 2012 from 2011, after 
having increased over the last decade. However, the bicyclist 
collision rate may be declining, as journey-to-work data suggests 
that the number of collisions involving cyclists has grown more 
slowly than participation in cycling. Yet, safety and perceived lack 
of safety remain barriers that prevent cycling from being a more 
prevalent activity.

Page 49



DRAFT

6    ALAMEDA CTC | 2014 PERFORMANCE REPORT

Executive Summary

During the last year, jurisdictions reported implementing over  
40 miles of bikeways, including nearly 12 miles of Class I multiuse 
trails. The completion of the Bay Bridge bike and pedestrian path 
and the Iron Horse Trail segment from the Dublin-Pleasanton BART 
station to Santa Rita Road accounted for considerable mileage. 
Several jurisdictions also implemented various types of upgraded 
bicycle lanes including bicycle lanes that use buffers, green paint, 
and other treatments to increase visibility and comfort for cyclists.

At the conclusion of FY2013-14, nine of 15 jurisdictions had 
adopted local bicycle master plans within the last five years.  
Four of the remaining six have plan development or update  
work underway.

Thousands of Alameda County residents and workers participated 
in bike safety education classes (which have grown steadily since 
they began in FY2009-10), and many more have participated in 
or seen Alameda CTC’s I Bike! encouragement campaign, which 
includes Bike to Work Day.

Walking 

Walking is fundamental to all transportation modes—every trip 
begins and ends with walking. For many users of the Alameda 
County transportation system, walking is their sole mode of 
transportation. Walking has held steady as a commute mode used 
by between 3 percent and 4 percent of Alameda County workers 
for the past decade, though this statistic understates walking’s 
role in the transportation system, as the vast majority of walking 
trips are made for non-work purposes. The most recent household 
travel survey with data on all types of travel found that walking 
accounts for 11 percent of all trips, and this statistic excludes 
walking’s role as an access and egress mode for transit and  
driving trips.

Pedestrian counts collected through the Alameda Countywide 
Count Program showed a slight decrease from 2012 to 2013. This 
trend could be attributed to the manual counts coinciding with 
the BART strike from September to October of 2013. Although no 

Walking accounts for 

11 percent of all trips 

in Alameda County, 

excluding walking used 

to access transit and 

driving trips.

Page 50



DRAFT

2014 PERFORMANCE REPORT | ALAMEDA CTC     7

Executive Summary

counts were conducted on strike days, the uncertainty around 
transit service may have led workers to work from home or use 
other modes instead of walking to access transit.

Collisions involving pedestrians increased in 2012; in particular, 
the number of injury and fatal collisions involving pedestrians in 
2012 was higher than the average number of collisions involving 
pedestrians from the last 11 years. This trend highlights the fact 
that pedestrian safety remains an issue that requires education, 
enforcement, and infrastructure-based strategies, especially as 
increasing transit and active transportation mode usage results  
in greater levels of walking.

In FY2013-14, 13 jurisdictions reported completing a total of  
47 major pedestrian capital projects. These projects span a  
wide variety of improvement types, ranging from closing gaps 
in the County’s trail and sidewalk network, to major trail and 
pathway rehabilitation, to improvements to the safety and  
comfort of pedestrian facilities and pedestrian crossings.

At the conclusion of FY2013-14, seven of 15 jurisdictions had  
adopted local pedestrian master plans within the last five years. 
Four of the remaining eight have plan development or update 
work underway.

In addition, the Alameda County Safe Routes to School Program, 
which promotes the use of alternative modes to get to school, 
continued its rapid growth; the program was in 130 total schools 
during the 2013-14 school year, an increase of eight schools over 
the previous school year.

Page 51



DRAFT

8    ALAMEDA CTC | 2014 PERFORMANCE REPORT

Executive Summary

Livable Communities

This Performance Report includes data on several measures that 
capture local efforts to coordinate transportation and land use 
planning and to promote usage of shared and non-driving  
travel modes. 

Housing production and permitting are indicators of overall 
transportation and housing affordability. Housing production is 
a challenge in the Bay Area, and from 2007 to 2014, Alameda 
County met less than 40 percent of the regional housing needs 
allocation set by the Association of Bay Area Governments. With 
a recovering economy, FY2013-14 saw an active development 
market, for both residential and non-residential projects. Dublin, 
Emeryville, Fremont, Hayward, Livermore, Newark, Oakland and 
Pleasanton all approved at least one residential project with over 
100 housing units, while Alameda, Oakland, San Leandro, and 
Union City approved commercial or industrial projects of at least 
100,000 square feet. In FY2013-14, 26 residential projects of more 
than 50 units were approved; of these, 17 were within one-half mile 
of regional transit (rail, ferry, AC Transit Major Corridors, or LAVTA 
Rapid). Also in FY2013-14, five non-residential projects of more  
than 100,000 square feet were approved, of which four  
were within one-half mile of regional transit

To encourage alternate modes, Alameda County’s jurisdictions 
have adopted Transportation Demand Management (TDM) 
policies and design guidelines related to bicycling, walking,  
transit, carpool/vanpool, and park-and-ride strategies.  
Alameda CTC requires that local jurisdictions report annually on 
how they have met the minimum requirements to adopt TDM 
policies and guidelines as part of the CMP. According to  
Alameda CTC’s latest TDM checklist survey, jurisdictions have 
a high degree of adoption of bicycling- and walking-related 
strategies but a lower adoption rate of transit, carpool, and  
park-and-ride strategies. As TDM policies continue to develop,  
Alameda CTC plans to update the range of TDM strategies in  
the annual TDM checklist.

Page 52



 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150528\Consent 
Items\6.7_Admin_Code_Amendments\6.7_Memo_Admin_Code_Amendments.docx 

 

Memorandum 6.7 

 

DATE: May 21, 2015 

SUBJECT: Alameda CTC Administrative Code Amendments 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve amendments to Alameda CTC’s Administrative Code. 

 

Summary 

The Alameda County Transportation Commission (Alameda CTC) Administrative Code 
requires amendments to incorporate Measure BB and the 2014 Transportation Expenditure 
Plan, to clarify the approval process for the bylaws for Alameda CTC’s advisory 
committees to ensure consistency in committee governance, and to bring the document 
up to date with the processes and procedures of Alameda CTC as a consolidated 
agency.  

Background 

The Commission last updated the Administrative Code in February 2013, when the 
Commission amended the Code to change the I-580 Policy Advisory Committee (I-580 
PAC) to a Standing Committee identified as the I-580 Express Lane Policy Committee  
(I-580 PC). This change enabled I-580 PC to consider staff recommendations and propose 
actions to the Commission on a regular basis. 

In November 2014, voters passed Measure BB, authorizing the sales tax for transportation 
projects and programs collected and administered by Alameda CTC and governed by 
the 2014 Transportation Expenditure Plan. This plan also established the Independent 
Watchdog Committee which replaces the Citizen’s Watchdog Committee. In addition, 
the original document included many references to the prior agencies, the Alameda 
County Congestion Management Agency and the Alameda County Transportation 
Improvement Authority, which are no longer necessary as we move forward as a 
consolidated agency. These changes all need to be incorporated into the administrative 
code as Alameda CTC’s governing document. 

Discussion 

To incorporate Measure BB and the 2014 Transportation Expenditure Plan, to reflect the 
renaming of the Independent Watchdog Committee (formerly the Citizens Watchdog 

Page 53



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150528\Consent 
Items\6.7_Admin_Code_Amendments\6.7_Memo_Admin_Code_Amendments.docx 

 

Committee), to ensure that all advisory committees have consistent bylaws, to update the 
Code to eliminate unnecessary references to the prior agencies, and to make other 
appropriate changes, staff is recommending that the Alameda CTC Administrative Code be 
amended as shown in Attachment A. Legal counsel has reviewed and approved the 
proposed changes.  

Fiscal Impact: There is no fiscal impact.  

Attachments 

A. Proposed Alameda CTC Administrative Code Amendments 

Staff Contact  

Tess Lengyel, Deputy Director of Planning and Policy 

Page 54

mailto:TLengyel@AlamedaCTC.org


ARTICLE 1

ARTICLE 2

ARTICLE 3

ARTICLE 4

ARTICLE 5

ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION
ADMINISTRATIVE CODE

(as amended on ?r?Si135284!!)

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

GENERAL PROVISIONS ........

CODE OF ETHICS............

DEFINITIONS...

powERS, AUTHORITY AND DUTIES....... ......................7

ADVISORY AND EXTERNAL COMMITTEESS--.,*-===.*==J

3!
ZL

?z

-t-

*n;itr,.*.' ¿;z;-attrrt n ll¡dan l:1A:28.3 t 5

6.7A

Page 55



ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION
ADMINISTRATIVE CODE

(asamendedon2;4&il4i2ßl!5-)

A,RTICLE 1

GENERA,L PROVISIONS

1.1 Title. This code is enacted by the Alameda county Transportation commission
(,.Alameda cTC" or,,ACTC") pursuant to the provisions of califomia Public utilities code

section 180105 and the Joint Powers Agreement dated for reference puposes as of March 25,

2010 (as it may subsequently be amended from time to time) which created the Alameda CTC

(,.fPA,). This Code may be referred to as the "Alameda County Transportation Commission

Administrative code." This code prescribes the powers and duties of officers of Alameda cTC,
the method of appointment of employees of Alameda CTC, and the methods, procedures, and

systems of operation and management of Alameda CTC.

1.2 Reference Includes Amendments. Reference to this Code or any portion thereof

includes later amendments thereto. This Code may be amended by motion, resolution or other

proper action of the Commission.

1.3 Severability. If any term or provision of this Code is ever determined to be

invalid or unenforceable for any reason, such tem or provision shall be severed from this Code

without affecting the validity or enforceability ofthe remainder of this Code.

1.4 Interpretation. Section headings in this Code are for convenience of reference

only and shall not affect the meaning or interpretation of any provision of this Code. As used

herein: (a) the singular shall include the plural (and vice versa) and the masculine or neuter

gender shall include the feminine gender (and vice versa) where the context so requires;
(b) locative adverbs such as "herein," "hereto," and "hereunder" shall refer to this Code in its

àntirety and not to any specific Section or paragraph; (c) the terms "include," "including," and

similar terms shall be construed as though followed immediately by the phrase "but not limited

to;" and (d) "shall," "will" and "must" are mandatory and "may" is permissive.

ARTICLE 2

CODE OF ETHICS

2.1 Ethics Statement. The foundation of any democratic institution or governmental

agency relies upon tlre trust and confidence its citizens place in its elected officials, appointed

-*ug".. or adminisnators, and staff. Honesty, integrity and professionalism must serve as the

guiding principles for Alameda cTC in canying out its deliberations and Alameda cTC's
busin"ss. The ethical operation oflocal government requires that decision-makers be impartial

and accountable. Alameda CTC expects its representatives, including but not limited to

Commission Members, employees, contractors, and advisory committee members to act in a

manner that retains and inspires the trust and confidence of the people they serve.

l.-'....:.-.1f. -.ìí!..i-1r,íi.:i?r:'+t=eþ.-tlì,'i-t¡:¿,i.4h¡xt1,:tlt-;t-il 1
.1 ra | ì t r, t ì *1 È.a t'it<3..-...

Alameda Crc Adninistratile Code4+¿{' ,t4'a4,1t+44} 'ørtiøa.+lax4: onøoltrll2E}@!!-þþ Page 56



2.2 Expectations. It is the general policy of Alameda CTC to promote the highest

standards ofpersonal and professional ethics by individuals charged with canying out Alameda

CTC's business. Alameda CTC expects all participants to:

2,2.1 Conduct public deliberations and Alameda CTC business in an

atmosphere of mutual respect, consideration, cooperation and civility.

2.2.2 Conduct public processes openly, urìless legally required to be

confidential.

2.2.3 Comply with both the letter and spirit of the laws and policies affecting

the operations of govemment in general and Alameda CTC specifically, including but not limited

to the Conflict of Interest Code.

2.2.4 Use public service for the public good, not for personal gain.

ARTICLE 3
DEFINITIONS

3.1 Existing Definitions Adopted. For the purposes of this Code, all words not

defined herein shall have such meanings as (i) have been established in a controlling Expenditure

Plan, or (ii) have been determined by the laws ofthe state and decisions of the courts ofthe
State.

3.2 "1986 Tragsãlrtåüqn-Expenditure Plan" means the Alameda County

Transportation Expenditure Plan approved by the voters of Alameda County pursuant to the

passage ofthe original Measure B on November 4,1986, as it may subsequently be amended

from time to time.

3.3 "2000 Measuro
ear¿nlyon NoyqBhcLZ- 2000 ûursuant to Sect

r¡ut¡@-e{-p,:rù!þrascb'Marehl!2022
3,1 å3-i'ãfili,-i2000jli¿¡s¡¿qddioü-Expenditure Plan" means Alameda County's

2g-Year Transportation Expenditure Plan, dated July 2000 and funded by the retail transactions

and use ta-r imposed pursuant to 2000 Measure B, as it may subsequently be amended from time

to time.

35 &:t"å'$8*-2tll-{LMeasure {}B&" means Measure'&@as adopted by the voters of
Alameda County on November ?4,!S0{120_l¡þursuant to Section 180206 of the Act. Meæu&

Ð-auguocn*-r!så000,Mpasur-s å"lla1!ec!1&l.tô1¿tå!v-a&dd4¡44¿hallaq¿ú. froruilrdll-
zoli¡hrBL,sh,M3
leslnA-p¡i]_l-2 L22.andl¡¿i1l,qrtcndlhrqugh. loaa¡c¡ 3 L-20{l5.

Jé "lOt¡ fransnorta
T¡a:m,porl¡íot Lxpe¡dlure ll,,la.n r!aXslJ-a¡uÌa$2014,rud,¡*nded. hy-dle-raþiltraÂÊaettc,¡ådlse
gë¿4rægçd-æ¡su_, auxla2or4_L4easulc_8*B'-,'r}sjt_$aLsuh&!ucn1L *be,ameudqúfiomttn]gla

!@

.., t *^ ¡' a ¡ t r I - iat aaj"jtli4laUg!:Å-,!)l) Page 57



3J &5'oAct" means Division 9 of the California Public Utilities Code, Sections

180000 et seq., also known æ-the Local Transportation Authority and Improvement Act, as the

Act may be amended from time to time.

3A *{I'ACCMA" or "CMA" each mean the Alameda County Congestion

Managernent Agency, the agency originally tasked with the duty of adopting and implementing

the Congestion Management Program. AeeM-,A has¡oulccn-dissolvccl-aldAlapeda-lïelas
as$rnl*-{j$ drric,Ldsbls-aüd-obllg¿lllanslu$IraÐ¡lo thcllA.

3ll 3"J"ACTA" means the Alameda County Transportation Authority, the agency

originally tasked with the duty of implementing the 1986 T¡a¡sportatiçl.sExpenditure Plan.

ACTA has now been dissolved, and i!{::rl-{-A]arn.e.-(!qlJ{l has assumed its duties, rights and

obligations;'*ieh.ìl*r-tôe*i¡<lc'lcg:rlrri.lt*}le-!!r+;nnriuìr*pursuant to the JPA.

3'10 3'8"ACTAC" means the Alameda County Transportation Advisory Committee,

the technical advisory committee to the Commission, as described herein'

3,lL &S*ACTIA' means the Alameda County Transportation Improvement Authority,
the agency originally tasked with the duty of implementing the 2000 &a¡sps-dalion Expenditure
plan,N]T1U!lus_!q. \¡iþ!:c,r-Ldlssalyc<i_Jn.dÀl¿rnedêelqh'ùs-a$u:rledils dulþs.dfua¡d
o¡!;uat;ons oqçuan .

3.12 3,ì {i"Advisory Committee" means each advisory committee established by or

for the Commission.

&!3 å.ålJ'Alameda CTC" and "ACTC" each mean the Alameda County

Transportation Commission.

3J4 3.{-2"Alternate" means each of those persons appointed, pursuant to the JPA, to

serve and vote as an alternate member of the Commission or of a Standing Committee in the

absence of a specific Commission Member.

3,15 3J$o'Annual Budget'o means the budget for Alameda CTC, including seSa:a+e

tru&É!+*.ç{*-þr4gçl:$-related to (i) the 1986 lra¡sp-orlation Expenditure Plan, (ii) the 2000

ï@ilogExpenditure Plan, as required by Section 180105 of the Act, (iii) the 20-14

]'raÌl$Jertation Bxpen Congestion

Management Program, (.ivg) the VRF Expenditure Plan, and e"$i) other matters.

3..{6 &{4,,Authorized Vote" means the total number of weighted votes represented by

all Commission Members, pursuant to the provisions of the JPA.

3.11 "Bicl'cle and Ped

Advis(tt&lûmitxec-wblch sha[¿d]jiç-Alameda CTC and sta

implemc"*lptroufllbicvqlc-a.nd-Bqd-qslú¿llrrae&.!1s-

3.llÈ 3j5"Board of Supervisors" means the Board of Supervisors ofthe County'

I = 4:4 " Lt¿!t!4!Jrtt-\tL. - .'¡tt\ Page 58



3--19 &.-lé"Bonds" means indebtedness and securities ofany kind or class, including

but not limited to bonds, refunding bonds, or revenue anticipation notes.

l,å0 å"lT"Brown Act" means the Ralph M. Brown Act, Government Code Sections

54950 et seq., as it may be amended from time to time.

3.21 .l.l-8"Chair" means the Chair of the Commission. as elected by the Commission'

-3& åé*"Citizens Watchdog Committee" nreaseot:Çl{e134lh-qçallthe
Advisory committee for 2000 Measure B required by the 2000 l¡an"ipor¡atisn Expenditure Plan*

PursuarìL-te,¿g.Jí!-lvþasure-B,B-1lrc e-]Me has,heen re4anmdllr,lndçBe4dulj'W'¿telxles
ComnUlt=eg-çf fbctive-$ .

323 S,&(l"CiW" means any incorporated city or town within the County.

32A 3-2-f"Clerk" means the Staff member designated by the Executive Director to

serve as the Clerk of the Commission.

3¿5 3** "Code" means this Administrative Code of the Alameda County

Transportation Commission.

3t6 .i,?.3"Commission" means the governing body of Alameda CTC, which

constitutes the legislative body of Alameda CTC as defined under Section 54952 of the Brown
Act. The Commission is referenced as the "Board" in the JPA and certain other documentation

to ensure consistency with the hislo-rçalpractice of ACTA, ACTIA' and ACCMA.

3.27 F.å4"Commission Engineer" means a Staff member holding and maintaining a

California Professional Civil Engineer license who is desigrrated by the Executive Director as the

Commission Engineer.

3.28 3-?ã"Commission Member" and "Commissioner" each mean each of those

persons appointed to serve as a member of the Commission pursuant to the JPA.

3¿9 3lé"Conflict ofInterest Code" means the Conflict oflnterest Code of the

Alameda CTC, as adopted and regularly updated by the Commission pursuant to the provisions

of Government Code Section 87300 et seq.

310 3-4?"Congestion Management Agency" means the Alameda CTC serving in its

role as the County's Congestion Management Program agency, as desigrrated pursuant to

Government Code Section 65089 and the JPA.

3,3: 3.*,!"Congestion Management Program" means the program developed and

administered by A1a¿e.ria_!:AAas-ttre Congestion Management Agency,:a*4lsuccessor to the

ACCMA, in accordance with the provisions of Government Code Section 65089.

3-32 å*&ooCounty" means the County of Alameda.

4

:'t'; i ; t u t' lo<,1pta_ 
_ _ _ rnle t4)!A::!¿OA Page 59



3,33 ð.3{l'oElected Official" means (i) any duly elected and serving official ofthe
legislative body, as defined in Govemment Code Sections 34000 and 34002, of æty City, (ii) any

duly elected and serving member of the Board of Supervisors, and (iii) any duly elected and

serving official of the legislative body of any Member Transit Agency'

3ß4 -1j,l"Executive Director" means the chief executive officer selected by the

Commission to conduct the overall a¡d day-to-day management of the activities of Alameda

CTC.

315 Þ.êð"Expenditure Plan Project" means a project and/or a program described in
one or more ofthe Expenditure Plans.

3Jé 3*S"Expenditure Plans" n*æ*r.ûlçan the 1986 I'ra¿s¡-q!:,ta!lolr Expenditure

Plan, the 2000 =l.ianürs¡1aúon-Expenditure Plan, @2014-TransErlaliol:&d:tu¡eIþLand
the VRF Expenditure Plan-collecfiycly.

]J å*.!"Finance and Administration Committee" or "X'AC" each mean such

Standing Committee as described herein.

318 3.3åo'Fiscal Year" means July 1 to and including the following June 30.

139 ?.&:"General Counsel" or t'Legal Counsel" means the attomey(s) or law firm(s)

acting as general counsel to Alameda CTC.

3¿0 3-3?"Geographic Area" means the four subareas in the County, consisting of
North County (the cities of Alar¡çc1a--Albany, Berkeley, Emerlville, Pi*¡lnxr*+¡Oakland and

Âl***xvJaPjcr!¡¡{¡n!), central county (the cities of H¿y¡¡¡arci¿ud san Leandro a*xll-kvwarèand
the unincorporated areas of AShlanil*Castro Va.lley, San Lorenzo.*\s'.ll*+å-and others in the

central section of the County), South County (the cities of Ua ir;i 4iiq*!!cgo¡ç, Newark and

i.te.r*.ln+-!hig¡Qfu), and East County (the cities of Dublin, Li:¿er¡¡ore-Pleasanton aad

i**,*-t+-¡¡rc-and the unincorporated areas of the Livermore Valley).

3:{1 $.3flo'Holiday" means any day observed by Alameda CTC as a holiday, other

than a Saturday or Sunday.

3-42 3#:"I-580 llxursgs-Lane Policy Committee'o or "I-580 PC" each mean such

standing subcommittee as described herein

3-43 "ln{tepenrìentWât
A<1vison,-Ça¡rmiltpcrrç¿.tçd-h:lhq qolnm1ssþn as r"eû¡rired bv Mea

olithetc-¿Lsuqg.ilVoru--e-.tl=V-otqrssnd-slhç!qitizensrouos'The
Çjttzeeq W¿tcLdor¡ C<l

itlle¡g!¡re B. as$ratr-a!Lcltl€ç-1iv,e-qtjulyl-20,1í-- ilrclWeælor1ö-úl:cctlv-talhe-Bub]ia-êud-ll
qharse{L!¿it}reriqwjnåEil 2000 \4e-eêsure-B c,xpçrdrtulcÅ-s¡rd20l-4 MqasurclB çx!-qndillucs
and Ðerfo-!!1age mea

¡uhs are- rìqrclaqted olllcjalüli&v level-afsaYcrnmenl-uorjnliivjdudsii ¿ posltiaqlo-bencl;ll

p-çrsaÁa1lJj!-a4Jgyjiom:hgtax_ asi&viod-pur-sua¡l 1o-2000-Maêsu- c-B,¿Ltd 201-a hILB-B.

5

rî. jri,ì*; /i\ . os ut'JttßL4"¿ a!=Llay:Ì-UA- Page 60



| ¡g¿ å.,1íìo'Investment Policy" means any investment policy adopted by the

Commission in conformance with applicable law.

| ¡¡S l-;¡-1.(J?4" mea¡rs the Joint Powers Agreement which created Alameda CTC,

dated for reference purposes as of March 25, 2010, as it may subsequently be amended from time
to time.

I ¡f¡ JJ*"Member Agency" means each public agency which is a member oi
Alameda CTC pursuant to the JPA.

I 3J? 3,{3"Member Transit Agency" means each transit agency which is a Member
Agency.

3J¡l 3+l-{'oMetropolitan Transportation Commission" means the regional

transportation planning agency for the San Francisco Bay Area authorized and created by
Government Code Sections 66500 et seq.

3,49 å¡{å"Net Revenues" means respectively (i) gross revenues derived from
imposition ofa retail transactions and use tax, less Board of Equalization administrative and

other charges, with respect to the 1986 !a¡LsptUlatiså*E-xBe11(1l1ulgl.L¿ìll*æ0-0fr4]ÊB-(Ir!at1.o4
Expenditure Plan and 3ltXJ-ä4-&WlqlExpenditure i ' :':PI!D, or (ii) gross revenues

derived from imposition of the VRF, less Department of Motor Vehicles administrative and other

charges, with respect to the VRF Expenditure Plan.

excluding matters which are procedural in nature.

3.5! "Orpanization¿l
inlauualv-al,lg]lþh.|ig-Cì0mnisslcn€þqts lls-çb¿Larr.d,vlee chatr ¿¡d¿dsBtslhe-mçet!1s

@c-&{lligJ*:tL
l;í2 "¡lar¿trânsi{ Ådv

Ad$Sorv=Comiltttee whi
ir n p lù n jen tal iÒno-Lga |irl ra I s!-! ll.f O:{Am s.

3,53 3'4? "Planning, Policy, and Legislation Committee" and "PPLC" each mean

such Standing Committee as described herein.

314 3."L9"Programs and Projects Committee" or '.PPC" each mean such Standing

Committee as described herein.

355 J.i!"Procurement Policy" means any policy or policies adopted by the

Commission regarding procurement of goods, services and supplies, and hiring of consultants

and contractors, as such policy or policies may be amended from time to time. Ð+l-il-st¡*'hr'ime

a{}-the.C,r}rì}..{sie¡-rdopts.*-++¡**¡re¿ler¡+l+;ie;{Ð-¡*U*ed¡ø+e*ren**tì!*nd-}Èi*€*t
etxl,;tú-f¿r;r.Ei¿r4+arlårâo1ç¡i$+e1ateål<;-A{-4}içlltqirl*1'$îplte'$¿rìl"-afid.*l,t"' Êver¡e{
by*the-l\{l!i-,1-P*ør*e*r***9o!q.';i',oanl"ì}u.l;*e**Üor+t¡ae-l{iq**ityP-rgnxr+l*nére}aieel
pdi{'{*!}{ir},*@*¡iu}rì¡¡r'*$cle{r]l1ìâelxx*rel¿re*¿o.4{XlM'\

r.. i.,,,,.t<îx:Jp 4!Enqnrù14!:È)!L¿ Page 61



Þqj€íjtrr-tr+ãrgr.lrn¡-*nd-te't"i*'lãe+s!r.*lbe'¡.*"xxttlå;'4c-'^.6r€+,'tÀ-là*oicc¡tcl"ivtr"'t'
Åtlirii;rir*i+t,i¡:r.(ìr ide.ll*r'','\Ç{iM'4{*:rll-l-}r¡sit¡ri3r-lilt<¡i'?i*stblìq'-¡}re' e$$Á.&o**}
{ì*rii1;*ess-;..nlryr+ise-P*+icy-.ur<++x'l*j;pi;e-¿l¡ie-lçËç*+.+f¡¡i*+*s.

3ié å5{} "Staff' means employees of Alameda CTC.

3'5? 3*}"Standing Committee" means each of the standing subcommittees of the

Commission as described herein, consisting of the FAC, the PPLC the PPC, and the I-580 PC.

3é8 l"i¿o'Stateo' means the State of Califomia'

3.59 3i3'oVice Chair" means the Vice Chair of the Commission, as elected by the

Commission.

3¡60 å-44"VRF" means any vehicle registration fee adopted by the voters ofthe
county pursuant to Govemment Code Section 65089.20, as codified pursuant to Senate Bill 83

in 2009.

| ¡¡f J,Í*i.,VRF Expenditure Plan" means the expenditure plan adopted with respect

to the VRF, and as it may subsequently be amended from time to time.

3.@ "T56"Working Day" means any day other than a Saturday, Sunday or Holiday.

ARTICLE 4

POWERS, AUTHORITY AND DUTIES

4.1 Power, Authority and Duty of the Commission' The Commission shall have

the power, authority, and duty to do all ofthose things necessary and required to accomplish the

stated pulpose and goals of Alameda CTC as set fodh in the JPA. Except as otherwise provided

herein, the Commission may delegate its power and authority to the Executive Director, who

may further delegate such power and authority to staff. without limiting the generality of the

foregoing, the Commission shall have the power and authority to do any of the following on

hehalf of Alameda CTC:

4.1.1 To administer and amend, as necessary, the Expenditure Plans, to

lprovideforthedesign,financingandcor*-t;.w;ring.co4stn¡elionoftheprojectsdescribedtherein,
and to determine the use of Net Revenues in conformance with the parameters established in the

Expenditure Plans, and in conformance with goveming statutes.

I l.t.Z To provide for the design, financing and **¡llru** 14. çouslruq[o'n of
other projects as may be undertaken from time to time by Alameda CTC.

4.1.3 To prepare, adopt, implement and administer the Congestion

Managemenl Program as the designated congestion management agency for Alameda county.

4.1.4 To establish, update and amend the Armual Budget.

7

;., : : r - +. t, ",.u *!!!!!9.þ 4!!L!4nè.:j\¿UJ Page 62



4.1.5 To enter i*-þLo-a contract with the Executive Director, which contract

shall include the rate of compensation and other benefits of the Executive Director.

4.1.6 To establish and revise the salary and benefit structure for Alameda

CTC employees from time to time.

4.1.7 To make and enter into contracts.

4.1.8 To aPPoint agents.

4.1.9 To acquire, hold, or dispose ofreal property and other property by any

lawful means, including without limitation, gift, purchase, lease, lease purchase or sale, including

use of the power of eminent domain to the extent the Alameda CTC is legally entitled to exercise

such powei. In compiiance with applicable State law, resolutions of necessity related to the

"""r"ir" 
of such power shall be heard by the Commission without prior review by any Standing

Committee.

4.1.10 To incur debts, liabilities or obligations subj ect to applicable limitations,

including without limitation the issuance of Bonds.

4.1.11 Subject to applicable reporting and other limitations as set forth in the

Conflict of Interest Code, to receive gifts, contributions and donations ofproperty, funds,

services and other forms offinancial assistance from persons, firms, corporations and any

govemmental entity.

4.1.12 To sue a:rd be sued on behalf of Alameda CTC'

4.1.13 To apply for appropriate grants under any federal, state, regional or

local programs for assistance in developing any of its projects, administering any of its programs,

or carrying out any other duties of Alameda CTC pursuant to the JPA.

4.1.14 To create, modify and/or terminate the Standing Coinmittees, Advisory

Committees, and ad hoc committees as may be deemed necessary by the Commission, subject to

compliance with the Expenditure Pla¡s and applicable laws.

4.1.15 To review and amend the Administrative Code as necessary'

4.1.16 To establish such policies for the Commission and/or Alameda CTC as

the Commission deems necessary or are required by applicable law, and thereafter to amend such

policies as appropriate.

4.1.17 To exercise any other powers authorized in the JPA, the Act, the

congestion management statutes (Govemment Code $$65088 et seq.), andlor any ofher

applicable state or federai laws or regulations.

4.1.18 To administer Alameda CTC in furtherance of all the above.

8

*,': ¡ ,,+**íx .tttt tueLsdj:l1tf Llq.:8:l)-Li Page 63



4.2 Rules For Proceedings. Except as otherwise provided herein, the following rules

shall apply to all meetings of the Commission, the Standing Committees and all Advisory
Committees.

4.2.1 All proceedings shall be govemed by Robert's Rules of Order, unless

otherwise specifically provided in this Code.

4.2.2 All meetings shall be conducted in the manner prescribed by the Brown

Act.

4.2.3 A majority of the members of the Commission constitutes a quorum for

the transaction ofbusiness of the Commission, regardless of the percentage of Authorized Vote

present at the time.

4.2.4 Except as otherwise provided herein or otherwise required by applicable

law, ali Offrcial Acts require the affirmative vote of a maj ority of the weighted vote of the

Commission Members (andior Alternates eligible to vote) present at the time of the vote.

4.2.5 Adoption ofa resolution ofnecessity authorizing the exercise ofthe
power of eminent domain requires approval by not less than 15 Commission Members (and/or

Alternates eligible to vote), since a two-thirds vote of the 22 Commission Members is required

by law. For proj ects on the State highway system, adoption of a resolution of necessity requires

approval by not less than 18 Commission Members (and/or Alternates eligible to vote), since a

four-fifths vote of the 22 Commission Members is required by law. Further, in compliance with
Caltrans' requirements, adoption ofa resolution agreeing to hear resolutions ofnecessity for

projects on the state highway system requires approval by not less than 18 commission

Members (and/or Altemates eligible to vote). Weighted voting may not be used for the adoption

of any resolutions discussed in this Section.

| +Z.e As required by the 2000 l{A¡¡.:p9l1Àlion Exuenditr4.g?larlar!d=t-!!e201:!

I L::r n s n,,riatlon Expenditure Plan, two-thirds of the weighted vote of the commission Members

(and/or Alternates eligible to vote) plesent at the time of the vote is required fo app¡ove an

I amendment to the 2000 l ransnprtati$ E. Ll,üIù xpenditure

Plan.

4.2,7 A two-thirds vote of the Commission Members (and/or Altemates

eligible to vote) present at the time of the vote is required to approve a new Expenditure Plan.

4.2.8 A majority of the total Authorized Vote shall be required for each of the

lollowing actions by the Commission:

4.2.8.1 To adopt or amend the Congestion Management Program'

4,2.8.2 To adopt a resolution of conformalce or non-conformance

with the adopted Congestion Management Program.

4.2.8,3 To approve or reject a deficiency plan.

9

r 
",t,,.¡t 

t 
" 

: 5 rir:., 1¡s ç¡1¿p@!1t4-l!gyþ-l!þ Page 64



4.2.8.4

4.2.8.5

4.2.8.6

To adopt or amend the Countywide Transportation P1an.

To approve federal or state funding ptograms'

To adopt the Annual Budget et-ti+ie v-*Lxs-ofteargqs-otl
ançltor require cç$ any Member Agency.

4,2,9 The election of the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Commission will occur

annually at the January Commission meeting, which will serve as the organizational meeting for
the Commission, and such elections will be effective immediately. If the Chair or Vice-Chair

resigns or is removed from office, the election for Chair or Vice-Chair to serve the remainder of
the term shall be held at the next Commission meeting. In choosing the Chair and Vice Chair,

Members shall give reasonable consideration to rotating these positions among the Geographic

Areas and the transit representatives, among other factors.

4.2.10 At the organization meeting as described above, the Commission shall

adopt the schedule of regular meetings of the Commission and the Standing Committees for the

upcoming year. The Commission and each Standing Committee may change the date for a

regular meeting ofsuch body to another business day if the regular date is a holiday or as

othe¡wise determined by the Commission or such Standing Committee.

4.2.11 The acts of the Commission shall be expressed by motion, resolution, or

ordinance.

4.2.12 A majority of the members of an Advisory Committee or Standing

Committee constitutes a quorum for the hansaction of business of such committee.

4.2.13 The acts of the Standing Committees and Advisory Committees shall be

expressed by motion.

4.3 Compensation of Commission Members and Alternates. Commission

Members or Alternates attending and participating in any meeting of the Commission, a Standing

Cornmittee, or any extemal committee where such Commission Member or Altemate serves as

the appointed or designated representative of Alameda CTC-oursu¿¿tlo SealionSl0 oflhir
aærra:ie1jo{s, shall be compensated at the rate of $225 for each such meeting, plus travel

costs at the per diem rate of $25. l!¡X,*irås¡a*din¡':*l1=tli*g-1o+r:*1+"a4,'ìa-ri*+ú+:ril+i*kal+ e

e.-ric-¡l-\.t -l{Å-e¡-+{åÁ1,\44. *¡-[*nl*i¡¡s'¡*-M<*¡r]æ**ry',.lþr¿il{*-s']:*llti¡.t irJ€-€try

€.r:11ill-':!;íl+i,oñlir:. nler"iÌ*65*1-1{1lÂ,.*;l'r!{.ì/.ì&4,,1' -s;hich-¿r*:*g'lile*x:l*r':'c*t'ì-y' ''*àll;<x
ix;¡+edrxc4r.'åei:o;l;r;.*"tt"*-¿x}.-n'rs:lirlg'l's¡-1"1*eh-t rtïe{"ll*{r.;:-'i5ìrll'..ra$þ+t$dci'{hìli{;}¡k}

4.4 Powers Reserved to Commission. The matters not delegated to the Executive

Director but rather specifically reserved for the Commission include adoption ofthe Annual

Budget, establishment of strategy and policies for Aiameda CTC, and succession planning for
the Executive Director.

4.5 Commission Directions to Staff through Executive Director. Neither the

Commission nor any Commission Member or Alternate shall give orders or directions to any

staff member except by and through the Executive Director. This shall not prohibit the

10

i?r¡et 
' 
ùl4).-rJjarJet¿1?d At !,b! ]¿¿U; Page 65



Commission, Commission Members or Altemates from contacting Staff members for purposes

ofresponse or inquiry, to obtain information, or as authorized by the Executive Director.

4.6 Power, Authority and Duty of the Executive Director. The Commission
delegates to the Executive Director al1 matters necessary for the day-to-day management of
Alameda CTC, except matters specifically reserved for the Commission herein. The Executive
Director shall, on behalf of Alameda CTC, be responsible for instituting those methods,
procedures and systems of operations and management which, in his/her discretion, shall best

accomplish the mission and goals of Alameda CTC. Without limitation, the Executive Director
shall have the power, authority, and duty to do each ofthe following:

4.6.1 To serve as the chief executive officer of Alameda CTC and to be

responsible to the Commission for the proper administration of all Alameda CTC affairs.

4,6.2 To prepare and submit an annual budget, and such amendments thereto
as may be necessary, to the Commission for its approval.

4.6.3 To prepare and submit an annual salary and benefits plan, and such

amendments thereto as may be necessary, to the Commission for its approval.

4.6.4 To administer the personnel system of Alameda CTC, including hiring,
controlling, supervising, promoting, transfering, suspending with or without pay or discharging
any employee, including but not limited to determination of a staffing plan and determination of
each employee's level of salary, subject to conformance with the Annual Budget and the salary
and benefit plan established from time to time by the Commission.

4,6.5 To prepare periodic reporls updating the Commission on financial and
project status, as well as other activities of Alameda CTC and Staff

4.6.6 To approve and execute contracts on behalfofAlameda CTC following
such approvals as may be required hereunder, subject to compliance with the Procurement Policy
and any other applicable direction or policy of the Commission, and in accord with the Annual
Budget.

4.6.7 To see that all rules, regulations, ordinances, policies, procedures and

resolutions of Alameda CTC are enforced.

4.6.8 To accept and consent to deeds or grants conveying any interest in or
easement upon real estate to Alameda CTC pursua¡t to Government Code Section 27281 and to
prepare and.execute certificates of acceptances therefor from time to time as the Executive
Director determines to be in furtherance of the purposes olthe Commission. Such authority shall
be limited to actions ofa ministerial nature necessary to carry out conveyances authorized by the
Commission.

4.6.9 To designate, in writing, the Commission Engineer and such
Commission Engineer's authorized delegees. Any such designations will remain in effect until
modified or revoked by the Executive Director.

1l

. ".44ux-il.f+jL4!Y4::l- Page 66



4.7 Power, Authority and Duty of the Commission Engineer. The Commission
Engineer shall do the following:

4.7.1 Sign plans for conformarce with project requirements and design

exceptions.

4.7,2 Certi$ matters related to utiiities and rights-of-way in connection with
right-of-way prog¡ams approved by the Commission.

4.7.3 Approve construction contract change orders (CCOs) a¡d other

documents which require, or recommend, the signature of an Alameda CTC representative with a
Califomia Professional Civil Engineering license, all in accordance with the applicable
consÍuction program manual.

4.8 Power, Authority and Duty of the Chair and Vice Chair

4.8.1 The Chair shall preside over all meetings of the Commission. ln the

absence of the Chair, the Vice Chair shall serve as and have the authority of the Chair. In the

event ofabsence ofboth the Chair and Vice Chair or their inability to act, the members present

shall select one oftheir members to act as Chair Pro Tempore, who, while so acting, shall have

the authority of the Chair.

4.8.2 The Chair shall appoint all members, and select the chair and vice-chair,
of each Standing Committee. In making srich appointments, the Chair shall endeavor to include

members flom all four geographic areas on each Standing Committee.

4.8.3 The Chair and Vice Chair shall serve as voting ex-officio members of
each Standing Committee.

4.8.4 In urgent situations where Commission action is impractical or
impossible, the Chair may take and communicate positions on behalf of Alameda CTC regarding

legislative matters. The Chair shall report to the Commission and the applopriate Standing

Committee at the next meeting ofeach said body regarding any such actions taken by the Chair.

4.9 Power, Authority and Dufy of the Standing Committees.

4.9.1 The following general provisions apply to each ofthe Standing
Committees:

4.9.1.1 Ali rnembers of the Stalding Comrnittees shall be

Commission Members, and shall be appointed by the Chair after consultation ü¡ith the Members

and solicitation of information regarding each Member's interests. Appointments to the

Standing Committees shall occur when a vaca¡cy occÌrs, or as otherwise needed or desired.

Upon the removal or resignation of a Commission Member, such Commission Member shall

cease to be a member of any Standing Committee.

4.9.1.2 Each membe¡ of a Standing Committee shall carry one vote.

12

x, y t ¡.-,xác c.¡ttø1q1d!d!uU a!:t-4 1 I Page 67



4.9.1.3 The Standing Committees may meet as committees of the

whole with respect to the Commission.

4.9.1.4 Whether or not a Standing Committee meets as a committee of
the whole, no recommendation by a Standing Committee shall be deemed an action of the

Commission, except with respect to any actions that the Standing Committee may be specifically

I authorized to approve by th-e Cornmission.+.''i ";.
I

4.9.1.5 Unless specifically stated otherwise, a1l actions of the

Standing Committees are advisory and consist of recommendations to the Commission.

4.9.1.6 All Commission Members shall be notified of the time and

date of Standing Committee meetings. However, Commission Members and Altemates who are

not members of a given Standing Committee may attend such meetings as members of the

public, including sitting with other members of public rather than with the Standing Committee

members, neither voting nor participating in discussions except as a member of the public.

| 4,9,2 The lun*1ir*¡;'¿¡ne{-a*rht*þntdta$ ru!&bl!¡e ir4sdglio&of the

Finance and Administration Committee (FAC) are as foliows:

4.9.2.1 Alameda CTC operations and performance.

4.9.2.2 Human resoulces and personnel policies and procedures.

4.9.2.3 AdministrativeCode.

4.9.2.4 Salary and benefits.

4.9.2.5 Procurement policies and procedures.

4.9.2.6 Procu¡ement of administrative contracts-oqijclçgatqdlQlhe

&:eulúvel)_ i,roctet:.

4.9.2.7 Contract preference plograms for entities such as local
business enterprises, small lo-q¿¡_business enterprises and disabled business enterprises, including
consideration of paûicipation reports.

4.9.2.8 Bid protests and complaints related to adminishative contract
procurement.

4.9.2.9 Annual budget and financial reports.

4.9,2.10 Investment policy and reports.

4.9.2.11 Audit reports, financial reporting, intemal controls and risk
management.

4.9.2.12 Annual work program.

13

r. at+r. \, 4 a t ; -1e g!4rtþ¿gtLþ!qa:3*4Þ Page 68



4.9.2.13 Other matters as assigned by the Commission or Chair.

4.9,3 The .l*i*xxþ*;-*xla¿*rçrì¡-i-matters vqd!! t of the
Planning, Policyrand Legislation Committee (PPLC) are as follows:

4.9.3.1 Congestion Management Program (CMP).

4,9,3.2 Countywide Transporlation Plan (CWTP).

4.9.3.3 Federal, state, regional and local hansportation a¡d land-use

planning policies.

4.9.3.4 Transportation and land use planning studies and policies.

4.9.3.5 Amendments to the 1986 Transoorfqtþn-Exrend

2OO0-jllu¡spo¡!¡li¡nExpenditure Plan or the ã.1*tl2Ql:!TransBo¡La!.o.n Expenditure $i*r+sPlan,

and development ofnew Expenditure Plans.

4.9.3.6 Amendments to the VRF Expenditure Plan.

4.9.3.7 Transit oriented development, priority development areas

projects and programs.

4.9.3.8 Annuallegislativeprogram.

4.9,3.9 State and Federal legislative matters.

4.9.3.10 General and targeted outreach programs (public information,
media relations, and public participation).

| 1.9.3.11 Advisory eolll,*ri.i{wrÇq:rll@q' -b..vl-arvlperformance and

effectiveness.

4-93-12 Prceu[enrcnt-o I plannins contrtiö
ljxcçulir c I ) ìrec lor.

4.r¿-13 .u)-jlê?Other matters as assigned by the Commission or

Chair.

4.9.4 The.1,arcåieas¿¡*d-.&HâL,ede-E¡Uff r&rllr,irúhqi!{sdrçliatofthe
Programs and Projects Committee (PPC) are as follows, subject to the provisions of Section

4.9.5 regarding the functions and authority ofthe I-580 PC :

4.9.4.1 Local, state, ACCMA Transportation Improvement Program
(TIP), TFCA vehicle registration fee programs, and Expenditure Plan programs and projects.

. 4.9.4.2 Local, state and federally funded projects and funding
programs.

T4

*,.*:; *:¡ tí x., tt¡_uan:tL4etl rrt-;VlL:.d."!¿l¿ Page 69



4.9.4.3

4.9.4.4

Annual Strategic Plan for programs and projects.

Funding requests from project sponsors and other eligible

Paratransit services programs and projects.

Bicycle and pedestrian projects and programs.

Funding allocations to the various transportation programs and

Measure B, 2000 Measure B, 2014-[4:asure ÈB and the

eron|:;r,.{"r.n.x:r,:*.ie**àr -tg¡lc,i{*;-PlQqulelttçq-,1-olengineering

recrprents.

4.9.4.5

4.9.4.6

4.9.4.7

I projects funded from the original
Vehicle Registration Fee.

4.9.4.8 Eminent domain proceedings, subject to the provisions of
Section 4.1.9, pursuant to which resolutions ofnecessity shall be heard by the Commission
without prior Standing Committee review.

4.9.4.9

4.9.4.10

Environmental evaluations.

and construction contracts not delegated to the Executive Director.

4.9.4.L1 Good faith efforts policies and procedures.

4.9.4.12 Bid protests and complaints regarding engineering and

conshuction conûact procurement.

4.9.4.t3 Other matters as assigned by the Commission or Chair.

4.9.5 The lìl*t¿kxx¡¡*L¡*&t*{{}'@ofthe I-580
Exlre$iLâne Policy Committee (I-580 PC) are as follows:

4.9.5.1 Receive I-580 Express Lane Project updates from staff and

others.

4.9.5.2 Consider staff recommendations regarding I-580 Express Lane
projects, and forward such recommendations for Commission action.

4.9.5.3 Loca1, state and federal funding for I-580 Express Lane
projects.

4.9.5.4 Annual Funding Plan for I-580 Express Lane Projects.

4.9.5.5 Funding allocations to the I-580 Express Lane Projects.

4.9.5.6 Eminent domain proceedings for I-580 Express Lane Projects,

I subject to provision of Section 4-1.-tr-1,f1-9, pursuant to \ryhich resolutions of necessity shall be

heard by the Commission without prior Standing Committee review.

15

t,+ : \..,ì ) :. at.,s!-sutgt!*tstrl!!!!r:!¿1þ Page 70



4.9.5.7

4.9.s.8

Environmental evaluations for I-580 Express Lane projects.

Éìir{+*rlprocr utråentJì#-Proçu¡emqnrl o L specifi c engineedng
and construction contracts for I-580 Express Lane projects not &4e!i,{-i€È@lega!ctþ the
Executive Director.

4.9.5.9 Good faith efforts policies and procedures for I-580 Express
Lane projects

4.9.5.10 Bid protests and complaints regarding engineering and
construction contract procwement for I-580 Express Lane projects.

4.9.5.11 Other matters as assigned by Commission or Chair.

ARTICLE 5
ADVISORY AND EXTERNAL COMMITTEES

S J -' - -{,:r*"riir*¡r*xr¡*r¡f-l,xì;{i*g-4d+.isçn-(xxa.¡¡rì4M

eÌj*{€.fl{ìr!a-€.fi¡çrupxxtlt*:ld{-*nel-un{e*.*e-lig¡*li*¡ii¡*tle¡¿o¡r,¿ine*r,'tl¡r*¡¡¡ise-

S¡4 6r it ff ô,ì $-lÅ/-r*¿c*d of¡-Ë$r'1n*3rÕe.-*1c-
ei*ê11ã*2Q{}0-l*¡e*dit**e-Þ1an-;hal{'e.e**i*t*e+t**ç*l{ d¿'lieg-a*te{a:**titxx-*s
iie:;,:ril¡c<i¡ì:er*íå-r'¡i*¡-¡ ei*¡eçte-the*ê0{l$xpeileli{*re-Fla.¡t-a.¡rr.l'*l,ra.ll-l*we+þe r***æ&erskþ
¡e*p!;ct+':exct*

5J Â.clY$*o-@l-o.n,;hêll.!eIçspoqsJþJ.e&È
a¿q,tjnq and ê$q4rtng t

52 S.3Àla;lre<i*"{br;r *-,,.:ilr** *¡*:.*al i*:r.Å-rir.'isr,*a*- {:*n+:*irre ¿- '4l l:i;\Ç-41ü¿rd¿
Countv fransnorta
eom¡ltlcd,ÀClAÇ)shall be composed of staff representatives from the planning and public
works departments (where applicable), from each of the following: Alameda CTC, each City, the
County, each Member Transit Agency, the Livermore Amador Valley Transit Agency, the Port
of Oakla¡d, the Metropolitan Transportation Commission, the Association of Bay Area
Govemments, and Caltrans. ACTAC may f'orm subcommittees as necessary. The Executive
Director or hislher designee shall preside over the meetings of the ACTAC.

5.3 lìrevcle ¡rur!-teilpstriân Adyiro -TheÈPÂl:¿s-odgilallv 
qrs¿.dsd

bv .tCllA-EUa continuo
blk i¡giné.Lameda-Cqlu¡-v*- eLAe-Eçlobcis a-{iyis€ Alameda eTe,ancl slalf !¡ihc devclqptne¡rt
¿u¡dj¡:p-lprue ntation of þicvcle a uu,¿loJa¡Lwidc-elart ÞLo-gla[r.
The gP-eC shall tlàve tlrg
L..rLinrc ln¡'l shall have llresner:ific roler.)sct bv the Colnrnission and Alameda CfC staff fiom
tirìrElolìjrle,

16

'+. , -.,',¿! '!!r.!!Ò,1!hç, -i,.]!,lj Page 71



5.¡ Inrlc¡¡cuclent Wltc l-regultcd byjllc
L00-lats¡rltalj-c¡ß-ExB,cr:clj-twp l.Lan-slulleonlirrrc 4r-üsl.W-kflþcrrvc¿s oll! .1-2q!t
fne tWC lnall lav,e ¿tl

Itqaspsl:l-atiÕ-ÌrEx)sl]d ¡e P¡!.n utitb reslccl there to. sh-all have

LWC with rcspecr to rlr. 20lll rarrsgL)r:Lal ion Frpenditule
adoge¿ ¡v tne Comn*s

55 gara1etIui1Ád¡¿iro.rry-anÈBlzuLnine-Cqmndttee. l'hc
cæatçd "þ+.4Ç'!JA-a"pd con
f'or_ scûirrrs un,l ¡'.'onls_¡jllr disa bjljûes_lo_¿ddrcs¡ nlrnning rurd¡oordrnrliorjssugs_rcgrrding
paratraryúsrrf+'s,jl.Alarp!l1la{o!¡1nl IAPCQmembers adviseAl -onl¡e
develo;æ¡nt ar¿ ll¡ol
lAle0¡Ìlalllavctbeln-cr:ûbc csm¡losjtionas establis
tir¡e;,ld¡l:al harc¡hq sræcific-Lobls),qglby,the Conmìssion dìd-Alffi
fulo_lmq

5-6 $"4Other Advisory Committees. The Commission shall establish and appoint
such ¿rN'.4*.'¡py*;¡rl¡riäc<*Âô¿i$!!Lle€û:0ti1eçtas it deems necessary, and as may be required
by the Expenditure Plans or applicable statutes.

t-
I S¿ l.iCompensation of Advisory Committee Members and Alternates. Any

person appointed as a member or alternate to, and participating as a voting representative at a

meeting of, any Advisory Committee shall be compensated at the rate of $50 for each such
meeting. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no compensation shall be payable hereunder to any

representative of ACTAC.

I S¡ $"5Geographic Area Meetings. Meetings of representatives (including
Commission Members, Alternates and ACTAC members) from a Geographic Area may be

called on an as-needed basis by the Chair, the Executive Director, or by two or more
Commission Members from a Geographic Area. Such meetings are intended to provide an

opportunity to discuss matters of common interest and to advise the Commission on matters

affècting the Geographic Area.

5-g å.4Staff Support. The Executive Director shall designate one or more Staff
members to aid each ¡*d..i.ç*¡y-':;ri:rnìtrec-fuþ!4eog&@in its work.

SJll 5'SRepresentation on External Committees and Agencies. The Chair or the
Commission may designate either Commission Members, Altemates, or members of Staff, as

may be deemed appropriate, to serye as the designated representative(s) of Alameda CTC on any

outside committees or agencies. Such representative(s) shall make a good faith eff'ort to
represent the position of the Commission on any matter on which the Commission has taken an

official position or has otherwise taken formal action. Such appointments shall include
provisions for the designation of alternates and of term of the appointment where appropriate.

t7

¡+ -. ¡ r, 
".,+.-., 

l, ;.t¡s,tue*l¡a&t ¿!t].!4)!2!.^2!Ji Page 72



 
 
 

 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150528\Consent Items\6.8_2016_STIP\6.8_Memo_2016STIP_Final.docx 

 

Memorandum 6.8 

 

DATE: May 21, 2015 

SUBJECT: 2016 State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP): Development 
Schedule and Principles 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the 2016 STIP Development Schedule and Principles. 

 
Summary  

The State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) is a multi-year capital improvement 
program of transportation projects on and off the State Highway System, funded with 
revenues from the State Highway Account and other funding sources administered by the 
California Transportation Commission (CTC). The overall process for the development of 
the STIP begins with the development of the STIP Fund Estimate.  The STIP Fund Estimate 
serves as the basis for determining the county shares for the STIP and the amounts 
available for programming each fiscal year during the five-year STIP period.  Typically, 
any new STIP programming capacity is made available in the last two years of the five 
year STIP period. The 2016 STIP will cover fiscal years 2016-17 to 2020-21 with 2019-20 and 
2020-21 being the two new fiscal years added in the 2016 STIP cycle. 

Staff is requesting Commission approval of the programming schedule and principles by 
which the Alameda County share of the 2016 STIP will be programmed. 

Discussion 

The STIP is a multi-year capital improvement program of transportation projects on and off 
the State Highway System, funded with revenues from the State Highway Account and other 
funding sources. Senate Bill 45 (SB 45) was signed into law in 1996 and had significant impacts 
on the regional transportation planning and programming process. The statute delegated 
major funding decisions to local level and allows the Alameda CTC to have a more active 
role in selecting and programming transportation projects to be funded with the Alameda 
County share of each STIP cycle. SB 45 changed the transportation funding structure; 
modified the transportation programming cycle, program components, and expenditure 
priorities. 

The STIP is composed of two sub-elements: 75 percent of the STIP funds going towards the 
Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP) and 25 percent going to the 
Interregional Transportation Improvement Program (ITIP).  

Page 73



 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150528\Consent Items\6.8_2016_STIP\6.8_Memo_2016STIP_Final.docx 

 

The Alameda CTC adopts and forwards a proposed program of RTIP projects to the 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) for each STIP cycle. As the Regional 
Transportation Planning Agency (RTPA) for the nine-county Bay Area, the MTC is responsible 
for developing the regional priorities for the RTIP. The MTC approves the region’s RTIP and 
submits it to the California Transportation Commission (CTC) for inclusion in the STIP.  

The California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) is responsible for developing the ITIP. 
Alameda CTC coordinates with Caltrans District 4 and the MTC to identify potential projects 
to be included in the ITIP. 

The overall process for the development of the STIP begins with the development of the STIP 
Fund Estimate.  The STIP Fund Estimate serves as the basis for determining the county shares 
for the STIP and the amounts available for programming each fiscal year during the five-year 
STIP period.  Typically, the county shares represent the amount of new STIP funding made 
available in the last two years of a given STIP period. 

Historically, the amount of funding available to Alameda County in a given STIP cycle has 
varied from highs in the $200 million range to $0. The Alameda County shares for the last 
three STIP cycles have ranged from $10 to $35 million (Attachment A). 

The 2016 STIP Fund Estimate will establish the basis by which the Alameda County Share for 
the 2016 STIP is determined.  The Alameda County share represents the amount of new 
programming capacity that will be available for Alameda County projects in the 2016 STIP 
cycle.  The CTC is scheduled to approve the final assumptions for the 2016 STIP Fund Estimate 
in May 2015, the draft Fund Estimate in June 2015 and a final Fund Estimate in August 2015.    

The MTC region’s STIP proposal (i.e. the RTIP) is due to the CTC in December 2015.  
Correspondingly, the counties’ proposals are due to the MTC in late October 2015.  The 2016 
STIP Development Schedule (Attachment B) assumes the Alameda CTC Board will approve 
Alameda County’s 2016 RTIP in October 2015. 

As in past STIP cycles, the CTC and MTC are not scheduled to adopt the final STIP policies 
until late summer. The development of the Alameda County RTIP proposal will have to be 
closely coordinated with the statewide and regional development of the 2016 STIP policies. 
The CTC schedule calls for adoption of the 2016 STIP in April 2016. 

Staff is requesting Commission approval of the programming schedule and principles by 
which the Alameda County share of the 2016 STIP will be programmed (Attachment C).  The 
proposed principles for developing the 2016 RTIP Project List include consideration of 
previously approved STIP commitments.  A number of commitments related to the 
programming of Alameda County STIP shares have been approved beginning with funds 
programmed in the 2008 STIP cycle.  These commitments include MTC Resolution 3434 
projects and funds required to payback Measure B advances for project development work 
on Proposition 1B Infrastructure Bond funded projects. Local funds committed to the I-Bond 
project development work helped leverage and deliver approximately $500 million of state 
funded projects. 

Page 74



 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150528\Consent Items\6.8_2016_STIP\6.8_Memo_2016STIP_Final.docx 

 

Some of the previous STIP commitments have been fulfilled, and some remain for 
consideration in the upcoming 2016 STIP cycle.  The summary attached to the proposed 
principles provides a status of the previously approved STIP commitments.  It is anticipated 
that the previously approved STIP commitments, or portions of those commitments, may be 
fulfilled by the programming of funds other than STIP funds in the context of the proposed 
uniform approach to programming all sources of transportation funding available through 
the Alameda CTC. 

The proposed principles for the development of the 2016 STIP are intended to be consistent 
with the Comprehensive Investment Plan (CIP) process being employed by the Alameda 
CTC to improve the connection between the planning and programming of transportation 
funding in Alameda County.  The 2016 STIP development cycle will run concurrently with the 
Countywide Transportation Plan (CTP) Update and CIP processes.  The principles for the 2016 
STIP development are intended to reflect the goals and objectives established by the policy 
framework and the CTP/CIP process.  The project selection criteria is intended to provide a 
measure of the degree to which a proposed project, or other activity intended to be funded 
by funding programmed by the Alameda CTC, achieves or advances the goals and 
objectives described in the Countywide Transportation Plan. 

 

Fiscal Impact:  There is no significant fiscal impact expected to result from the recommended 
action. 

Staff Contacts 

James O’Brien, Project Controls Team 

Vivek Bhat, Senior Transportation Engineer 

 

Attachments: 

A. Alameda CTC Historic STIP Programming Levels 
B. Draft 2016 STIP Development Schedule 
C. Draft Principles for the Development of the 2016 STIP Project List 

Page 75

mailto:jobrien@alamedactc.org
mailto:vbhat@alamedactc.org


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 76



5.1_Attach_A_Ala CTC STIP_Programming History.xls

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

200

220

1992 1994 1996 1998 2000 2002 2004 2006 2008 2010 2012 2014

$ Millions 

Year 

ALAMEDA CTC HISTORIC STIP PROGRAMMING LEVELS 

STIP

6.8A

Page 77



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 78



 

Attachment B 

Page 1 of 1 

Attachment B 

Draft 2016 STIP Development Schedule 

Alameda CTC Activity Date MTC/ CTC Activity 

 

 Approve 2016 STIP Schedule 

 Alameda CTC Approve 2016 STIP 

Principles  

 

May 2015 
 CTC Approve Final Fund 

Estimate Assumptions 

 

June 2015 

 CTC Releases Draft Fund 

Estimate  

 CTC Releases Draft STIP 

Guidelines 

 

 

 

July 2015 
 MTC Reviews Draft RTIP 

Policies 

 

 August 2015 
 CTC Approves Fund Estimate 

 CTC Adopts STIP Guidelines 

 

 Draft RTIP Proposal to Alameda 

CTC Commission 

 

September 2015 
 MTC Approves Final RTIP 

Policies  

 

 Final RTIP Proposal to Alameda 

CTC Committees and Commission 

 

October 2015  

 
November 2015  MTC Approves RTIP 

 
December 2015  RTIP due to CTC 

 
April 2016  CTC Adopts 2016 STIP 

 

6.8B

Page 79



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 80



Attachment C 

Page 1 of 2 

Attachment C 

Draft Principles for the Development of the 2016 STIP Project List 

 All sponsors of currently programmed STIP projects will be required to provide updated 

project information related to the project definition, status, schedule, cost and funding, 

and intended benefits. 

 It is anticipated that any new funding programmed in the 2016 STIP will be made 

available in Fiscal Years 2019-20 and 2020-21. 

 Any project submitted for funding must be consistent with the Countywide 

Transportation Plan and satisfy all requirements for programming into the STIP.  

 Projects recommended for STIP programming must demonstrate readiness to meet 

applicable programming, allocation and delivery deadlines associated with STIP 

programming. 

 Consideration of the following are proposed for the prioritization required for the 

development of the 2016 STIP project list:  

 The principles and objectives set forth in the “Policy Framework for Planning, 

Programming and Monitoring” adopted by the Alameda CTC to improve the 

connection between the planning and programming related to transportation 

funding in Alameda County; 

 Previous commitments for STIP programming approved by the Alameda CTC (as 

described in the attached Table A); 

 The degree to which a proposed project, or other activity intended to be funded by 

transportation funding programmed by the Alameda CTC, achieves or advances 

the goals and objectives included in the Countywide Transportation Plan; and 

 Maintaining a balance of projects in various phases of project delivery with viable 

project implementation strategies based on project-specific information provided 

by applicants related to the following aspects of project delivery: 

 The current phase of project delivery, i.e. planning/scoping, preliminary 

engineering/environmental, design, right of way, or construction; 

 The status of environmental clearance; 

 The project cost/funding plan by phase; 

 The potential for phasing of initial segment(s) which are fully-funded and 

provide independent benefit; and 

 Potential impediments, i.e. risks, to successful project implementation in 

accordance with the proposed project delivery schedule. 

 

 

6.8C

Page 81



 

Attachment C 

Page 2 of 2 

 

Table A:  Summary of Previously Adopted Alameda County STIP-RIP Remaining 

Commitments 

Project Commitment 

Amount 

 

($ x 1,000) 

Remaining 

Commitment 

Amount 

($ x 1,000) 

Notes 

Alameda County I-Bond 

Projects  

8,000 0  $8M approved by Alameda CTC July 2012. 

 Prioritized programming included in 

previous ACCMA Board actions 

 $8M fulfilled in STIP 2014  

Route 24 Corridor – Caldecott 

Settlement Projects 

8,000 2,000  $2M fulfilled in STIP 2008 

 $2M fulfilled in STIP 2010 

 $2M fulfilled in STIP 2014 

AC Transit Bus Rapid Transit 

Project 

40,000 13,125  $40M included with Resolution 08-018 Dec. 

2008 

 $23.125 remaining per Revised Reso 14-007 

 $10 million available from Measure BB 

I-880 Broadway/Jackson 

Interchange 

3,000 500  $3M included with Resolution 08-018 Dec. 

2008 

 $2.5M fulfilled in 2012 STIP 

I-880 Corridor Project 1,900 900  $1.9M included with Resolution 08-018 

Dec. 2008 

 $1M fulfilled in 2012 STIP 

 

Page 82



 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150528\Consent 
Items\6.9_680_Express_Lane_ContractActions_ETCC\6.9_SBExpressLane_Contract_ETCC_AllocationAction_04152015_FINAL_w.d
ocx 

 

Memorandum 6.9 

 

DATE: May 21, 2015 

SUBJECT: I-680 Southbound Express Lane Operations (PN 950.0) – 2000 Measure B 
Funding Allocation, Terminate Agreement No. A08-001 and Execute 
New Professional Services Agreement with Electronic Transaction 
Consultants Corporation 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve and authorize the Executive Director to: 
1) Allocate $4,500,000 of 2000 Measure B funds to the project; 
2) Terminate Agreement No. A08-001 with Electronic Transaction 

Consultants Corporation on June 30, 2015; and 
3) Execute a new Agreement with Electronic Transaction 

Consultants Corporation for Operations and Maintenance, and   
Capital Improvement services for a not-to-exceed amount of 
$3,100,000, subject to I-680 Sunol Smart Carpool Lane Joint 
Powers Authority approval of FY 2015-16 Operating Budget. 

 

Summary  

The Southbound I-680 Express Lane Project (“Project”) opened to traffic in September 
2010.  The Alameda CTC, as the managing agency of the I-680 Sunol Smart Carpool Lane 
Joint Powers Authority (Sunol JPA) accepted the final systems for electronic toll 
system/system integration on April 30, 2012. The Project has since moved into the 
operation and maintenance phase.  The fiscal year (FY) 2015-16 will be the fourth year 
when the toll funds will support a significant portion of the Project’s operating expenses, 
while part of the operating expenses and all of the capital improvements will be 
subsidized by Project grant funds (2000 Measure B).  This staff report describes the need to 
allocate the remaining $4,500,000 of programmed 2000 Measure B funds to the project, 
terminate the current agreement and enter into a new agreement that supports 
improved technology and operations of the express lane. 

Background 

The 2000 Transportation Expenditure Plan includes $19,697,000 of Measure B funds 
programmed for the Project.  Allocation of remaining $4,500,000 of the programmed 
Measure B funds is necessary to support the capital improvements and continued 
maintenance and operation of the toll facility, included in Action 3 below. 

Page 83



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150528\Consent 
Items\6.9_680_Express_Lane_ContractActions_ETCC\6.9_SBExpressLane_Contract_ETCC_AllocationAction_04152015_FINAL_w.doc
x 

 

In 2008, Alameda CTC (formerly ACCMA) retained Electronic Transaction Consultants 
Corporation (ETCC) to provide electronic toll system (ETS)/system integration services, 
including planning, design, and development/installation of software and hardware to 
implement toll system for the Project.  In addition to the services listed, the consultant 
service Agreement (A08-001) included 1-year warranty period services and three 1-year 
optional maintenance services for the facility operation.  The Project’s ETS design, 
development and installation were funded by a mixture of federal, state and local funds.  
Federal and state funds were expended prior to the final system acceptance (on April 30, 
2012, as listed above) and closed out by summer 2012.  

Due to the unique elements of the technology infrastructure associated with the Express 
Lanes Project it is customary in the toll industry to assume that the software and the 
associated integration of the hardware are proprietary to a toll operator (ETCC) and are 
considered specialty products, customized to incorporate the agency’s toll policies and 
business rules.  

Since the Project opened to traffic in September 2010, ETCC, as the agency’s toll 
operator, has been providing field operations and maintenance (O&M) support services 
that include field preventive and routine maintenance services for the ETS equipment, 
back office technical support for hardware and software, and software licensing to 
operate the express lane.  Per the direction of the Sunol JPA, the I-680 Southbound 
express lane will be modified to incorporate the same tolling equipment as planned for 
the I-580 express lanes to ensure consistency in express lane technology and use by 
commuters.  Due to the new elements, it is recommended that the existing contract be 
terminated and a new one entered into with the same vendor to ensure seamless 
continuity for O&M services while the new elements are added to the corridor.  

The following describes the history of the agreements and the new elements that will be 
added to the contract: Since its inception, the Agreement (A08-001) was amended 
twice, in May 2013 and June 2014 to include scope and budget for continued O&M 
services.  In the June 2014 amendment, the Program and Projects Committee (PPC) 
approved scope and budget for two fiscal year (FYs 2014-15 and 2015-16) O&M services, 
and extended the term of the Agreement to June 30, 2016, contingent upon Sunol JPA’s 
approval of its annual operating budget.  Since the three year optional operations 
services have concluded and all non-local fund sources have been expended, staff 
recommends termination of the existing agreement (A08-001) by June 30, 2015 (one year 
ahead of the Agreement expiration date) and transfer the remaining O&M scope of 
services and associated local funding to a new professional services agreement with 
ETCC for O&M services in FY 2015-16 in order to continue the administration of toll facility 
operations.   

Procuring these necessary O&M services through a standard contracting methods is not 
recommended, as it would entail budget, schedule and operational impacts associated 
with having an overlap in services by service providers (vendors), hardware non-

Page 84



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150528\Consent 
Items\6.9_680_Express_Lane_ContractActions_ETCC\6.9_SBExpressLane_Contract_ETCC_AllocationAction_04152015_FINAL_w.doc
x 

 

compatibility issues between the vendors, and development of new software and 
associated timeline for completion, which is expected to take over a year to incorporate 
project toll policies and business rules. 

The proposed new professional services agreement with ETCC will continue to provide the 
necessary O&M support services that include preventative and routine maintenance 
services for the electronic toll equipment, back office technical support for hardware and 
software, and software licensing to operate the express lane.  In addition, the services will 
include necessary capital improvements for ensuring consistency with the I-580 Express 
Lanes, and a new Disaster Recovery infrastructure.  This new Disaster Recovery 
infrastructure services will support recovery of traffic and revenue data, in the event of 
any natural disaster, and eventually be leveraged to support a common platform for 
both the I-580 and I-680 Express Lanes, 

The proposed capital improvement modifications would include the necessary 
modifications for trip building based on toll transponder read with FasTrak flex (also known 
as switchable) transponder and license plate reads.  The scope of services will include the 
design, development, testing and implementation of an image capture review system 
(ICRS) that will use these images as part of a trip building process, when no transponder is 
read at the toll gantries, consistent with the implementation of the I-580 Express Lanes.  
The image-based trip will be processed to possibly charge a toll when a matching 
account (an account matched with the license plate number) is found, or process a toll 
violation when no matching account is found.  This will be similar to the toll policies, 
business rules, processes, and procedures for the I-580 Express Lanes.  This ICRS process is 
expected to curtail toll violation and reduce revenue leakage.   In addition to developing 
an ICRS, the capital improvement scope includes procurement of additional hardware, 
modification of  existing hardware, software, installation, integration and testing of toll 
system; and interface with Bay Area Toll Authority Regional Customer Service Center for 
toll collection and customer services.   

Contract Status Work Description Initial 
Amendment Value 

Contract Total 

Original Contract 
(A08-001) 
December 2008 

Provide system integrator phase 
services, including development of 
the toll system and installation & 
commissioning of toll equipment 

$7,364,219 $7,364,219 

Amendment No. 1 
May 2013 

Supplement budget to provide 
O&M services for 1-year (FY 
2013/14) 

$200,000 $7,564,219 

Amendment No. 2 
June 2014 

Provide O&M services for 2 years 
(FYs 2014-15 & 2015-16) 

$1,800,000 $9,364,219 

Subject to approval of 
Action 1, listed below 

 <$1,000,000>(2) $8,364,219(1) 

Page 85



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150528\Consent 
Items\6.9_680_Express_Lane_ContractActions_ETCC\6.9_SBExpressLane_Contract_ETCC_AllocationAction_04152015_FINAL_w.doc
x 

 

Contract Status Work Description Proposed Budget  Proposed 
Contract Total 

Proposed New 
Agreement May 2015 

Provide O&M services for 1-year (FY 
2015-16) $1,000,000(2) 

 
$3,100,000 

Capital Improvement $2,100,000(3) 

Total Proposed Not to Exceed Amount $3,100,000 

(1) Agreement A08-001 value at early termination 
(2) $1 million was included in the approved Amendment No. 2, proposed to be moved to the new Agreement, 

contingent upon approval of Sunol JPA’s FY 2015-16 Operating Budget 
(3) Contingent upon approval of Sunol JPA’s FY 2015-16 Capital Budget 

Continued ETCC staff services are necessary for field maintenance, back office, and 
remote support for the dynamic pricing application.  The new professional services 
agreement with ETCC will: 1) Provide contract service for one year, from July 1, 2015 to 
June 30, 2016, and, 2) include compensation for its O&M services and Capital 
Improvement in FY 2015-16, for a total not-to-exceed amount of $3,100,000.   
Compensation for these services is subject to the approval of the FY 2015-16 Sunol JPA 
Operating Budget. 

Action 1:  

Allocate $4,500,000 of 2000 Measure B funds, made available for encumbrance and 
subsequent expenditure 

Action 2:  

Authorize the Executive Director to terminate the Agreement (A08-001) a year earlier than 
currently stipulated in the Agreement, and move the scope and approved budget to a new 
agreement, as listed in Action 3, below 

Action 3: 

Authorize the Executive Director to execute a new professional services Agreement with 
ETCC to provide services associated for O&M and capital improvements for consistent 
operation with the I-580 Express Lanes, subject to approval of Action 1, listed above.   

Fiscal Impact:   

Action 1: This action will encumber $4,500,000 in Measure B funds for subsequent expenditure. 

Action 2: There is no fiscal impact by this action. 

Action 3: The action will encumber $3,100,000 of Project grant and toll revenue funds for 
subsequent expenditure in FY 2015-16, subject to approval of Sunol JPA’s FY2015-16 
Operating Budget. 

Page 86



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150528\Consent 
Items\6.9_680_Express_Lane_ContractActions_ETCC\6.9_SBExpressLane_Contract_ETCC_AllocationAction_04152015_FINAL_w.doc
x 

 

Staff Contact  

Tess Lengyel, Deputy Director of Planning and Policy  

James O'Brien, Project Controls Team 

Arun Goel, Express Lane Operations 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 87

mailto:tlengyel@alamedactc.org
mailto:jobrien@alamedactc.org
mailto:agoel@alamedactc.org


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 88



 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150528\Consent Items\6.10_FY2014-
15_Sales_Tax_Budget_Update\6.10_FY14-15_Sales_Tax_Budget_Update_Staff_Report.docx 

 

 

Memorandum 6.10 

 

DATE: May 21, 2015 

SUBJECT: Measure B and Measure BB Sales Tax Budget Update for FY2014-15 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the following sales tax budget updates for FY2014-15: 

• Revised the Measure B sales tax revenue budget for FY2014-15 
to $132.5 million and increase the corresponding direct local 
distribution expenditures based on the formulas established in 
the 2000 transportation expenditure plan, and 

• Measure BB sales tax revenue budget for FY2014-15 of $30.0 
million and direct local distribution expenditures based on the 
formulas established in the 2014 transportation expenditure plan, 
$0.35 million for  special revenue project expenditures and 
capital project expenditures totaling $0.95 million. 

 

 

Summary  

It is recommended that the Commission approve:  

• An increase to the Alameda CTC’s Measure B sales tax revenue budget for FY2014-15 
from the currently adopted amount of $127.5 million to $132.5 million for an increase of 
$5.0 million and an increase in the corresponding direct local distribution expenditures 
based on the formulas established in the 2000 transportation expenditure plan, and 

• A Measure BB sales tax revenue budget for FY2014-15 of $30.0 million and the 
corresponding direct local distribution expenditures based on the formulas established 
in the 2014 transportation expenditure plan which are projected to be $14,600,838, 
$350,000 for special revenue project expenditures and capital project expenditures 
totaling $950,000. 

Background 

The proposed Measure B revenue increase is 3.9 percent higher than the currently adopted 
budget.  Based on receipts to date, sales tax revenues have out-performed the original 
projection in the budget by 4.5 percent.  Overall receipts in the 1st and 2nd quarters of the 
fiscal year were higher than budget by about 5.2 percent.  The receipts received over the 
last couple of months are estimates until the 3rd quarter adjustment to “true up” the amounts 
received to date is received in June.  This revised projection exceeds last fiscal year’s 

Page 89



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150528\Consent Items\6.10_FY2014-
15_Sales_Tax_Budget_Update\6.10_FY14-15_Sales_Tax_Budget_Update_Staff_Report.docx 

 

 

historical peak actual collection level of $127.1 million.  This revised sales tax projection will be 
included as a budget adjustment to the FY2014-15 budget, increasing projected revenues by 
$5.0 million and the corresponding direct local distribution budgeted expenditures based on 
the formulas established in the 2000 transportation expenditure plan.   

Measure BB sales tax revenues are projected to be $30.0 million for FY2014-15.  The Registrar 
of Voters costs incurred for the election of $1.3 million will come off the top of that amount 
leaving $28.7 million for allocation to the various funds with direct local distributions occurring 
from the Special Revenue Fund automatically as outlined in the 2014 transportation 
expenditure plan.  In addition, the Measure BB budget authorizes $0.35 million of special 
revenue project expenditures and $0.95 million of capital project expenditures in FY2014-15 
which were included in the Comprehensive Investment Plan (CIP) approved by the 
Commission in March.  Including special revenue project and capital project expenditures in 
the FY2014-15 budget is intended to encourage implementing agencies of capital projects 
eligible for Measure BB funding as outlined in the CIP to begin scoping work and develop 
deliverables on their projects as soon as possible (see Measure BB chart below).   

Measure BB 
FY2014-15 Proposed Budget 

     
  

Special Capital 
 

 
General  Revenue Projects 

 
 

Fund Fund Fund Total 
Beginning Fund Balance $0 $0 $0 $0 

     Revenues 
    Sales Tax Revenues 2,458,784  17,896,282  9,644,934  30,000,000  

     Expenditures 
    Election Costs 1,311,234  

  
1,311,234  

Direction Local Distributions 
 

14,600,838  
 

14,600,838  
Special Revenue Projects 

 
350,000  

 
350,000  

Capital Projects     950,000  950,000  
Total Expenditures 1,311,234  14,950,838  950,000  17,212,072  

     Net Change in Fund Balance 1,147,550  2,945,444  8,694,934  12,787,928  

     Ending Fund Balance $1,147,550 $2,945,444 $8,694,934 $12,787,928 
 
 
 

 

Page 90



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150528\Consent Items\6.10_FY2014-
15_Sales_Tax_Budget_Update\6.10_FY14-15_Sales_Tax_Budget_Update_Staff_Report.docx 

 

 

Fiscal Impact 

The proposed revision to Alameda CTC’s FY2014-15 Measure B sales tax revenue budget will 
provide additional resources of $5.0 million and authorize the corresponding direct local 
distribution expenditures based on the formulas established in the transportation expenditure 
plan.   

The FY2014-15 Measure BB proposed budget will provide $30.0 million of revenues and 
authorize $17.2 million of expenditures for a Measure BB ending fund balance of $12.8 million. 

Staff Contact  

Patricia Reavey, Director of Finance 

Page 91

mailto:preavey@alamedactc.org


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 92



 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150528\Consent 
Items\6.11_Reso_Authorizing_Examination_MBB_Records\6.11_MBB_Staff_Report_Reso_Auth_ED_to_Examine_Records.docx 

 

Memorandum 6.11 

 

DATE: May 21, 2015 

SUBJECT: Resolution Authorizing the Executive Director to Examine Measure BB 
Transaction (Sales) and Use Tax Records 

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt a resolution authorizing the Executive Director to Examine 
Measure BB Transaction (Sales) and Use Tax Records.  

 

 

Summary 

The adoption of a resolution authorizing the Executive Director to examine Measure BB 
transaction (sales) and use tax records will allow the Executive Director, or his designee, to 
request and receive detailed confidential information monthly on the specific 
transactions which account for the amount of sales tax dollars received in relation to 
Measure BB sales tax collections on a monthly basis. 

Background 

The California State Board of Equalization (BOE) requires that the Commission adopt a 
resolution authorizing the Executive Director, or his designee, to examine Measure BB 
transaction (sales) and use tax records before they will release confidential information 
regarding Measure BB transaction (sales) and use tax records to the Executive Director, or 
his designee.   

Fiscal Impact 

There is no fiscal impact.  

Attachments 

A. A Resolution Authorizing the Examination of Transactions (Sales) and Use Tax Records 

Staff Contact  

Patricia Reavey, Director of Finance and Administration 

 

Page 93

mailto:preavey@alamedactc.org


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 94



 
       ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION  

RESOLUTION 15-018 
 

A Resolution Authorizing the Examination of  
Transactions (Sales) and Use Tax Records 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Commission Chair 
Supervisor Scott Haggerty, District 1 
 
Commission Vice Chair 
Councilmember Rebecca Kaplan, 
City of Oakland 
 
AC Transit 
Director Elsa Ortiz 
 
Alameda County 
Supervisor Richard Valle, District 2 
Supervisor Wilma Chan, District 3 
Supervisor Nate Miley, District 4 
Supervisor Keith Carson, District 5 
 
BART 
Director Thomas Blalock 
 
City of Alameda 
Mayor Trish Spencer  
 
City of Albany 
Vice Mayor Peter Maas 
 
City of Berkeley 
Councilmember Laurie Capitelli 
 
City of Dublin 
Mayor David Haubert 
 
City of Emeryville 
Mayor Ruth Atkin 
 
City of Fremont 
Mayor Bill Harrison 
 
City of Hayward 
Mayor Barbara Halliday 
 
City of Livermore 
Mayor John Marchand 
 
City of Newark 
Councilmember Luis Freitas 
 
City of Oakland 
Vice Mayor Larry Reid 
 
City of Piedmont 
Mayor Margaret Fujioka 
 
City of Pleasanton 
Mayor Jerry Thorne  
 
City of San Leandro 
Mayor Pauline Cutter 
 
City of Union City 
Mayor Carol Dutra-Vernaci 
 
 
Executive Director 
Arthur L. Dao 
 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 2014-1 of the Alameda County 
Transportation Commission hereinafter called District and Section 7270 of 
the Revenue and Taxation Code, the District entered into a contract with 
the State Board of Equalization to perform all functions incident to the 
administration and operation of the Transactions and Use Tax Ordinance; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the District deems it desirable and necessary for authorized 
representatives of the District to examine confidential transactions and use 
tax records of the State Board of Equalization pertaining to transactions and 
use taxes collected by the Board for the District pursuant to that contract; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 7056 of the Revenue and Taxation Code sets forth certain 
requirements and conditions for the disclosure of Board of Equalization 
records and establishes criminal penalties for the unlawful disclosure of 
information contained in or derived from, the transactions and use tax 
records of the Board; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE IT IS RESOLVED AND ORDERED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.  That the Executive Director or other officer or employee of the 
District designated in writing by the Executive Director to the State Board of 
Equalization (hereafter referred to as Board) is hereby appointed to 
represent the District with authority to examine transactions and use tax 
records of the Board pertaining to transactions and use taxes collected for 
the District by the Board pursuant to the contract between the District and 
the Board.  The information obtained by examination of Board records shall 
be used only for purposes related to the collection of the District’s 
transactions and use taxes by the Board pursuant to the contract. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the information obtained by examination of 
Board records shall be used only for purposes related to the collection of 
District’s transactions and use taxes by the Board pursuant to the contracts 
between the District and Board. 

6.11A

Page 95



Alameda County Transportation Commission  
Resolution 15-017 

Introduced, approved and adopted this 28th day of May, 2015. 
 
AYES:   NOES:   ABSTAIN:  ABSENT: 
 
     

Scott Haggerty 
Chair, Alameda CTC 

   Vanessa Lee 
Clerk of the Commission 

 

Page 96



 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150528\Consent Items\6.12_FY2014-
15_3rd_Qtr_Investment_Report\6.12_FY14-15_Q3_Investment_Report.docx 

 

 

Memorandum 6.12
 

DATE: May 21, 2015 

SUBJECT: Alameda CTC FY2014-15 Third Quarter Investment Report 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the Alameda CTC FY2014-15 Third Quarter Investment Report 

 

 

Summary  

The Quarterly Investment Report (Attachment A) provides balance and average return 
on investment information for all cash and investments held by the Alameda CTC as of 
March 31, 2015.  The report also shows balances as of June 30, 2014 for comparison 
purposes.  The Portfolio Review for Quarter Ending March 31, 2015 (Attachment B) 
prepared by GenSpring Family Offices provides a review and outlook of current market 
conditions, an investment strategy to maximize return without compromising safety and 
liquidity, and an overview of the strategy used to develop the bond proceeds portfolio.  
Alameda CTC investments are in compliance with the adopted investment policy as of 
March 31, 2015. Alameda CTC has sufficient cash flow to meet expenditure requirements 
over the next six months. 

Activity 

The following are key highlights of cash and investment information as of March 31, 2015: 

• As of March 31, 2015, total cash and investments held by the Alameda CTC was 
$339.3 million with bond proceeds accounting for $41.7 million or 12.3% of the total. 

• The ACTA investment balance decreased $0.6 million or 0.5% from the prior year-
end balance due to capital projects expenditures.  The ACTIA investment balance 
decreased $50.3 million or 21.8% also due to capital project expenditures.  The 
ACCMA investment balance decreased $1.9 million or 5.0% primarily due to an 
increase in reimbursable project expenditures which had not yet been recovered 
as of March 31, 2015. 

• Investment yields have increased slightly with the average return on investments for 
the third quarter at 0.30% compared to the prior year’s average return of 0.24%.  
Return on investments were projected for the FY2014-15 budget year at varying 
rates ranging from 0.3% - 0.5% depending on investment type.  

Page 97



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150528\Consent Items\6.12_FY2014-
15_3rd_Qtr_Investment_Report\6.12_FY14-15_Q3_Investment_Report.docx 

 

 

Fiscal Impact 

There is no fiscal impact.  

Attachments 

A. Consolidated Investment Report as of March 31, 2015 
B. Portfolio Review for Quarter Ending March 31, 2015 (provided by GenSpring Family 

Offices) 
C. Fixed Income Portfolio and CDARS Investment Statements as of March 31, 2015 

Staff Contact 

Patricia Reavey, Director of Finance 

Lily Balinton, Accounting Manager 

Page 98

mailto:preavey@alamedactc.org
mailto:lbalinton@alamedactc.org


Un-Audited
ACTA Investment Balance Interest earned

Investment Balance Interest earned Approx. ROI  Budget Difference June 30, 2014 FY 2013-2014
   Bank Accounts 4,674,056$                3,915$                  0.11% 454,248$                  6                               
   State Treasurer Pool (LAIF) (4) 17,925,861                73,795                  0.55% 38,053,968               105,048                    
   Investment Advisor (1) (4) 91,379,242                235,411                0.34% 76,075,126               329,264                    
   Loan to ACCMA 10,000,000                -                        -                          10,000,000               -                            
ACTA Total 123,979,159$            313,121$              0.34% 326,250$            (13,129)$            124,583,342$           434,317$                  

Approx. ROI 0.35%
$212,777,522 $12,425,608

Un-Audited
ACTIA Investment Balance Interest earned

Investment Balance Interest earned Approx. ROI  Budget Difference June 30, 2014 FY 2013-2014
   Bank Accounts 30,499,621$              8,910$                  0.04% 6,352,690$               175$                         
   State Treasurer Pool (LAIF) (4) 19,269,045                79,993                  0.55% 49,937,806               97,936                      
   Investment Advisor (1) (4) 84,912,289                127,741                0.20% 57,357,303               84,785                      
   2014 Series A Bond Project Fund 26,926,800                76,358                  0.38% 96,414,733               45,733                      
   2014 Series A Bond Interest Fund 14,770,112                77,033                  0.70% 20,283,310               32,586                      
   Project Deferred Revenue (2) 3,702,815                  8,413                    0.30% -                            -                            
ACTIA Total 180,080,681$            378,447$              0.28% 322,500$            55,947$             230,345,842$           261,215$                  

Approx. ROI 0.18%

Un-Audited
ACCMA Investment Balance Interest earned

Investment Balance Interest earned Approx. ROI Budget Difference June 30, 2014 FY 2013-2014
   Bank Accounts 8,954,502$                4,546$                  0.07% 2,582,126$               -$                          
   State Treasurer Pool (LAIF) (4) 19,766,500                45,620                  0.31% 29,059,283               45,312                      
   Project Deferred Revenue (3) 16,506,074                32,412                  0.26% 15,439,924               35,606                      
   Loan from ACTA (10,000,000)              -                        -                          (10,000,000)              -                            
ACCMA Total 35,227,075$              82,578$                0.31% -$                    82,578$             37,081,333$             80,918$                    

Approx. ROI 0.22%

Alameda CTC TOTAL 339,286,915$            774,145$              0.30% 648,750$            125,395$           392,010,517$           776,450$                  

Notes:    
      (1)  See attachments for detail of investment holdings managed by Investment Advisor.
      (2)  Project funds in deferred revenue are invested in LAIF with interest accruing back to the respective fund which includes TVTC funds.
      (3)  Project funds in deferred revenue are invested in LAIF with interest accruing back to the respective fund which include VRF, TVTC, San Leandro Marina, TCRP, PTMISEA and Cal EMA.
      (4)  All investments are marked to market on the financial statements at the end of the fiscal year per GASB 31 requirements.
      (5)  Alameda CTC investments are in compliance with the currently adopted investment policies.
      (6)  Alameda CTC has sufficient cash flow to meet expenditure requirements over the next six months.

Interest Earned FY 2013-2014
As of March 31, 2015

Interest Earned FY 2013-2014
As of March 31, 2015

Interest Earned FY 2013-2014
As of March 31, 2015

Alameda CTC
Consolidated Investment Report

As of March 31, 2015

6.12A

Page 99



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 100



Alameda County Transportation Commission  
Portfolio Review for the Quarter Ending 

 March 31, 2015 
 
 
 Fixed Income Market Review and Outlook 
 
Short-term interest rates were unchanged to modestly lower over the first quarter of 
2015 as a combination of a stronger dollar, lower oil prices, softening global economic 
figures and geopolitical issues drove investors to seek the safe haven of U.S. Government 
debt.  Through all the recent noise and turmoil, however, the one consistent factor has 
been a relatively healthy economy with an improving labor market here in the United 
States. Historically, this would have led to rising interest rates. Today, global factors 
dominate. 
 

 
        Source: Bloomberg Finance L.P. 

 
The recent strength in employment will be particularly important in determining the 
future direction of short-term interest rates. If the labor situation continues to improve 
at its current pace, many economic pundits forecast the Federal Reserve could begin to 
raise the level of short-term interest rate as soon as June of this year. Even under a 
modest growth scenario we think it is likely the Fed will begin to hike interest rates by 
the end of this year.  
 

6.12B

Page 101



GenSpring Family Offices 
 

There are too many variables and too many unknowns at present to have a strong 
opinion on where interest rates will end this year. What is clear is that the Federal 
Reserve will be the ultimate driver of short-term rates. We know from recent testimony 
by Janet Yellen in front of Congress that the Fed has no plans to raise rates before June. 
We also know the Fed pays particular attention to the amount of slack in the labor 
markets and expectations for inflation. Along with general health of our economy, the 
price of oil and the relative strength or weakness of the U.S. dollar will be important 
factors in shaping the Fed’s expectations. While we may not know where things will 
eventually end up, we have plenty to watch to help us decide the way. 
 

Strategy 
 
Over the foreseeable future GenSpring expects interest rates to move gradually higher. 
Currently the portfolio’s sensitivity to a change in interest rates is in line with that of the 
benchmark. The current low rate environment leaves the bond market without much of a 
yield cushion to avoid negative rates of returns should interest rates begin to rise more 
than already anticipated by the market.  

Given our outlook and the current level of uncertainty in the markets, we are 
comfortable keeping the portfolio’s exposure to a change in interest rates near that of 
the benchmark. 

For the time being, we are recommending any surplus cash flows from maturing issues 
be rolled over into LAIF. As opportunities present themselves we will be strategically 
placing investments where we believe they can provide a higher return than LAIF. Such 
an opportunity presented itself in early March on the back of a very strong employment 
report. We were able to take advantage of the opportunity to the benefit of the 
portfolios. 
 

As of the end of the quarter, the consolidated Alameda CTC ACTA/ACTIA portfolio 
consisted of 60.5% US Government Agency securities, 15.6% US Treasury securities, 
19.9% High Grade Corporate Bonds, 0% Certificates of Deposit, 3.8% Commercial Paper 
and 0.2% of cash and cash equivalents. 
 

Compliance with Investment Policy Statement 
For the quarter ending March 31, 2015, the Alameda CTC portfolio was in compliance with 
the adopted investment policy statement.  
  

Page 102



GenSpring Family Offices 
 

 

Budget Impact 
  
The portfolio’s performance is reported on a total economic return basis.  This method 
includes the coupon interest, amortization of discounts and premiums, capital gains and 
losses and price changes (i.e., unrealized gains and losses) but does not include the 
deduction of management fees. For the quarter ending March 31, the ACTA (1986 
Measure B) portfolio returned 0.16%. This compares to the benchmark return of 0.19%. 
For the quarter ending March 31, the ACTIA (2000 Measure B) portfolio returned 0.12%. 
This compares to the benchmark return of 0.07%. The exhibit below shows the 
performance of the Alameda CTC’s portfolios relative to their respective benchmarks.  
 

The portfolio’s yield to maturity, the return the portfolio will earn in the future if all 
securities are held to maturity, is also reported. This calculation is based on the current 
market value of the portfolio including unrealized gains and losses. For the quarter 
ending March 31, the ACTA (1986 Measure B) portfolio’s yield to maturity or call was 
0.37%. The benchmark’s yield to maturity was 0.28%.  For the quarter ending March 31, 
the ACTIA (2000 Measure B) portfolio’s yield to maturity or call was 0.31%. The 
benchmark’s yield to maturity was 0.17%.   
 

Page 103



GenSpring Family Offices 
 

 
 

  

Alameda CTC

` Quarterly  Review - Account vs. Benchmark
 Rolling 4 Quarters

Trailing 
Trailing 12 Months Apr-14 May-14 Jun-14 Jul-14 Aug-14 Sep-14 Oct-14 Nov-14 Dec-14 Jan-15 Feb-15 Mar-15 12 Months
MONTHLY PERFORMANCE DATA
Alameda ACTA (1986) -0.02% 0.08% 0.06% 0.00% 0.06% 0.01% 0.06% 0.07% -0.08% 0.11% -0.01% 0.06% 0.40%
Alameda ACTIA (2000) 0.02% 0.04% 0.05% 0.00% 0.04% 0.00% 0.02% 0.05% -0.05% 0.08% 0.01% 0.03% 0.29%
Benchmark - ACTA1 -0.01% 0.06% 0.06% -0.01% 0.07% 0.00% 0.08% 0.04% -0.11% 0.19% -0.07% 0.07% 0.37%
Benchmark - ACTIA2 0.02% 0.03% 0.01% 0.01% 0.04% 0.02% 0.01% 0.01% -0.04% 0.07% -0.01% 0.01% 0.18%

1 ACTA Benchmark is a customized benchmark comprised of 25% ML 1 -3 year Tsy index, 25% ML 6mo. Tsy index and 50% ML 1 year Tsy index

Note: This data contains performance prior to July 1, 2014 which was generated by SunTrust Bank. From July 1, 2014 performance was generated by GenSpring Family Offices. Past 
performance is not an indication of future results. Performance is presented prior to the deduction of investment management fees. 

2 ACTIA Benchmark is currently a customized benchmark comprised of 50% ML 6mo. Tsy index and 50% ML 1 year Tsy index. Prior to March 1, 2014 the Benchmark was comprised of 100% ML 
6mo. Tsy index

-0.10%

0.00%

0.10%

0.20%

0.30%

0.40%

0.50%

Qtr ended June 2014 Qtr ended September 2014 Qtr ended December 2015 Qtr ended March 2015

Re
tu

rn
s

ACTA (1986)

ACTIA (2000)

ACTA - Benchmark

ACTIA - Benchmark

Page 104



GenSpring Family Offices 
 

Bond Proceeds Portfolios 
 
On March 4, 2014, in conjunction with the issuance of the Alameda County 
Transportation Commission Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2014, (the Series 2014 
Bonds), Alameda CTC established both an Interest Fund and Project Fund at Union Bank 
of California, the Series 2014 Bond trustee. These portfolios were initially funded with 
$108,944,688 in the Project Fund and $20,335,886 in the Interest Fund, which was an 
amount net of the initial drawdown for bond related project costs incurred prior to 
closing. 
 
As of March 31, 2015, $82,069,809.77 had been distributed from the Project Fund and 
$5,653,838.75 had been distributed from the Interest Fund. The quarter end values of 
the Interest and Project Funds, including unrealized gains and losses, were 
$14,832,584.06 and $26,998,747.10, respectively. 
 
The portfolios were invested by buying allowable high grade fixed income securities 
whose maturities matched the anticipated cash outlays. As of March 31, 2015 the 
average life of the cash flows for the Interest Fund was roughly 1.4 years while the 
average life of the cash flows of the Project Fund was anticipated to be approximately 
2.0 months.  
 
One way to measure the anticipated return of the portfolios is their yield to maturity. 
This is the return the portfolio will earn in the future if all securities are held to maturity. 
This calculation is based on the current market value of the portfolio. For the quarter 
ending March 31, the Interest Fund portfolio’s yield to maturity was 0.50% and the 
Project Fund portfolio’s yield to maturity was 0.27%.  By comparison, an investment in a 
U.S. Treasury note of comparable average maturity at the end of the quarter would yield 
0.40% and 0.02% respectively. 
 
Another method of measuring the portfolio’s yield to maturity is the yield of the 
portfolio at cost. This calculation is based on the value of the portfolio at cost and does 
not include any unrealized gains or losses as part of its computation. As of the end of the 
quarter the Interest Fund portfolio’s rate of return on investments, at cost, was 0.64% 
and the Project Fund portfolio’s rate of return on investments, at cost, was 0.18%. Over 
time, as the shorter-term securities roll off and the higher yielding longer-term securities 
remain, the yield of the portfolio at original cost may rise.  

For the quarter ending March 31, 2015, the Alameda CTC Series 2014 Bonds Interest Fund 
and Project Fund portfolios were invested in compliance with the Bond Indenture dated 
February 1, 2014.  
 

Page 105



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 106



FIXED INCOME PORTFOLIO
Alameda County Transportation Commission

ACTA 1986 Measure B
Account # N001

March 31, 2015

Yield
Security Unit Total Market Accrued Pct To Dur-

Quantity Symbol Security Moody S & P Cost Cost Price Value Interest Total Market Value Assets Mat ation

CASH
61747c70s MORGAN STANLEY GOVERNMENT INST 102,078.85 102,078.85 102,078.85 0.11 0.0

CORPORATE BONDS
3,500,000.0000 94974bfe5 WELLS FARGO CO MTN BE A2 A+ 101.28 3,544,660.00 100.26 3,509,205.00 13,125.00 3,522,330.00 3.92 0.44 0.3

1.500% Due 07-01-15
500,000.0000 931142ct8 WAL-MART STORES INC AA2 AA 101.11 505,565.00 100.50 502,498.00 2,593.75 505,091.75 0.56 0.39 0.3

2.250% Due 07-08-15
3,500,000.0000 46623ejr1 J P MORGAN CHASE & CO MTN BE A3 A 100.03 3,500,875.00 100.25 3,508,837.50 17,752.78 3,526,590.28 3.92 0.63 0.5

1.100% Due 10-15-15
3,500,000.0000 36962g4t8 GENERAL ELEC CAP CORP MTN BE A1 AA+ 102.62 3,591,700.00 101.04 3,536,372.00 31,062.50 3,567,434.50 3.95 0.53 0.6

2.250% Due 11-09-15
1,000,000.0000 437076ap7 HOME DEPOT INC A2 A 106.61 1,066,080.00 104.40 1,043,950.00 4,500.00 1,048,450.00 1.17 0.58 0.9

5.400% Due 03-01-16
1,600,000.0000 06406hcg2 BANK NEW YORK MTN BK ENT A1 A+ 99.83 1,597,200.00 100.16 1,602,531.20 840.00 1,603,371.20 1.79 0.53 0.9

0.700% Due 03-04-16
900,000.0000 064159bv7 BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA AA2 A+ 100.21 901,854.00 100.43 903,897.00 380.00 904,277.00 1.01 0.49 1.0

0.950% Due 03-15-16
800,000.0000 713448bt4 PEPSICO INC A1 A- 103.03 824,232.00 102.05 816,384.80 7,833.33 824,218.13 0.91 0.64 1.1

2.500% Due 05-10-16
3,000,000.0000 91159hhd5 U S BANCORP MTNS BK ENT A1 A+ 101.52 3,045,480.00 101.37 3,041,166.00 18,700.00 3,059,866.00 3.40 0.99 2.1

1.650% Due 05-15-17
18,577,646.00 18,464,841.50 96,787.36 18,561,628.86 20.64 0.61 0.8

COMMERCIAL PAPER
3,500,000.000 89233hss4 TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORP COML 

PAPER
P-1 A-1+ 99.87 3,495,529.72 99.98 3,499,300.00 0.00 3,499,300.00 3.91 0.13 0.2

0.000% Due 05-26-15

GOVERNMENT BONDS
500,000.0000 313384dz9 FEDL HOME LOAN BK CONS DISC NT AAA AA+ 99.99 499,937.67 100.00 499,997.50 0.00 499,997.50 0.56 0.03 0.0

0.000% Due 04-06-15
3,500,000.0000 313396gy3 FEDL HOME LN MTG CORP DISC NT AAA AA+ 99.92 3,497,107.64 99.99 3,499,548.50 0.00 3,499,548.50 3.91 0.06 0.2

0.000% Due 06-16-15
9,500,000.0000 313588gz2 FEDERAL NATL MTG ASSN DISC NT AAA AA+ 99.91 9,491,175.56 99.99 9,498,765.00 0.00 9,498,765.00 10.62 0.06 0.2

0.000% Due 06-17-15
2,000,000.0000 3130a0pe4 FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS AAA AA+ 100.06 2,001,280.00 100.03 2,000,634.00 982.22 2,001,616.22 2.24 0.16 0.3

0.260% Due 07-23-15
1,500,000.0000 313384jv2 FEDL HOME LOAN BK CONS DISC NT AAA AA+ 99.90 1,498,559.16 99.98 1,499,647.50 0.00 1,499,647.50 1.68 0.07 0.3

0.000% Due 07-31-15
700,000.0000 3135g0nv1 FEDERAL NATL MTG ASSN AAA AA+ 100.40 702,814.00 100.14 700,981.40 29.17 701,010.57 0.78 0.21 0.5

0.500% Due 09-28-15
5,000,000.0000 313396ph0 FEDL HOME LN MTG CORP DISC NT AAA AA+ 99.82 4,990,878.47 99.89 4,994,435.00 0.00 4,994,435.00 5.58 0.18 0.6

0.000% Due 11-16-15
3,000,000.0000 912828b41 UNITED STATES TREAS NTS AAA AA+ 100.15 3,004,570.32 100.13 3,003,750.00 1,864.64 3,005,614.64 3.36 0.23 0.8

0.375% Due 01-31-16
11,000,000.0000 912828uw8 UNITED STATES TREAS NTS AAA AA+ 99.56 10,951,875.00 99.95 10,993,983.00 12,692.31 11,006,675.31 12.29 0.30 1.0

0.250% Due 04-15-16
3,000,000.0000 912828vc1 UNITED STATES TREAS NTS AAA AA+ 99.70 2,990,859.36 99.91 2,997,423.00 2,838.40 3,000,261.40 3.35 0.33 1.1

0.250% Due 05-15-16

1

6.12C

Page 107



FIXED INCOME PORTFOLIO
Alameda County Transportation Commission

ACTA 1986 Measure B
Account # N001

March 31, 2015

Yield
Security Unit Total Market Accrued Pct To Dur-

Quantity Symbol Security Moody S & P Cost Cost Price Value Interest Total Market Value Assets Mat ation

675,000.0000 3133834r9 FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS AAA AA+ 99.69 672,934.50 99.94 674,628.08 682.03 675,310.11 0.75 0.42 1.2
0.375% Due 06-24-16

25,000,000.0000 3130a2t97 FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS AAA AA+ 99.93 24,982,250.00 100.00 25,000,925.00 1,041.67 25,001,966.67 27.95 0.50 1.5
0.500% Due 09-28-16

2,000,000.0000 3137eadc0 FEDERAL HOME LN MTG CORP AAA AA+ 100.62 2,012,340.00 100.71 2,014,200.00 1,277.78 2,015,477.78 2.25 0.63 1.9
1.000% Due 03-08-17

67,296,581.68 67,378,917.97 21,408.21 67,400,326.19 75.33 0.31 1.0

TOTAL PORTFOLIO 89,471,836.25 89,445,138.33 118,195.57 89,563,333.90 100.00 0.37 0.9

2

Page 108



FIXED INCOME PORTFOLIO
Alameda County Transportation Commission

ACTIA 2000 Measure B
Account # N001UNB1

March 31, 2015

Yield
Security Unit Total Market Accrued Pct To Dur-

Quantity Symbol Security Moody S & P Cost Cost Price Value Interest Total Market Value Assets Mat ation

CASH
61747c70s MORGAN STANLEY GOVERNMENT INST 162,048.04 162,048.04 162,048.04 0.20 0.0

CORPORATE BONDS
2,500,000.0000 94974bfe5 WELLS FARGO CO MTN BE A2 A+ 101.27 2,531,750.00 100.26 2,506,575.00 9,375.00 2,515,950.00 3.02 0.44 0.3

1.500% Due 07-01-15
2,400,000.0000 36962g5z3 GENERAL ELEC CAP CORP MTN BE A1 AA+ 101.44 2,434,488.00 100.30 2,407,281.60 9,641.67 2,416,923.27 2.90 0.42 0.3

1.625% Due 07-02-15
2,230,000.0000 931142ct8 WAL-MART STORES INC AA2 AA 101.11 2,254,819.90 100.50 2,241,141.08 11,568.13 2,252,709.21 2.70 0.39 0.3

2.250% Due 07-08-15
1,000,000.0000 17275rac6 CISCO SYS INC A1 AA- 106.60 1,066,000.00 104.39 1,043,850.00 5,958.33 1,049,808.33 1.26 0.56 0.9

5.500% Due 02-22-16
2,000,000.0000 437076ap7 HOME DEPOT INC A2 A 106.61 2,132,160.00 104.40 2,087,900.00 9,000.00 2,096,900.00 2.52 0.58 0.9

5.400% Due 03-01-16
2,500,000.0000 46625hhx1 JPMORGAN CHASE & CO A3 A 103.73 2,593,300.00 102.27 2,556,725.00 7,187.50 2,563,912.50 3.08 0.95 0.9

3.450% Due 03-01-16
825,000.0000 05531faf0 BB&T CORPORATION A2 A- 104.92 865,617.50 103.52 854,060.63 13,759.17 867,819.79 1.03 0.66 1.0

3.950% Due 04-29-16
1,000,000.0000 459200hl8 INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS MACHS AA3 AA- 100.07 1,000,664.00 99.96 999,578.00 1,812.50 1,001,390.50 1.21 0.49 1.1

0.450% Due 05-06-16
1,000,000.0000 166764ac4 CHEVRON CORP NEW AA1 AA 100.50 1,005,000.00 100.45 1,004,496.00 2,395.36 1,006,891.36 1.21 0.52 1.2

0.889% Due 06-24-16
15,883,799.40 15,701,607.31 70,697.65 15,772,304.96 18.93 0.56 0.6

COMMERCIAL PAPER
3,000,000.000 89233hxk5 TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORP COML 

PAPER
P-1 A-1+ 99.79 2,993,837.49 99.84 2,995,200.00 0.00 2,995,200.00 3.61 0.29 0.6

0.000% Due 10-19-15

GOVERNMENT BONDS
1,000,000.0000 313588ej0 FEDERAL NATL MTG ASSN DISC NT AAA AA+ 99.92 999,211.67 100.00 999,986.00 0.00 999,986.00 1.21 0.03 0.0

0.000% Due 04-15-15
1,000,000.0000 3137eadd8 FEDERAL HOME LN MTG CORP AAA AA+ 100.36 1,003,600.00 100.02 1,000,188.00 2,277.78 1,002,465.78 1.21 0.07 0.0

0.500% Due 04-17-15
3,000,000.0000 313312fv7 FEDL FARM CRED BK CONS DISC NT AAA AA+ 99.95 2,998,569.17 99.99 2,999,829.00 0.00 2,999,829.00 3.62 0.04 0.1

0.000% Due 05-20-15
1,500,000.0000 3130a2av8 FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS AAA AA+ 99.99 1,499,865.00 99.99 1,499,832.00 609.38 1,500,441.38 1.81 0.19 0.2

0.125% Due 06-04-15
2,500,000.0000 313588gz2 FEDERAL NATL MTG ASSN DISC NT AAA AA+ 99.91 2,497,677.78 99.99 2,499,675.00 0.00 2,499,675.00 3.01 0.06 0.2

0.000% Due 06-17-15
3,500,000.0000 3130a0pe4 FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS AAA AA+ 100.06 3,502,240.00 100.03 3,501,109.50 1,718.89 3,502,828.39 4.22 0.16 0.3

0.260% Due 07-23-15
5,500,000.0000 313588jy2 FEDERAL NATL MTG ASSN DISC NT AAA AA+ 99.93 5,496,186.69 99.97 5,498,218.00 0.00 5,498,218.00 6.63 0.09 0.3

0.000% Due 08-03-15
5,500,000.0000 313396lp6 FEDL HOME LN MTG CORP DISC NT AAA AA+ 99.87 5,492,760.63 99.94 5,496,760.50 0.00 5,496,760.50 6.63 0.13 0.5

0.000% Due 09-11-15
5,500,000.0000 313371nw2 FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS AAA AA+ 100.91 5,549,940.00 100.79 5,543,180.50 23,107.64 5,566,288.14 6.68 0.24 0.7

1.375% Due 12-11-15
10,000,000.0000 912828uw8 UNITED STATES TREAS NTS AAA AA+ 99.57 9,957,048.00 99.95 9,994,530.00 11,538.46 10,006,068.46 12.05 0.30 1.0

0.250% Due 04-15-16

1

Page 109



FIXED INCOME PORTFOLIO
Alameda County Transportation Commission

ACTIA 2000 Measure B
Account # N001UNB1

March 31, 2015

Yield
Security Unit Total Market Accrued Pct To Dur-

Quantity Symbol Security Moody S & P Cost Cost Price Value Interest Total Market Value Assets Mat ation

25,000,000.0000 3137eadq9 FEDERAL HOME LN MTG CORP AAA AA+ 100.11 25,027,500.00 100.13 25,031,725.00 47,916.67 25,079,641.67 30.19 0.39 1.1
0.500% Due 05-13-16

64,024,598.94 64,065,033.50 87,168.81 64,152,202.31 77.26 0.26 0.8

TOTAL PORTFOLIO 83,064,283.87 82,923,888.85 157,866.46 83,081,755.31 100.00 0.31 0.7

2

Page 110



FIXED INCOME PORTFOLIO
Alameda County Transportation Commission

Project Fund
Account # N001UNB3

March 31, 2015

Yield
Security Unit Total Market Accrued Pct To Dur-

Quantity Symbol Security Moody S & P Cost Cost Price Value Interest Total Market Value Assets Mat ation

CASH
61747c70s MORGAN STANLEY GOVERNMENT INST 1,422,824.57 1,422,824.57 1,422,824.57 5.28 0.0

CORPORATE BONDS
4,000,000.0000 94974beu0 WELLS FARGO CO MTN BE A2 A+ 103.58 4,143,280.00 100.08 4,003,352.00 66,861.11 4,070,213.11 14.87 1.35 0.0

3.625% Due 04-15-15

COMMERCIAL PAPER
2,000,000.000 36959jtb9 GENERAL ELEC CAP CORP COML PAPER P-1 A-1+ 99.88 1,997,687.22 99.96 1,999,200.00 0.00 1,999,200.00 7.42 0.20 0.2

0.000% Due 06-11-15

GOVERNMENT BONDS
7,500,000.0000 313384dz9 FEDL HOME LOAN BK CONS DISC NT AAA AA+ 99.99 7,499,065.00 100.00 7,499,962.50 0.00 7,499,962.50 27.85 0.03 0.0

0.000% Due 04-06-15
4,000,000.0000 313588gz2 FEDERAL NATL MTG ASSN DISC NT AAA AA+ 99.91 3,996,284.44 99.99 3,999,480.00 0.00 3,999,480.00 14.85 0.06 0.2

0.000% Due 06-17-15
8,000,000.0000 912828vn7 UNITED STATES TREAS NTS AAA AA+ 100.08 8,006,562.50 100.05 8,003,752.00 3,314.92 8,007,066.92 29.72 0.11 0.3

0.250% Due 07-31-15
19,501,911.94 19,503,194.50 3,314.92 19,506,509.42 72.43 0.07 0.2

TOTAL PORTFOLIO 27,065,703.73 26,928,571.07 70,176.03 26,998,747.10 100.00 0.27 0.2

Page 111



FIXED INCOME PORTFOLIO
Alameda County Transportation Commission

Interest Fund
Account # N001UNB2

March 31, 2015

Yield
Security Unit Total Market Accrued Pct To Dur-

Quantity Symbol Security Moody S & P Cost Cost Price Value Interest Total Market Value Assets Mat ation

CASH
61747c70s MORGAN STANLEY GOVERNMENT INST 260,973.36 260,973.36 260,973.36 1.76 0.0

CORPORATE BONDS
1,000,000.0000 713448ca4 PEPSICO INC A1 A- 100.48 1,004,800.00 100.18 1,001,769.00 933.33 1,002,702.33 6.76 0.22 0.4

0.700% Due 08-13-15
950,000.0000 17275rac6 CISCO SYS INC A1 AA- 109.62 1,041,409.00 104.39 991,657.50 5,660.42 997,317.92 6.70 0.56 0.9

5.500% Due 02-22-16
1,000,000.0000 084664bx8 BERKSHIRE HATHAWAY FIN CORP AA2 AA 100.76 1,007,570.00 100.45 1,004,468.00 1,213.89 1,005,681.89 6.78 0.62 1.4

0.950% Due 08-15-16
1,000,000.0000 69353rcg1 PNC BK N A PITTSBURGH PA A2 A 100.06 1,000,550.00 100.34 1,003,365.00 2,000.00 1,005,365.00 6.77 0.94 1.8

1.125% Due 01-27-17
950,000.0000 478160aq7 JOHNSON & JOHNSON AAA AAA 115.02 1,092,709.00 110.93 1,053,806.50 6,737.08 1,060,543.58 7.12 0.88 2.2

5.550% Due 08-15-17
5,147,038.00 5,055,066.00 16,544.72 5,071,610.72 34.13 0.65 1.3

GOVERNMENT BONDS
1,800,000.0000 912828vu1 UNITED STATES TREAS NTS AAA AA+ 100.21 1,803,796.88 100.11 1,801,969.20 586.96 1,802,556.16 12.17 0.11 0.4

0.375% Due 08-31-15
1,800,000.0000 912828b82 UNITED STATES TREAS NTS AAA AA+ 99.82 1,796,695.31 99.99 1,799,859.60 391.30 1,800,250.90 12.15 0.26 0.9

0.250% Due 02-29-16
1,800,000.0000 912828vr8 UNITED STATES TREAS NTS AAA AA+ 100.15 1,802,671.88 100.30 1,805,344.20 1,398.48 1,806,742.68 12.19 0.41 1.4

0.625% Due 08-15-16
1,800,000.0000 912828b74 UNITED STATES TREAS NTS AAA AA+ 99.75 1,795,429.67 100.16 1,802,953.80 1,398.48 1,804,352.28 12.17 0.54 1.9

0.625% Due 02-15-17
1,540,000.0000 912828tm2 UNITED STATES TREAS NTS AAA AA+ 98.58 1,518,163.28 99.82 1,537,232.62 836.96 1,538,069.58 10.38 0.70 2.4

0.625% Due 08-31-17
750,000.0000 912828ur9 UNITED STATES TREAS NTS AAA AA+ 98.00 734,970.70 99.67 747,539.25 489.13 748,028.38 5.05 0.86 2.9

0.750% Due 02-28-18
9,451,727.72 9,494,898.67 5,101.31 9,499,999.98 64.11 0.43 1.5

TOTAL PORTFOLIO 14,859,739.08 14,810,938.03 21,646.03 14,832,584.06 100.00 0.50 1.4

Page 112



Date 
Page 

03/31/15
1 of 2

CDARS® is a registered service mark of Promontory Interfinancial Network, LLC.

Fremont Bank                            
P.O. Box 5101                           
Fremont, CA 94537                       
                                        
                                        

ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION
1986 MEASURE B                          
ATTN: LILY BALINTON                     
1111 BROADWAY, SUITE 800                
OAKLAND, CA 94607                       
                                        

Subject: CDARS® Customer Statement

Legal Account Title: ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION
1986 MEASURE B

Below is a summary of your certificate(s) of deposit, which we are holding for you as your custodian. These
certificate(s) of deposit have been issued through CDARS by one or more FDIC−insured depository institutions. 
Should you have any questions, please contact us at 510−723−5855, send an email to
privatebanking@fremontbank.com, or visit our website at http://www.fremontbank.com/.

Summary of Accounts Reflecting Placements Through CDARS

Account ID Effective Date Interest RateMaturity Date Opening Balance Ending Balance

1016779551

TOTAL

06/26/14  0.55%06/23/16  $2,005,703.78

$2,005,703.78

$2,005,703.78

$2,005,703.78

CONTAINS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATIONPage 113



Date 
Page 

03/31/15
2 of 2

CDARS® is a registered service mark of Promontory Interfinancial Network, LLC.

ACCOUNT OVERVIEW

Account ID: 
Product Name: 
Interest Rate: 
Account Balance: 

Effective Date: 
Maturity Date: 
YTD Interest Paid: 
Interest Accrued:             
Int Earned Since Last Stmt:   

1016779551
2−YEAR PUBLIC FUND CD              
0.55%
$2,005,703.78

06/26/14
06/23/16
$0.00
$2,721.72
$937.86

The Annual Percentage Yield Earned is 0.55%.

CD Issued by BB&T

YTD Interest Paid: 
Interest Accrued:             
Int Earned Since Last Stmt:   

$0.00
$317.08
$109.26

02/28/15
03/31/15

OPENING BALANCE
ENDING BALANCE

$233,664.49
$233,664.49

CD Issued by East West Bank

YTD Interest Paid: 
Interest Accrued:             
Int Earned Since Last Stmt:   

$0.00
$317.08
$109.26

02/28/15
03/31/15

OPENING BALANCE
ENDING BALANCE

$233,664.49
$233,664.49

CD Issued by EverBank

YTD Interest Paid: 
Interest Accrued:             
Int Earned Since Last Stmt:   

$0.00
$317.08
$109.26

02/28/15
03/31/15

OPENING BALANCE
ENDING BALANCE

$233,664.49
$233,664.49

CD Issued by Grandpoint Bank

YTD Interest Paid: 
Interest Accrued:             
Int Earned Since Last Stmt:   

$0.00
$218.87
$75.42

02/28/15
03/31/15

OPENING BALANCE
ENDING BALANCE

$161,289.32
$161,289.32

CD Issued by Mutual of Omaha Bank

YTD Interest Paid: 
Interest Accrued:             
Int Earned Since Last Stmt:   

$0.00
$317.08
$109.26

02/28/15
03/31/15

OPENING BALANCE
ENDING BALANCE

$233,664.49
$233,664.49

CD Issued by The Park National Bank

YTD Interest Paid: 
Interest Accrued:             
Int Earned Since Last Stmt:   

$0.00
$283.29
$97.62

02/28/15
03/31/15

OPENING BALANCE
ENDING BALANCE

$208,763.03
$208,763.03

CD Issued by Wallis State Bank

YTD Interest Paid: 
Interest Accrued:             
Int Earned Since Last Stmt:   

$0.00
$317.08
$109.26

02/28/15
03/31/15

OPENING BALANCE
ENDING BALANCE

$233,664.49
$233,664.49

CD Issued by Western Alliance Bank

YTD Interest Paid: 
Interest Accrued:             
Int Earned Since Last Stmt:   

$0.00
$317.08
$109.26

02/28/15
03/31/15

OPENING BALANCE
ENDING BALANCE

$233,664.49
$233,664.49

CD Issued by WesBanco Bank, Inc.

YTD Interest Paid: 
Interest Accrued:             
Int Earned Since Last Stmt:   

$0.00
$317.08
$109.26

02/28/15
03/31/15

OPENING BALANCE
ENDING BALANCE

$233,664.49
$233,664.49

Thank you for your business.

CONTAINS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATIONPage 114



Date 
Page 

03/31/15
1 of 2

CDARS® is a registered service mark of Promontory Interfinancial Network, LLC.

Fremont Bank                            
P.O. Box 5101                           
Fremont, CA 94537                       
                                        
                                        

ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION
2000 MEASURE B                          
ATTN: LILY BALINTON                     
1111 BROADWAY, SUITE 800                
OAKLAND, CA 94607                       
                                        

Subject: CDARS® Customer Statement

Legal Account Title: ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION
2000 MEASURE B

Below is a summary of your certificate(s) of deposit, which we are holding for you as your custodian. These
certificate(s) of deposit have been issued through CDARS by one or more FDIC−insured depository institutions. 
Should you have any questions, please contact us at 510−723−5855, send an email to
privatebanking@fremontbank.com, or visit our website at http://www.fremontbank.com/.

Summary of Accounts Reflecting Placements Through CDARS

Account ID Effective Date Interest RateMaturity Date Opening Balance Ending Balance

1016779683

TOTAL

06/26/14  0.55%06/25/15  $2,000,000.00

$2,000,000.00

$2,000,000.00

$2,000,000.00

CONTAINS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATIONPage 115



Date 
Page 

03/31/15
2 of 2

CDARS® is a registered service mark of Promontory Interfinancial Network, LLC.

ACCOUNT OVERVIEW

Account ID: 
Product Name: 
Interest Rate: 
Account Balance: 

Effective Date: 
Maturity Date: 
YTD Interest Paid: 
Interest Accrued:             
Int Earned Since Last Stmt:   

1016779683
52−WEEK PUBLIC FUND CD             
0.55%
$2,000,000.00

06/26/14
06/25/15
$0.00
$8,425.54
$937.91

The Annual Percentage Yield Earned is 0.55%.

CD Issued by Bank 7

YTD Interest Paid: 
Interest Accrued:             
Int Earned Since Last Stmt:   

$0.00
$219.06
$24.39

02/28/15
03/31/15

OPENING BALANCE
ENDING BALANCE

$52,000.00
$52,000.00

CD Issued by First Independence Bank

YTD Interest Paid: 
Interest Accrued:             
Int Earned Since Last Stmt:   

$0.00
$1,025.81
$114.19

02/28/15
03/31/15

OPENING BALANCE
ENDING BALANCE

$243,500.00
$243,500.00

CD Issued by John Marshall Bank

YTD Interest Paid: 
Interest Accrued:             
Int Earned Since Last Stmt:   

$0.00
$1,025.81
$114.19

02/28/15
03/31/15

OPENING BALANCE
ENDING BALANCE

$243,500.00
$243,500.00

CD Issued by RepublicBankAz, N.A.

YTD Interest Paid: 
Interest Accrued:             
Int Earned Since Last Stmt:   

$0.00
$1,025.81
$114.19

02/28/15
03/31/15

OPENING BALANCE
ENDING BALANCE

$243,500.00
$243,500.00

CD Issued by S&T Bank

YTD Interest Paid: 
Interest Accrued:             
Int Earned Since Last Stmt:   

$0.00
$1,025.81
$114.19

02/28/15
03/31/15

OPENING BALANCE
ENDING BALANCE

$243,500.00
$243,500.00

CD Issued by Sierra Vista Bank

YTD Interest Paid: 
Interest Accrued:             
Int Earned Since Last Stmt:   

$0.00
$1,025.81
$114.19

02/28/15
03/31/15

OPENING BALANCE
ENDING BALANCE

$243,500.00
$243,500.00

CD Issued by The PrivateBank and Trust Company

YTD Interest Paid: 
Interest Accrued:             
Int Earned Since Last Stmt:   

$0.00
$1,025.81
$114.19

02/28/15
03/31/15

OPENING BALANCE
ENDING BALANCE

$243,500.00
$243,500.00

CD Issued by Tri−State Bank of Memphis

YTD Interest Paid: 
Interest Accrued:             
Int Earned Since Last Stmt:   

$0.00
$1,025.81
$114.19

02/28/15
03/31/15

OPENING BALANCE
ENDING BALANCE

$243,500.00
$243,500.00

CD Issued by United Bank

YTD Interest Paid: 
Interest Accrued:             
Int Earned Since Last Stmt:   

$0.00
$1,025.81
$114.19

02/28/15
03/31/15

OPENING BALANCE
ENDING BALANCE

$243,500.00
$243,500.00

Thank you for your business.

CONTAINS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATIONPage 116



 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150528\Consent Items\6.13_FY2014-
15_3rd_Qtr_Financial_Report\6.13_FY14-15_Q3_Financial Report.docx  

 

 

Memorandum 6.13 

DATE: May 21, 2014 

SUBJECT: Alameda CTC FY2014-15 Third Quarter Financial Report 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the Alameda CTC FY2014-15 Third Quarter Financial Report. 

 

 

Summary  

The attached FY2014-15 Third Quarter Financial Report has been prepared on a 
consolidated basis by governmental fund type including the General Fund, Special 
Revenue Funds, the Exchange Fund, the Debt Service Fund, and the Capital Projects 
Funds.  This report provides a summary of FY2014-15 actual revenues and expenditures 
through March 31, 2015 with comparisons to the year-to-date currently adopted budget.  
Variances from the year-to-date budget are demonstrated as a percentage of the 
budget used by line item as well as stating either a favorable or unfavorable variance in 
dollars.  Percentages over 100% indicate that the actual revenue or expenditure item is 
over 75% of the total annual budget through the third quarter of the fiscal year, and 
percentages under 100% indicate that the actual revenue or expenditure item is under 
75% of the total annual budget through the third quarter of the fiscal year.  At the end of 
the third quarter, the Alameda CTC is showing a net decrease in fund balance in the 
amount of $10.2 million primarily due to disbursements for ACTIA-related capital project 
expenditures. 

Activity 

The following are highlights of actual revenues and expenditures compared to budget as 
of March 31, 2015 by fund type: 

General Fund 
In the General Fund, the Alameda CTC’s revenues are less than budget by $4.8 million or 
32.5%, and expenditures are under budget by $5.9 million or 44.7% (see attachment A).  
These variances are mainly due to the timing of costs for Transportation Planning activities. In 
particular costs for Sustainable Communities-Technical Assistance Program (SC-TAP) were 
lower than anticipated through the end of March. Expenditures for Transportation Planning 
activities in the General Fund correspond directly to the reimbursement revenue therefore as 
expenditures increase through the end of the fiscal year, the revenues also will increase.   

Page 117



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150528\Consent Items\6.13_FY2014-
15_3rd_Qtr_Financial_Report\6.13_FY14-15_Q3_Financial Report.docx 

 

 

 
Special Revenue Funds 
The Special Revenue Funds group is made up of Measure B Program funds including funds 
for express bus, paratransit service, bike and pedestrian, transit oriented development, 
and direct local distributions as well as Transportation Fund for Clean Air (TFCA) funds and 
Vehicle Registration Fee (VRF) funds.  In the Special Revenue Funds, revenues are more 
than budget by $2.0 million or 3.0% mainly due to actual collections of both sales tax and 
VRF revenues which were higher than anticipated (see attachment B).  Expenditures in 
the Special Revenue Funds are $9.4 million or 13.1% less than budget mostly attributable 
to the timing of TFCA, VRF and other discretionary programming which were lower than 
projected in the third quarter of the fiscal year.  Many programming agreements cover a 
two-year period and invoicing may occur at the end of the agreement period. 

Exchange Fund 
As of March 31, 2015, Exchange Fund revenues were less than budget by $5.6 million and 
expenditures were also less than budget by $5.7 million (see attachment C). The 
recognition of revenue corresponds directly with the expenditures; therefore as 
expenditures increase, revenue will increase as well.  

Debt Service Fund 
The Debt Service Fund, held by Union Bank as the bond trustee, originally received $20.3 
million in bond proceeds from Alameda CTC’s inaugural Sales Tax Revenue Bonds 
(Limited Tax Bonds), Series 2014 to pay interest costs. These funds were the premium 
amount, or the amount received over the par amount, of the bonds issued which is 
required to be used for debt service per our enabling legislation (see attachment D). The 
Government Accounting Standards Board requires bond interest to be recorded when 
paid; per the bond documents, interest payments are required to be made to 
bondholders on a semi-annually basis on September 1 and March 1 of each year.  
Therefore expenditures in the debt service funds should equal 100% by the end of the 
fiscal year. 

Capital Projects Funds 
The Capital Projects Funds incorporate all Alameda CTC capital projects whether they 
were originally projects of the Alameda County Transportation Improvement Authority 
(ACTIA), the Alameda County Transportation Authority (ACTA) or the Alameda County 
Congestion Management Agency (ACCMA). In fiscal year 2011-2012, Alameda CTC 
implemented a rolling capital budget system in which any unused approved budget from 
prior years is available to pay for costs in subsequent fiscal years.  Additional budget 
authority is requested by project only as needed in accordance with the budget process.  
The year to date budget amount used for comparisons is a straight line amortization of 
the total approved project budget including unspent funds rolled over from the prior 
year.  Expenditures planned through March 31, 2015 in the budget process generally will 
differ from the straight line budgeted amount used for the comparison.  However, 
presenting the information with this comparison helps financial report users, project 

Page 118



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150528\Consent Items\6.13_FY2014-
15_3rd_Qtr_Financial_Report\6.13_FY14-15_Q3_Financial Report.docx 

 

 

managers, and the project control team to review year-to-date expenditures to give 
them an idea of how the project is progressing as compared to the approved budget. 

In the Capital Projects Funds, the Alameda CTC’s revenues are less than budget by $73.9 
million or 56.1%, and expenditures are less than budget by $152.0 million or 68.2% (see 
attachment E).  Grant revenue corresponds directly to expenditures for capital projects.  

ACTA 
ACTA’s East/West Connector project was on hold following a funding shortfall due to the 
outcome of Measure B1; however, activity is resuming and expenditures are expected 
early next fiscal year when funding is available from Measure BB. The year-to-date budget 
includes amounts rolled forward from the prior year which were not expended. 
Expenditures for ACTA’s I-580/Redwood Road Interchange project are winding down as 
the project is nearing completion; an adjustment was made in the first quarter to reverse 
a prior year overstated accrual. 

ACTIA 
ACTIA related capital projects were below budget partially attributable to a delay in right 
of way and utility expenditures for the Route 84 Expressway project as negotiations and 
permitting agreements are being completed.  The I-680 Express Lane project is also under 
budget due to the shifting of costs from Measure B to an outside funding source to 
exhaust the funding source before expiration. A timing delay in Caltrans’ invoicing for the 
I-580 Corridor/BART to Livermore Study project also contributed to the expenditures being 
under budget. Construction on this project has been ongoing and expenses are 
expected to fall more in line with the budget as the fiscal year progresses. 

ACCMA 
Actual expenditures for both the ACCMA I-580 Eastbound HOV/HOT/AUX Lane projects 
and the I-580 Westbound HOV/HOT Lane projects have been affected by a lag in billing 
due to project change orders. Construction for both projects has been ongoing and 
expenses are estimated to draw closer to budget as invoices are received.  The I-80 
Integrated Corridor Mobility project is also experiencing a delay in contractor billing 
which adds to the expenditures being below budget. Budget for this project includes all 
remaining amounts through the life of the project which is expected to conclude early 
next fiscal year. 

ACTIA Limitations Calculations 
Staff has made the calculations required per the 2000 Transportation Expenditure Plan 
related to salary and benefits and administration costs.  The Salary and Benefits Limitation 
ratio of 0.61% and Administrative Cost Limitation ratio of 3.8% were calculated based on 
actual revenues and expenditures and were found to be in compliance with the 
requirements of 1.0% and 4.5%, respectively (see attachment F). 

Fiscal Impact 

There is no fiscal impact.  

Page 119



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150528\Consent Items\6.13_FY2014-
15_3rd_Qtr_Financial_Report\6.13_FY14-15_Q3_Financial Report.docx 

 

 

Attachments 

A. Alameda CTC General Fund Revenues/Expenditures Actual vs. Budget as of March 
31, 2015 

B. Alameda CTC Special Revenue Funds Revenues/Expenditures Actual vs. Budget as of 
March 31, 2015 

C. Alameda CTC Exchange Fund Revenues/Expenditures Actual vs. Budget as of March 
31, 2015 

D. Alameda CTC Debt Service Fund Revenues/Expenditures Actual vs. Budget as of 
March 31, 2015 

E. Alameda CTC Capital Projects Funds Revenues/Expenditures Actual vs. Budget as of 
March 31, 2015 

F. ACTIA Fiscal Year 2014-2015 Budget Limitations Calculations as of March 31, 2015 

Staff Contact 

Patricia Reavey, Director of Finance and Administration 

Lily Balinton, Accounting Manager 

Page 120

mailto:preavey@alamedactc.org
mailto:lbalinton@alamedactc.org


Alameda CTC General Fund
Revenues/Expenditures

Actual vs Budget
as of March 31, 2015

Favorable
(Unfavorable)

YTD Actuals YTD Budget % Used Variance

Revenues:
Sales Tax Revenues 4,455,109$          4,303,125$          103.53% 151,984$           
Investment Income 57,114                 -                           -             57,114               
Member Agency Fees 1,046,114            1,046,114            100.00% -                     
Other Revenues 9,917                   9,601                   103.29% 316                    
Grants 4,345,106            9,327,477            46.58% (4,982,371)         

Total Revenues 9,913,359$          14,686,317$        (4,772,957)$       

Expenditures:
Administration

Salaries and Benefits 1,123,702            1,083,088            103.75% (40,614)              
General Office Expenses 942,532               1,273,250            74.03% 330,718             
Other Administration 927,054               1,476,954            62.77% 549,900             
Commission and Community Support 100,059               236,625               42.29% 136,566             
Contingency -                           131,250               0.00% 131,250             

Planning
Salaries and Benefits 551,256               503,488               109.49% (47,768)              
Planning Management and Support -                           388,398               0.00% 388,398             
Transportation Planning 2,804,634            6,315,752            44.41% 3,511,117          
Congestion Management Program 188,189               423,750               44.41% 235,561             

Programs
Salaries and Benefits 160,893               214,795               74.91% 53,902               
Safe Routes to School Programs 727,951               1,232,625            59.06% 504,674             
Other Programming 176,614               399,053               44.26% 222,438             

Indirect Cost Recovery/Allocation
Indirect Cost Recovery from Capital, Spec Rev & Exch Funds (371,895)              (413,426)              89.95% (41,530)              

Total Expenditures 7,330,988$          13,265,600$        5,934,612$        

Net revenue over / (under) expenditures 2,582,371$          1,420,717$          

6.13A

Page 121



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 122



Alameda CTC Special Revenue Funds
Revenues/Expenditures

Actual vs Budget
as of March 31, 2015

Favorable
(Unfavorable)

YTD Actuals YTD Budget % Used Variance
Revenues:

Sales Tax Revenues 56,633,845$        54,701,804$        103.53% 1,932,041$        
Investment Income 41,678                 -                       -            41,678               
VRF Funds 9,286,688            9,000,000            103.19% 286,688             
Other Revenues 12,504                 105,087               11.90% (92,583)             
Grants 2,336,035            2,514,755            92.89% (178,719)           

Total Revenues 68,310,750$        66,321,645$        1,989,105$        

Expenditures:
Administration

Salaries and Benefits 205,261               257,229               79.80% 51,968               
General Office Expenses 4,446                   5,438                   81.76% 992                    
Other Administration 2,480                   -                       -            (2,480)               
Commission and Community Support 9,100                   24,750                 36.77% 15,650               

Programs
Salaries and Benefits 132,597               185,603               71.44% 53,005               
Programs Management 403,183               2,168,544            18.59% 1,765,361          
VRF Programming and Other Costs 6,898,494            9,123,081            75.62% 2,224,587          
Measure B Direct Local Distribution 51,927,051          50,155,572          103.53% (1,771,479)        
Grant Awards 2,460,213            5,488,414            44.83% 3,028,201          
Other Programming 332,545               4,401,392            7.56% 4,068,847          

Total Expenditures 62,375,371$        71,810,022$        9,434,651$        

Net revenue over / (under) expenditures 5,935,379$          (5,488,377)$         

6.13B

Page 123



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 124



Alameda CTC Exchange Fund
Revenues/Expenditures

Actual vs Budget
as of March 31, 2015

Favorable
(Unfavorable)

YTD Actuals YTD Budget % Used Variance
Revenues:

Exchange Program Funds 4,341,035$          10,004,381$        43.39% (5,663,346)$          
Interest Revenue 5,858                   -                       -          5,858                    
Other Revenue 65,676                 49,257                 133.33% 16,419                  

Total Revenues 4,412,569$          10,053,638$        (5,641,069)$          

Expenditures:
Salaries 26,970                 37,262                 72.38% 10,293                  
Programs Management and Support 587                      2,250                   26.11% 1,663                    
Programming Funds 4,313,478            10,000,724          43.13% 5,687,246             

Total Expenditures 4,341,035$          10,040,237$        5,699,201$           

Net revenue over / (under) expenditures 71,534$               13,402$               

6.13C

Page 125



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 126



Alameda CTC Debt Service Fund
Revenues/Expenditures

Actual vs Budget
as of March 31, 2015

Favorable
(Unfavorable)

YTD Actuals YTD Budget % Used Variance
Revenues:

Investment Income 77,033$               -$                     -         77,033$                
Total Revenues 77,033$               -$                     77,033$                

Expenditures:
Bond Interest Expense 5,653,839$          4,240,379$          133.33% (1,413,460)            

Total Expenditures 5,653,839$          4,240,379$          (1,413,460)$          

Net revenue over / (under) expenditures (5,576,806)$         (4,240,379)$         

6.13D

Page 127



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 128



Alameda CTC Capital Projects Funds
Revenues/Expenditures

Actual vs Budget
as of March 31, 2015

Favorable
(Unfavorable)

YTD Actuals YTD Budget % Used Variance
REVENUES

Sales Tax Revenues 38,172,395$        36,620,072$        104.24% 1,552,324$           
Investment Income 551,638               648,750               85.03% (97,112)                 
VRF Funds 124,529               1,253,766            9.93% (1,129,237)            
Other Revenues 1,417                   1,339,752            0.11% (1,338,335)            
Grants 18,967,320          91,853,015          20.65% (72,885,694)          

Total Revenues 57,817,299$        131,715,354$      (73,898,055)$        
EXPENDITURES
Administration

Salaries and Benefits 147,886               127,904               115.62% (19,982)                 
General Office Expenses 1,003                   28,718                 3.49% 27,715                  
Other Administration 227,317               279,314               81.38% 51,997                  
Commission and Community Support 7,969                   15,000                 53.13% 7,031                    
Contingency -                          18,750                 0.00% 18,750                  

Capital Projects
  ACTA

Salaries and Benefits 62,741                 85,396                 73.47% 22,655                  
Capital Expenditures 11,974                 124,186               9.64% 112,212                
I-800 Mod. Rte. 262-Mission Blvd 25,198                 448,223               5.62% 423,025                
E/W Connector Project in N. Fremont 13,930                 16,830,428          0.08% 16,816,497           
Rte. 238 Corridor Improvement -                          5,349,205            0.00% 5,349,205             
I-580/Redwood Road Interchange (8,652,677)           2,753,538            -314.24% 11,406,215           
I-580, 238 and 880 Corridor Study 763,160               465,723               163.87% (297,437)               
Central Alameda County Freeway 98,283                 1,560,168            6.30% 1,461,885             

  ACTIA
Salaries and Benefits 161,199               170,948               94.30% 9,749                    
Project Management/Close Out 288,899               1,786,027            16.18% 1,497,128             
ACE Capital Improvements 513,126               2,388,449            21.48% 1,875,323             
BART Warm Springs Extension 25,376,333          32,068,729          79.13% 6,692,396             
BART Oakland Airport Connector -                          183,083               0.00% 183,083                
Downtown Oakland Streetscape -                          2,837,025            0.00% 2,837,025             
Telegraph Avenue Bus Rapid Transit 1,477,719            993,698               148.71% (484,021)               
I-680 Express Lane (2,057,360)           7,716,492            -26.66% 9,773,852             
Iron Horse Trail -                          750,000               0.00% 750,000                
I-880/Broadway-Jackson Interchange 29,120                 1,873,931            1.55% 1,844,810             
I-580/Castro Valley Interchange Improvement 1,144,725            1,055,184            108.49% (89,541)                 
Lewelling/East Lewelling Blvd Widening (1,098,860)           -                          -                1,098,860             
I-580 Auxiliary Lanes 298,198               2,436,578            12.24% 2,138,380             
Rte 92/Clawiter -Whitesell Interchange -                          5,370,977            0.00% 5,370,977             
Hesperian Blvd/Lewelling Blvd Widening -                          449,717               0.00% 449,717                
Westgate Parkway Extension 40,299                 218,811               18.42% 178,512                
E. 14th/Hesperian/150th Improvements 159,174               1,643,903            9.68% 1,484,729             
I-238 Widening 515,929               160,745               320.96% (355,184)               
I-680/I-880 Cross Connector Study -                          255,797               0.00% 255,797                
Isabel Avenue - 84/I-580 Interchange 1,383,402            7,349,021            18.82% 5,965,620             
Route 84 Expressway 10,012,633          24,485,174          40.89% 14,472,540           
Dumbarton Corridor Improvement (44,520)                2,312,922            -1.92% 2,357,442             
I-580 Corridor/BART to Livermore Study 12,100,936          19,381,928          62.43% 7,280,992             
I-80 Integrated Corridor Mobility 28,974                 146,250               19.81% 117,276                
I-880 Corridor Improvements 275,742               2,047,184            13.47% 1,771,443             
CWTP/TEP Development -                          36,517                 0.00% 36,517                  
Studies at Congested Seg/Loc on CMP -                          207,047               0.00% 207,047                

6.13E

Page 129



Alameda CTC Capital Projects Funds
Revenues/Expenditures

Actual vs Budget
as of March 31, 2015

Favorable
(Unfavorable)

YTD Actuals YTD Budget % Used Variance

  ACCMA
Salaries and Benefits 438,064               402,114               108.94% (35,950)                 
Grand MacArthur -                          16,500                 0.00% 16,500                  
I-680 Sunol Express Lanes-Southbound (44,336)                3,046,896            -1.46% 3,091,232             
Route 24 Caldecott Tunnel Settlement 378,900               1,308,215            28.96% 929,315                
I-880 North Safety & Oper Impr @ 23rd/29th 1,711,840            5,693,983            30.06% 3,982,143             
I-580 EB HOV/HOT/AUX Lane 11,258,054          18,491,324          60.88% 7,233,270             
I-680 Sunol Express Lanes-Northbound 547,069               1,596,076            34.28% 1,049,006             
I-580 Corridor ROW Preservation 21,569                 456,315               4.73% 434,746                
I-580 Westbound HOV/HOT Lane 7,847,231            18,289,095          42.91% 10,441,864           
Altamont Commuter Express-Operations 648,306               1,512,169            42.87% 863,863                
I-880 Southbound HOV Lane 449,527               6,758,606            6.65% 6,309,079             
Webster Street SMART Corridor 13,476                 256,206               5.26% 242,730                
Marina Boulevard/I-880 PSR (9,893)                  171,391               -5.77% 181,284                
I-80 Gilman Interchange Improvements 85,615                 512,462               16.71% 426,847                
I-680/I-880 Cross Connector PSR -                          255,370               0.00% 255,370                
I-680 SB HOV Lane -                          2,940,714            0.00% 2,940,714             
I-580 Soundwall Design 27,785                 139,717               19.89% 111,932                
Route 84 Widening-Pigeon Pass to I-680 23,019                 1,488,529            1.55% 1,465,510             
I-80 Integrated Corridor Mobility 4,251,504            12,105,575          35.12% 7,854,071             
SMART Corridors Operations and Management 58,033                 1,133,360            5.12% 1,075,327             

Total Expenditures 71,018,212$        222,987,302$      151,969,089$       

Net revenue over / (under) expenditures (13,200,913)$       (91,271,948)$       

Page 130



Net Sales Tax 99,002,429.14$   A
Investments & Other Income (7,538,553.97)      B

   Funds Generated 91,463,875.17     C

Salaries & Benefits 602,193.17          D
Other Admin Costs 3,207,126.83       E
   Total Admin Costs 3,809,320.00$     F

Gross Admin Salaries & Benefits to Net Sales Tax 0.6083% = D/A

Gross Admin Salaries & Benefits to Funds Generated 0.6584% = D/C

Total Admin Costs to Net Sales Tax 3.8477% = F/A

Alameda County Transportation Improvement Authority
Fiscal Year 2014-2015

Budget Limitations Calculations 
As of March 31, 2015

6.13F

Page 131



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 132



Alameda County Transportation Commission
Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee

Roster and Attendance Fiscal Year 2014-2015

Suffix Last Name First Name City Appointed By Term 
Began

Re-
apptmt.

Term 
Expires

Mtgs Missed  
Since Jul '14*

1 Ms. Tabata, Chair Midori Oakland Alameda County Mayors' Conference, D-4 Jul-06 Sep-13 Sep-15 0

2 Ms. Zimmerman,
Vice-Chair Sara Berkeley Alameda County Mayors' Conference, D-5 Apr-14 Apr-16 0

3 Mr. Fishbaugh David Fremont Alameda County
Supervisor Scott Haggerty, District 1 Jan-14 Jan-16 0

4 Ms. Gigli Lucy Alameda Alameda County
Supervisor Wilma Chan, District 3 Jan-07 Oct-12 Oct-14 1

5 Mr. Johansen Jeremy San Leandro Alameda County Mayors' Conference, D-3 Sep-10 Sep-13 Sep-15 0

6 Mr. Jordan Preston Albany Alameda County
Supervisor Keith Carson, District 5 Oct-08 Oct-14 Oct-16 2

7 Ms. Marleau Kristi Dublin Alameda County Mayors' Conference, D-1 Dec-14 Dec-16 0

8 Mr. Schweng Ben Alameda Alameda County Mayors' Conference, D-2 Jun-13 Jun-15 1

9 Ms. Shaw Diane Fremont Transit Agency
(Alameda CTC) Apr-14 Apr-16 0

10 Mr. Turner Matt Castro Valley Alameda County
Supervisor Nate Miley, District 4 Apr-14 Apr-16 1

11 Vacancy Alameda County
Supervisor Richard Valle, District 2

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\BPAC\Records_Admin\Members\MemberRoster\BPAC_Roster and Attendance_FY14-15_20150126

7.1

Page 133



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 134



 Alameda County Transportation Commission
Citizens Watchdog Committee
Roster - Fiscal Year 2014-2015

Title Last First City Appointed By Term Began Re-apptmt. Term Expires Mtgs Missed  
Since July '14*

1 Mr. Paxson, Chair James Pleasanton East Bay Economic Development Alliance Apr-01 N/A 0

2 Ms. Taylor, Vice Chair Deborah Oakland Alameda County
Supervisor Wilma Chan, D-3 Jan-13 Jan-15 1

3 Ms. Brown Cheryl Oakland Alameda Labor Council (AFL-CIO) Apr-15 Apr-17 0

4 Ms. Dorsey Cynthia Oakland Alameda County Mayors' Conference, D-5 Jan-14 Jan-16 1

5 Ms. Hamlat Sandra Oakland Bike East Bay Apr-13 N/A 0

6 Mr. Hastings Herb Dublin Paratransit Advisory and Planning Committee Jul-14 N/A 0

7 Ms. Hawley Miriam Berkeley League of Women Voters Apr-14 N/A 2

8 Mr. Jones Steven Dublin Alameda County Mayors' Conference, D-1 Dec-12 Jan-15 Jan-17 0

9 Mr. Lester Brian Pleasanton Alameda County
Supervisor Scott Haggerty, D-1 Sep-13 Sep-15 4

10 Ms. Lew Jo Ann Union City Alameda County Mayors' Conference, D-2 Oct-07 Sep-13 Sep-15 0

11 Mr. McCalley Murphy Castro Valley Alameda County
Supervisor Nate Miley, D-4 Feb-15 Feb-17 0

12 Mr. Naté Glenn Union City Alameda County
Supervisor Richard Valle, D-2 Jan-15 Jan-17 0

13 Ms. Piras Pat San Lorenzo Sierra Club Jan-15 Jan-17 0

14 Ms. Saunders Harriette Alameda Alameda County Mayors' Conference, D-3 Jul-09 Jul-14 Jul-16 0

15 Mr. Tucknott Robert A. Pleasanton Alameda County Mayors' Conference, D-4 Jun-14 Jun-16 1

7.2

Page 135



 Alameda County Transportation Commission
Citizens Watchdog Committee
Roster - Fiscal Year 2014-2015

16 Mr. Zukas Hale Berkeley Alameda County
Supervisor Keith Carson, D-5 Jun-09 May-14 May-16 2

17 Vacancy Alameda County Taxpayers Association

Page 136



 

 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20150427_Joint\3.1_PAPCO_Meeting_Minutes_20150323.docx  

 

Paratransit Advisory and Planning Committee 
Meeting Minutes 

Monday, March 23, 2015, 1:00 p.m. 

 
MEETING ATTENDEES 

Attendance Key (A = Absent, P = Present) 

Members: 

_A_ Sylvia Stadmire, 

Chair 

_P_ Will Scott,  

Vice-Chair 

_P_ Larry Bunn 

_P_ Shawn Costello 

_P_ Herb Hastings 

_P_ Joyce 

Jacobson 

_P Sandra  

Johnson-Simon 

_P Jonah Markowitz 

_P Rev. Carolyn Orr 

_A Suzanne Ortt 

_A Thomas Perez 

_P Sharon Powers 

_P Vanessa Proee 

 

_A Carmen Rivera-

Hendrickson 

_P Michelle Rousey 

_P Harriette 

Saunders 

_P Esther Waltz 

_P Hale Zukas

 

Staff:  

_P_ Jacki Taylor, Program Analyst 

_P_ Naomi Armenta, Paratransit Coordinator 

_P_ Krystle Pasco, Paratransit Coordination Team 

_P_ Terra Curtis, Paratransit Coordination Team 

_P_ Christina Ramos, Project Controls Team 

 

Guests:  

Ken Bukowski, Public Member; Alison Dejung, Eden I&R; Rashida Kamara, 

Transdev; Rick Otto, Eden I&R; Kim Ridgeway, AC Transit; Laura Timothy, 

BART 

 

MEETING MINUTES 

 

1. Welcome and Introductions 

Herb Hastings, PAPCO member, called the meeting to order in the 

temporary absence of the Chair and Vice Chair at 1:10 p.m. and 

confirmed a quorum. The meeting began with introductions and a 

review of the meeting outcomes. 

 

2. Public Comment 

7.3

Page 137



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20150427_Joint\3.1_PAPCO_Meeting_Minutes_20150323.docx  

 

There were no public comments. 

 

3. Administration 

 

3.1. February 23, 2015 PAPCO Meeting Minutes 

Jonah Markowitz moved to approve the February 23, 2015 PAPCO 

Meeting minutes as written. Esther Waltz seconded the motion. The 

motion passed (10-0-1; Member Harriette Saunders abstained). 

Members Shawn Costello, Herb Hastings, Joyce Jacobson, Sandra 

Johnson-Simon, Jonah Markowitz, Carolyn Orr, Sharon Powers, 

Michelle Rousey, Harriette Saunders, Esther Waltz, and Hale Zukas 

were present. 

 

3.2. February 23, 2015 Joint PAPCO and ParaTAC Meeting Minutes 

Jonah Markowitz moved to approve the February 23, 2015 PAPCO 

Meeting minutes as written. Esther Waltz seconded the motion. The 

motion passed (10-0-1; Member Harriette Saunders abstained). 

Members Shawn Costello, Herb Hastings, Joyce Jacobson, Sandra 

Johnson-Simon, Jonah Markowitz, Carolyn Orr, Sharon Powers, 

Michelle Rousey, Harriette Saunders, Esther Waltz, and Hale Zukas 

were present. 

 

At this point, PAPCO Vice Chair Will Scott arrived and chaired the 

meeting moving forward. 

 

3.3. Convene Finance, Program Plan Review and Gap Subcommittees 

Naomi Armenta gave an overview of the Fiduciary and Finance 

Subcommittee as well as the Program Plan Review Subcommittee. 

She also noted that staff is recommending that a potential Gap 

Grant Cycle 5 Subcommittee be convened in May if necessary. 

 

Naomi noted the subcommittees’ background and purpose as 

well as the selection, process and the overall responsibilities of the 

subcommittee members. The PAPCO members that participate in 

these committees will receive a per diem as stated in the Bylaws. 

The Fiduciary and Finance Subcommittee will take place on 

Thursday, April 16th at 10:00 a.m. The Program Plan Review 

Page 138



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20150427_Joint\3.1_PAPCO_Meeting_Minutes_20150323.docx  

 

Subcommittees will take place on Wednesday, April 29th and 

Thursday, April 40th at 9:00 a.m. 

 

Staff will review the Finance and Program Plan Review 

Subcommittee appointment applications that were submitted 

and notify Committee members who will be appointed to both 

subcommittees. 

 

4. Gap Grant Cycle 5 Progress Reports (Verbal) 

Naomi Armenta gave an update on the Gap Grant Cycle 5 progress 

reports. 

 

Questions and feedback from PAPCO members: 

 Can we receive cost per trip information in the next progress 

report update? Yes, staff will provide that information from actual 

costs from the previous year and projections for the following 

year. Staff also noted that these figures will be staff estimates as 

this information is difficult to capture accurately. 

 Does staff anticipate a date when they will receive the City of 

Emeryville’s progress report? Alameda CTC staff is following up 

with the City of Emeryville’s staff on submitting their progress 

report and will forward PAPCO’s request that it be submitted by 

by Monday, March 30th. 

 

5. East Bay Paratransit Report (Verbal) 

Rashida Kamara and Laura Timothy gave a status report on East Bay 

Paratransit’s ridership, customer service and recent broker office 

activities. 

 

Questions and feedback from PAPCO members: 

 A member complimented Rashida Kamara on her thorough 

report. 

 A member noted that hospital staff sometimes needs extra time 

to get a patient ready for their EBP pick up time. They often feel 

rushed. EBP staff noted that some situations are just unavoidable 

and that is okay but it would be preferable if the hospital staff 

can help move the process along in any way. 

Page 139



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20150427_Joint\3.1_PAPCO_Meeting_Minutes_20150323.docx  

 

 Some riders really rely on the courtesy call to let them know that 

the driver is on their way. Somehow I am no longer receiving 

those calls, why is that? There are only so many call center 

dispatchers that can give out courtesy calls. We have several 

hundred rides each day so not everyone is able to receive a call. 

If you really need the courtesy call, please let us know so that we 

can make a note of it on your client profile. 

 A member noted that as riders we have to take some initiative 

ourselves to be ready for our drivers to pick us up. That may 

mean being outside, waiting for the driver to pull up. Staff noted 

that until the Interactive Voice Response (IVR) system is fully rolled 

out, staff is not able to make all courtesy calls as needed. 

 A member noted that sometimes he is strapped in too tight 

across the chest and shoulders and as the driver makes 

repeated stops and/or has to stop immediately, the shoulder 

strap ends up hurting his chest. He noted that First Transit drivers 

are mainly the drivers that strap him in too tight. He suggested 

that maybe there be additional driver training on passenger 

safety and comfort. Staff will follow up on how they can improve 

the riders’ experience with regards to the shoulder strap. 

 

6. Gap Grant Cycle 5 Program Report: AC Transit New Freedom Match 

for Marketing Mobility Management Through 2-1-1 (Verbal) 

Rick Otto and Kim Ridgeway gave a Gap Grant Cycle 5 program 

report on the AC Transit New Freedom Match for Marketing Mobility 

Management Through 2-1-1 project. Kim gave an overview of the 

project’s parameters, goals, and various tasks. 

 

Questions and feedback from PAPCO members: 

 Will you be buying the equipment before you hire new 

employees? Yes, staff is planning on buying the equipment by 

June 1st and the new hires will come on by June 15th and training 

will happen soon thereafter. 

 A member suggested that the computer systems that are 

purchased be compatible with assistive technology just in case 

any of the new hires have limited vision and/or hearing 

capabilities. 

Page 140



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20150427_Joint\3.1_PAPCO_Meeting_Minutes_20150323.docx  

 

 How long will it take to train the new hires and the current staff 

members that will be working with this project? Eden I&R staff will 

be training all staff members working on this project on Eden I&R 

processes and it will take about a week to complete the training. 

 

7. Member Reports on PAPCO Mission, Roles, and Responsibilities 

Implementation 

Esther Waltz attended the USOAC Convention and she had a great 

time learning new information and meeting new people. 

 

Harriette Saunders attended the Alameda CTC Public Workshop for 

the Modal Plans at the Fruitvale-San Antonio Senior Center on 

Tuesday, February 24th. She also attended the Developmental 

Disabilities Council’s Transition Information Faire at the College of 

Alameda on Saturday, March 14th. 

 

Sandra Johnson-Simon also attended the USOAC Convention and it 

was well attended. She also announced that the Healthy Living 

Festival this year will be on Thursday, September 17th from 8:00 to 2:00 

p.m. at the Oakland Zoo. 

 

Joyce Jacobson noted that the funding for the Emery-Go-Round will 

be voted on again really soon. She also noted that she saw Matt 

Todd, former Programs Manager for the Alameda CTC, and shared 

that the meetings about the Emery-Go-Round have become more 

pleasant and cooperative since he has been involved. A new bus 

stop was even added without asking. She really appreciates Matt 

Todd’s presence at those meetings. 

 

Michelle Rousey attended the Developmental Disabilities Council’s 

Transition Information Faire at the College of Alameda on Saturday, 

March 14th. 

 

8. Committee Reports (Verbal) 

 

8.1. East Bay Paratransit Service Review Advisory Committee (SRAC) 

The next SRAC meeting is on Thursday, March 26th at 11:30 a.m. 

 

Page 141



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20150427_Joint\3.1_PAPCO_Meeting_Minutes_20150323.docx  

 

8.2. Citizens Watchdog Committee (CWC) 

The last CWC meeting took place on Monday, March 9th. Due to 

the passage of the TEP, the Committee will now be called the 

Independent Watchdog Committee moving forward. Members 

also discussed the Committee’s mission and responsibilities and 

members had the opportunity to sign up for various project 

subcommittees. 

 

9. ADA Mandated Program and Policy Reports 

PAPCO members were asked to review the information provided in 

their packets.  

 

10. Information Items 

 

10.1. Mobility Management – Taxi, Limousine, and Paratransit 

Association Information 

Naomi Armenta reviewed the mobility management 

attachment in the meeting agenda packet. She noted that this 

attachment is relevant to the conversation regarding private 

operators like the Transportation Network Companies (TNCs) i.e. 

Uber, Lyft and Sidecar. 

 

10.2. Outreach Update 

Krystle Pasco gave an update on the following outreach 

events: 

 3/14/15 – Transition Information Faire, College of Alameda 

from 9:30 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. 

 3/17/15 – Transit Fair, Pleasanton Senior Center from 10:00 

a.m. to 1:00 p.m. 

 3/20/15 – USOAC Annual Convention, Ashland Community 

Center from 10:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m. 

 4/1/15 – BART Train and Track Tour, 19th Street BART Station, 

Upper Platform from 10:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. 

 4/23/15 – Senior Health Fair, North Berkeley Senior Center 

from 10:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m. 

 

10.3. Other Staff Updates 

Page 142



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20150427_Joint\3.1_PAPCO_Meeting_Minutes_20150323.docx  

 

Naomi Armenta noted that the meeting’s handouts include 

information on the BART and CIL Train and Track Tour for seniors 

and people with disabilities, information on an assistive device 

presentation, and the DIS/PLAY Exhibition at the SOMArts 

Cultural Center. 

 

11. Draft Agenda Items for April 27, 2015 PAPCO and Joint PAPCO and 

ParaTAC Meeting 

11.1. Gap Grant Cycle 5 Program Extension Recommendation 

11.2. Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority (LAVTA) Quarterly 

Report 

11.3. Finance Subcommittee Status Report 

11.4. Hospital Discharge Transportation Service and Wheelchair 

Scooter Breakdown Transportation Service Programs Update 

11.5. BART Fleet of the Future Presentation 

11.6. Joint PAPCO and ParaTAC Discussion 

 

12. Adjournment 

The meeting adjourned at 3:30 p.m. The next PAPCO and Joint 

PAPCO and ParaTAC meetings are scheduled for April 27, 2015 at 

Alameda CTC’s offices located at 1111 Broadway, Suite 800, in 

Oakland. 

 

Page 143



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 144



Alameda County Transportation Commission
Paratransit Advisory and Planning Committee

Roster - Fiscal Year 2014-2015

Title Last First City Appointed By Term 
Began Re-apptmt. Term 

Expires
Mtgs Missed 
Since July '14

1 Ms. Stadmire, Chair Sylvia J. Oakland Alameda County
Supervisor Wilma Chan, D-3 Sep-07 Jan-13 Jan-15 2

2 Mr. Scott, Vice Chair Will Oakland Alameda County
Supervisor Keith Carson, D-5 Mar-10 May-14 May-16 0

3 Mr. Bunn Larry Union City Union City Transit
Wilson Lee, Transit Manager Jun-06 Dec-13 Dec-15 5

4 Mr. Costello Shawn Dublin City of Dublin
 Mayor David Haubert Sep-08 May-14 May-16 1

5 Mr. Hastings Herb Dublin Alameda County
Supervisor Scott Haggerty, D-1 Mar-07 Jan-14 Jan-16 1

6 Ms. Jacobson Joyce Emeryville City of Emeryville
Mayor Ruth Atkin Mar-07 Jan-14 Jan-16 1

7 Ms. Johnson-Simon Sandra San Leandro Alameda County
Supervisor Nate Miley, D-4 Sep-10 Dec-13 Dec-15 1

8 Mr. Markowitz Jonah Berkeley City of Albany
Vice Mayor Peter Maass Dec-04 Oct-12 Oct-14 0

9 Rev. Orr Carolyn M. Oakland City of Oakland
Councilmember Rebecca Kaplan Oct-05 Jan-14 Jan-16 4

10 Mr. Perez Thomas M. Fremont Alameda County
Supervisor Richard Valle, D-2 Feb-14 Feb-16 3

11 Ms. Powers Sharon Fremont City of Fremont
Mayor William Harrison Dec-07 Jan-14 Jan-16 2

12 Ms. Proee Vanessa Hayward City of Hayward
Councilmember Marvin Peixoto Mar-10 Jan-14 Jan-16 2

Page 145



Alameda County Transportation Commission
Paratransit Advisory and Planning Committee

Roster - Fiscal Year 2014-2015

Title Last First City Appointed By Term 
Began Re-apptmt. Term 

Expires
Mtgs Missed 
Since July '14

13 Ms. Rivera-Hendrickson Carmen Pleasanton City of Pleasanton
Mayor Jerry Thorne Sep-09 Feb-14 Feb-16 6

14 Ms. Rousey Michelle Oakland BART
Director Tom Blalock May-10 Jan-14 Jan-16 1

15 Ms. Saunders Harriette Alameda City of Alameda
Mayor Trish Spencer Jun-08 Oct-12 Oct-14 1

16 Ms. Waltz Esther Ann Livermore LAVTA
Executive Director Michael Tree Feb-11 May-14 May-16 0

17 Mr. Zukas Hale Berkeley A. C. Transit
Director Elsa Ortiz Aug-02 Jan-14 Jan-16 0

18 Vacancy City of Berkeley
Councilmember Laurie Capitelli

19 Vacancy City of Livermore
Mayor John Marchand

20 Vacancy City of Newark
Councilmember Luis Freitas

21 Vacancy City of Piedmont
Mayor Margaret Fujioka

22 Vacancy City of San Leandro
Mayor Pauline Cutter

23 Vacancy City of Union City
Mayor Carol Dutra-Vernaci

Page 146



 
 
 

 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150528\8.1_Legislation\8.1_LegislativeUpdate.docx 

 

Memorandum  8.1 

 

DATE: May 21, 2015 

SUBJECT: Legislative Update 

RECOMMENDATION: Receive an update on state and federal legislative activities and 
approve legislative positions 

 

Summary 

This memo provides an update on federal, state and local legislative activities including 
an update on the federal budget, federal transportation issues, legislative activities and 
policies at the state level, as well as an update on local legislative activities.   

Alameda CTC’s legislative program was approved in December 2014 establishing 
legislative priorities for 2015 and is included in summary format in Attachment A.  The 2015 
Legislative Program is divided into six sections: Transportation Funding, Project Delivery, 
Multi-Modal Transportation and Land Use, Climate Change, Goods Movement and 
Partnerships. The program was designed to be broad and flexible to allow Alameda CTC 
the opportunity to pursue legislative and administrative opportunities that may arise 
during the year, and to respond to political processes in Sacramento and Washington, 
DC.  Each month, staff brings updates to the Commission on legislative issues related to 
the adopted legislative program, including recommended positions on bills as well as 
legislative updates. 

Background 

State Update 

State Budget Update:  An update on the Governor’s budget May Revise will be made at 
the Commission meeting.  The Controller’s estimated receipts for March continued to 
show gains over the budget estimate.  Total receipts were $547 million above the January 
budget estimates for March.  Most of this growth came from personal income taxes that 
beat projections by $498 million, and corporation taxes were $77 million higher.  Sales tax 
receipts were lower than anticipated by $96 million.  For the fiscal year to date, general 
fund receipts are running at $75 billion, or 2.1% above the January projections. 

With April being the most critical revenue month, the Controller has posted a daily tracker 
of income tax revenue.  The estimate for April is $12.2 billion in income tax revenue.  As of 

Page 147



 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150528\8.1_Legislation\8.1_LegislativeUpdate.docx  

 

April 16th, income tax receipts totaled $7.76 billion, with $2.75 billion coming in on April 
16th.   

Budget Subcommittee Actions:  The Governor’s budget proposal included two 
transportation trailer bills.  The first would expand the authority for the CTC authorize the 
construction and operation of express lanes and the second would enact a streamlined 
process for relinquishing highways to local control.  The Senate Budget Subcommittee #2 
moved both of these proposals to the policy committee in mid-April.  This means these 
proposals must follow the usual legislative process.  However, if these proposals are a 
priority for the Administration, it is expected that negotiations will continue behind the 
scenes, and these proposals could resurface as budget trailer bills. 

Road User Charge and Budget: The Senate Subcommittee also deferred action on the 
Administration’s proposal for funding the Road User Charge Pilot Program.  The proposed 
budget includes $9.6 million in order to implement SB 1077.  This includes $8.8 million for 
Caltrans to contract with consultants, and about $780,000 for staffing at Caltrans and the 
CTC.  The proposal would specifically allow Caltrans to encumber the consultant funds 
over the next two fiscal years.  The LAO has expressed concerns about this proposal, 
raising questions about Caltrans having already entered into a contract for consultant 
services before the funds are appropriated, and pointing out that the Administration has 
not provided a complete plan for the requested funds.   

Senator Lois Wolk, who chairs the Subcommittee, expressed her preference for 
appropriating only a single year’s worth of funds, and Senator Fran Pavley stated that she 
voted against SB 1077, and the lone Republican member, Senator Jim Nielsen, expressed 
concerns over how controversial the concept is.  Therefore, the Subcommittee did not 
adopt the staff recommendation to approve this request, and put this item over to a 
future hearing date. 

Legislative Background and Recommended Positions: The following provides a summary 
of several recently introduced or amended bills that include transportation funding 
proposals, cap and trade modifications, housing funding, bicycle safety, contracting bill, 
increases in green clean vehicle stickers, a bill that seeks to amend the Congestion 
Management Program statute and a bill related to disabled placards. Table 1 includes 
recommended bill positions on some of these bills.   

Transportation Funding Plans:  There are several transportation funding proposals related 
to either increasing funding for transportation or redirecting funds that currently pay for 
transportation bonds into transportation projects. 

SB 16:  Senator Beal officially unveiled his transportation funding proposal in mid-April.  This 
proposal has been amended into SB 16, and provides a funding plan that directs 
additional revenue to maintaining state highways and local streets and roads without 
impacting the general fund.  The Senate proposal would generate up to $3.6 billion 

Page 148



 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150528\8.1_Legislation\8.1_LegislativeUpdate.docx  

 

annually over the next 5 years.  This funding plan would remain in place through the 2019-
2020 fiscal year, unless it is extended by the Legislature.   

Revenue generation would be from the following: 

• 10 cent increase in the excise tax for gasoline. 
• 12 cent increase in the excise tax for diesel. 
• Phase in over five years the return of truck weight fees to transportation 

accounts. 
• Phase in over five years a .35 percent increase the Vehicle License Fee.  This 

revenue would be dedicated to pay the debt service on transportation bonds. 
• Repay existing loans made from transportation accounts over 3 years.  The total 

amount of debt to be repaid is a little under $1 billion. 
• Increase the base vehicle registration fee by $35. 
• Increase the vehicle registration fee for zero emission vehicles by $100.  A zero 

emission vehicle includes any vehicle that operates on a fuel other than 
gasoline or diesel.  

• If the Legislature does not extend this plan beyond the 2019-20 fiscal year then 
the excise tax increase and the fee imposed on vehicles and zero emission 
vehicles would sunset. 

Allocation of funds for transportation purposes are as follows: 

• State Highway Maintenance:  50% of the remaining funds would be allocated 
to Caltrans for the State Highway Operation and Protection Program (SHOPP). 

• Local Roads Maintenance: 50% of the remaining funds would be allocated to 
cities and counties.  Half of these would be allocated to cities on a per capita 
basis.  Counties would be allocated the remaining half based on the formula 
whereby 75% of the funds are allocated on the county’s share of registered 
vehicles, and 25% based on a county’s share county maintained road miles. 

• Incentives for Counties without sales tax measures:  5% off the top would be set 
aside as an incentive for counties that currently do not have a local 
transportation sales tax programs to adopt one.  These funds would be used to 
match local sales tax revenue generated in a county that adopts a program for 
the first time after July 1, 2015.  Any funds unspent in any fiscal year would be 
split between the SHOPP and local streets and road program. 

• Goods Movement: 2 cents of the diesel excise tax increase is directed to the 
Trade Corridors Improvement Fund, or approximately $50 million per year. 

Reporting Requirements for the use of these funds include the following:  

• In order for cities and counties to receive funds from the Controller, they must 
submit to the CTC a list of projects proposed to be funded.  Upon approval by 

Page 149



 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150528\8.1_Legislation\8.1_LegislativeUpdate.docx  

 

the CTC, the Controller will then apportion that local government’s share of the 
funds. 

• Cities, counties and Caltrans are required to annually submit to the CTC 
documentation of each project completed, the amount of funds expended, 
and the useful life of the project.  The CTC is required to evaluate the 
documentation to determine how effective the agency has been in reducing 
deferred maintenance and improving road conditions. 

• SB 16 proposes a maintenance of effort (MOE) requirement that each city or 
county must achieve in order to be eligible to receive funds.  The MOE requires 
the city or county to continue to expend the annual average expenditure from 
its general fund for road purposes during the 2009-10, 2010-11, and 2011-12 
fiscal years. 

Caltrans Efficiency requirements are included in SB 16 as follows: 

• SB 16 requires Caltrans to submit a plan to the CTC that outlines how Caltrans 
will improve efficiencies by 30% over the subsequent three years.   

• The saving resulting from this plan shall be used for SHOPP projects. 

As reflected in Table 1, staff recommends a support position on this bill. This bill was 
discussed at the April Commission meeting and the Commission took an action to seek 
amendments on the bill.  Staff is working with the author’s office to address amendments 
to support rewarding self-help counties such as Alameda CTC.  Attachment B includes an 
analysis of SB 16 and a list of supporters.   

Other Funding Proposals:   

SCA 7:  Last week the Senate Republican Caucus introduced SCA 7.  This measure would 
amend the Constitution to prohibit the use of any transportation funds, including truck 
weight fees, from being used to pay general obligation bond debt.  SCA 7 would, 
however, authorize the use of up to 25% of excise tax revenue to be used for debt service 
on bonds issued after November 2, 2010, if the voters specifically authorize that use.  In 
addition, SCA 7 would add to Article 19 a provision that any increase in to the vehicle 
license fee above the current .65 percent rate must be used for transportation purposes. 
Staff recommends a watch position on this bill due to the potential impact on the general 
fund. 

AB 227: In mid-March, the Assembly Committee on Transportation approved AB 227 by 
Assemblyman Luis Alejo (D).  This is another measure that would halt the use of truck 
weight fees for paying transportation bond debt, and it would require all outstanding 
loans from transportation accounts to be repaid by December 31, 2018.  The revenue 
returned to transportation accounts would be allocated 44% STIP, 12% SHOPP, and 44% 
local streets and roads.  AB 227 does not propose any fee or tax increases that would be 

Page 150



 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150528\8.1_Legislation\8.1_LegislativeUpdate.docx  

 

used to alleviate the impact to the general fund. Staff recommends a watch position on 
this bill. 

AB 4:  Assembly member Linder introduced this bill to prohibit the use of weight fee 
revenue from being used to pay for transportation bond debt service until January 1, 
2020.  The gas tax swap legislation included a roundabout transfer of weight fee revenue 
from the State Highway Account to the Transportation Debt Service Fund in order to 
alleviated pressure on the general fund.  AB 4 would end this practice for four years.  Staff 
recommends a watch position on this bill due to the potential impact on the general 
fund. 

Recommended Legislative Positions  

The following are recommended Alameda CTC legislative positions  

Bill Number and 
Author 

Bill Purpose and Description Alameda CTC 
Recommendation 

SB 16 
(Beall D)  
Department of 
Transportation. 

SB 16 was amended to include Senator 
Beall’s transportation funding measure.  This 
bill would increase various fees and taxes, 
and would end the use of weight fees to 
pay for bond debt service.   

SB 16 would generate up to $3.6 billion 
annually for the next five years.  This 
revenue would be used to fund 
maintenance needs for state highways and 
local streets and roads. 

• Alameda CTC’s adopted legislative 
program states, “Support increasing 
the buying power of the gas tax 
and/or increasing transportation 
revenues through vehicle license 
fees, vehicle miles traveled, or other 
reliable means.  Support a 
designated funding stream for goods 
movement.”  Therefore, staff 
recommends a support position on 
this bill and is working with the 
author’s office to support rewarding 
self-help counties. 

SUPPORT if 
amended 

Page 151

http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/cgi-bin/postquery?bill_number=sb_16&sess=1516&house=B
http://sd15.senate.ca.gov/


 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150528\8.1_Legislation\8.1_LegislativeUpdate.docx  

 

 

AB 1335 
(Atkins D)  
Building Homes and 
Jobs Act. 

AB 1335 would enact the Building Homes 
and Jobs Act.  Similar to an effort by 
Senator DeSaulnier, this bill would impose a 
$75 fee on recording specified real estate 
documents.  The revenue generated would 
be used to fund low income housing 
projects.  

Staff recommends support of this bill in 
recognition of the need for a funding 
stream for housing that does not compete 
with transportation funding. 

SUPPORT 

AB 902 
(Bloom D)  
Traffic violations: 
diversion programs 

AB 902 would authorize a local authority to 
allow an individual regardless of age who 
committed a traffic offense not involving a 
vehicle, such as while bicycling, to attend 
a diversion program instead of paying a 
fine.  Staff recommends a support position 
on this bill to increase awareness of bicycle 
safety and safe riding practices. 

SUPPORT 

 

Federal Update 

The following updates provide information on activities and issues at the federal level and 
include information contributed from Alameda CTC’s lobbyist team (CJ Lake/Len Simon). 

MAP-21 Reauthorization Update: Both chambers in Congress are working on identifying a 
highway funding mechanism, as authorization for federal highway and mass transit programs 
expires May 31. 

Several efforts ranging from bills being introduction on indexing the gas tax to repatriation of 
overseas funds to per-barrel  tax on oil to press-conferences to highlight the importance of 
federal transportation funding have been taking place to come up with a bi-partisan 
approach to a long-term bill.  It is likely that a short-term funding bill will be presented in the 
House within the next few weeks.  It is clear that Congress wants to address the funding 
shortfall—as multiple bipartisan  proposals have been discussed throughout the year—
however, the means to that end is still the point of contention. 

Page 152

javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%201335');
http://asmdc.org/speaker/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%20902');
http://asmdc.org/members/a50/


 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150528\8.1_Legislation\8.1_LegislativeUpdate.docx  

 

Department of Transportation Federal Transportation bill proposal:  At the end of  March, 
Secretary Foxx released  Generating  Renewal,  Opportunity,  and Work with Accelerated 
Mobility, Efficiency, and Rebuilding of Infrastructure and Communities throughout America 
(GROW AMERICA) Act. This ambitious bill would authorize $478 billion to be spent over six 
years on surface transportation programs.  

With the current authorization expiring by May 31, the bill provides Congress the option to 
increase surface transportation investment by 45 percent from current levels. The bill would: 
provide more funding to high-performing Metropolitan Planning Organizations (MPOs), put in 
place a transparent and clear permitting process to speed up project delivery, establish an 
$18 billion freight program to improve freight  rail service,  raise transit  investment by 76 
percent, double the TIGER Grant program, and  strengthen the TIFIA Loan  program.   

The Administration’s proposal is funded by supplementing current revenues from the Highway 
Trust Fund in combination with a 14 percent transition tax on the up to $2 trillion of untaxed 
foreign earnings that U.S. companies have accumulated overseas. This will prevent Trust Fund 
insolvency for six years and increase investments to meet national economic goals. 

Fiscal Impact: There is no fiscal impact.  

Attachments 

A. Alameda CTC 2014 Legislation Program 
B. SB 16 Bill Analysis and List of Supports 

 

Staff Contact  

Tess Lengyel, Deputy Director of Planning and Policy 

Page 153

mailto:TLengyel@AlamedaCTC.org


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 154



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150528\8.1_Legislation\8.1A_2015_Legislative_Platform_Table_20150105.docx 

2015 Alameda County Transportation Commission Legislative Program 
The legislative program herein supports Alameda CTC’s transportation vision below adopted in the 2012 Countywide Transportation Plan: 

“Alameda County will be served by a premier transportation system that supports a vibrant and livable Alameda County through a connected and integrated multimodal transportation 
system promoting sustainability, access, transit operations, public health and economic opportunities. Our vision recognizes the need to maintain and operate our existing transportation infrastructure 
and services while developing new investments that are targeted, effective, financially sound and supported by appropriate land uses. Mobility in Alameda County will be guided by transparent 
decision-making and measureable performance indicators. Our transportation system will be: Multimodal; Accessible, Affordable and Equitable for people of all ages, incomes, abilities and 
geographies; Integrated with land use patterns and local decision-making; Connected across the county, within and across the network of streets, highways and transit, bicycle and pedestrian routes; 
Reliable and Efficient; Cost Effective; Well Maintained; Safe; Supportive of a Healthy and Clean Environment.” 

(adopted December 2014) 

Issue Priority Strategy Concepts 

Transportation 
Funding 

Increase transportation funding 

• Support efforts to lower the two-thirds-voter threshold for voter-approved transportation measures. 
• Support increasing the buying power of the gas tax and/or increasing transportation revenues through vehicle license 

fees, vehicle miles traveled, or other reliable means. 
• Support efforts that protect against transportation funding diversions. 

Protect and enhance voter-approved funding 

• Support legislation and increased funding from new and/or flexible funding sources to Alameda County for operating, 
maintaining, restoring, and improving transportation infrastructure and operations. 

• Support increases in federal, state, and regional funding to expedite delivery of Alameda CTC projects and programs. 
• Support efforts that give priority funding to voter-approved measures and oppose those that negatively affect the ability 

to implement voter-approved measures. 
• Support efforts that streamline financing and delivery of transportation projects and programs. 
• Support rewarding Self-Help Counties and states that provide significant transportation funding into transportation systems. 
• Seek, acquire, and implement grants to advance project and program delivery. 

Project Delivery 
Advance innovative project delivery 

• Support environmental streamlining and expedited project delivery. 
• Support contracting flexibility and innovative project delivery methods. 
• Support high-occupancy vehicle/toll lane expansion in Alameda County and the Bay Area, implementation of AB 1811, 

and efforts that promote effective implementation. 
• Support efforts to allow local agencies to advertise, award, and administer state highway system contracts largely funded  

by local agencies. 

Ensure cost-effective project delivery 
• Support efforts that reduce project and program implementation costs. 
• Support accelerating funding and policies to implement transportation projects that create jobs and economic growth. 

Multimodal 
Transportation and 
Land Use 

Reduce barriers to the implementation of 
transportation and land use investments 

• Support legislation that increases flexibility and reduces technical and funding barriers to investments linking 
transportation, housing, and jobs. 

• Support local flexibility and decision-making on land-use for transit oriented development (TOD) and priority development 
areas (PDAs). 

• Support innovative financing opportunities to fund TOD and PDA implementation. 

Expand multimodal systems and flexibility 

• Support policies that provide increased flexibility for transportation service delivery through innovative, flexible programs  
that address the needs of commuters, youth, seniors, people with disabilities and low-income people and do not create 
unfunded mandates. 

• Support investments in transportation for transit-dependent communities that provide enhanced access to goods, 
services, jobs, and education. 

• Support parity in pre-tax fringe benefits for public transit/vanpooling and parking. 

1111 Broadway, Suite 800, Oakland, CA  94607 
510.208.7400 

www.AlamedaCTC.org  
 

 
8.1A

Page 155

http://www.alamedactc.org/


R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150528\8.1_Legislation\8.1A_2015_Legislative_Platform_Table_20150105.docx 

Issue Priority Strategy Concepts 

Climate Change Support climate change legislation to reduce 
greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions 

• Support funding for innovative infrastructure, operations, and programs that relieve congestion, improve air quality, 
reduce emissions, and support economic development. 

• Support cap-and-trade funds to implement the Bay Area’s Sustainable Communities Strategy. 
• Support rewarding Self-Help Counties with cap-and-trade funds for projects and programs that are partially locally funded 

and reduce GHG emissions. 
• Support emerging technologies such as alternative fuels and fueling technology to reduce GHG emissions. 

Goods Movement Expand goods movement funding and policy 
development 

• Support goods movement efforts that enhance the economy, local communities, and the environment, and  
reduce impacts. 

• Support a designated funding stream for goods movement.  
• Support goods movement policies that enhance Bay Area goods movement planning, funding, delivery,  

and advocacy. 
• Ensure that Bay Area transportation systems are included in and prioritized in state and federal planning and  

funding processes. 

Partnerships Expand partnerships at the local, regional, state 
and federal levels 

• Support efforts that encourage regional cooperation and coordination to develop, promote, and fund solutions to 
regional transportation problems and support governmental efficiencies and cost savings in transportation. 

• Support policy development to influence transportation planning, policy, and funding at the county, regional, state, and 
federal levels. 

• Support efforts to maintain and expand local-, women-, minority- and small-business participation in competing  
for contracts. 

 

Page 156



SENATE COMMITTEE ON GOVERNANCE AND FINANCE 
Senator Robert M. Hertzberg, Chair 

2015 - 2016  Regular  

      

Bill No: SB 16 Hearing Date:  5/6/15 

Author: Beall Tax Levy: No 

Version: 4/15/15      Fiscal: Yes 

Consultant: Bouaziz 

 TRANSPORTATION FUNDING  

 
Imposes a $0.10 per gallon excise tax on gasoline, a $0.12 per gallon excise tax on diesel fuel, 

and increases the vehicle license and registration fees for five years. 
 

Background and Existing Law 

I.   Excise tax rates.   The Motor Vehicle Fuel Tax Law (MVFTL) and the Diesel Fuel Tax Law 

generally impose an excise tax on gasoline and diesel fuel upon: 

 The removal (except for aviation gasoline) at the refinery or terminal rack. 

 The entry into the state; and 

 The sale to an unlicensed person. 

For fiscal year (FY) 2015-16, the gasoline excise tax rate is set at $0.30 per gallon, and at $0.13 
per gallon on diesel fuel. 

Currently, as part of the “fuel tax swap,” retail sales of gasoline are exempt from the state’s 
General Fund rate.  The fuel tax swap also increased the sales and use tax rate on retail diesel 
fuel sales and purchases to offset the loss related to the diesel fuel excise tax rate reduction.  

Sales and use tax law provides that the excise tax on gasoline is included in the computation of 
locally imposed sales and use tax.  The excise tax imposed on diesel fuel is not subject to sales or 

use tax. 

Upon enactment of the fuel tax swap in March 2010, the gasoline excise tax rate was increased 
and included a floor stock tax, which is a way to equalize the excise tax paid on fuel held in 
inventory by a supplier, wholesaler or retailer prior to the effective date of a tax increase and fuel 

purchased after the tax increase.  Having a large fuel inventory before a tax rate increase takes 
effect can bring about a small windfall to a seller, who can raise the selling price of the fuel 

purchased prior to the increase and attribute the increase in price to the tax rate increase.  Since 
the diesel fuel excise tax rate was decreased, there was no need for a floor stock tax. 

The Local Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxation Law authorizes counties to impose countywide excise 
taxes on gasoline at increments of one cent per gallon, provided a majority of the voters approve 

the proposition.  The funds collected must be used only for purposes authorized by Article XIX 
of the California Constitution, such as transportation planning and construction.  To date, no 

county imposes a local fuel tax under this authority. 

 

8.1B

Page 157



SB 16 (Beall) 4/15/15   Page 2 of 5 
 

In addition, federal law imposes additional per gallon taxes on gasoline and diesel fuel of $0.184 
and $0.244, respectively. 

II.   Vehicle license and registration fee.   The vehicle license fee (VLF) is a tax on the 

ownership of a registered vehicle in place of taxing vehicles as personal property.  Prior to 1935, 
vehicles in California were subject to property tax, but the Legislature decided to create a state-
wide system of vehicle taxation.  The taxable value of a vehicle is established by the purchase 

price of the vehicle, depreciated annually according to a statutory schedule.  Prior to recent 
budget actions, the state collected and allocated the VLF revenues, minus administrative costs, to 

cities and counties.  The VLF tax rate is currently 0.65% of the value of a vehicle, but 
historically (from 1948-2004) it was 2%.  In 1998, the Legislature cut the VLF rate from 2% to 
0.65 % of a vehicle's value.   The current vehicle registration fee is $43 per vehicle. 

Proposed Law 

Senate Bill 16 establishes the Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Program, and requires all 
revenues from the imposed taxes and fees to be deposited in the newly created Road 
Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA).  The bill specifies:  

I. The gasoline and diesel fuel excise tax rates.   

II. Vehicle license and registration fee increases.   
III. Allocation of revenues.   

I. Gasoline and diesel fuel excise tax rates.  SB 16 imposes an additional $0.10 per gallon 

excise tax on gasoline and $0.12 per gallon on diesel fuel.   

II. Vehicle license and registration fee increases.  SB 16 incrementally increases the vehicle 
license fee to a rate of 1%, over a 5-year period beginning July 1, 2015, with the revenues above 

the current 0.65% rate to be deposited in the General Fund and used for transportation general 
obligation bond debt service.  Additionally, the bill increases the annual vehicle registration by 
$35, and adds a new $100 annual vehicle registration fee applicable to zero-emission motor 

vehicles 

III. Allocation of revenues.  Two cents of the diesel fuel tax increase, resulting in about $50 
million annually, shall be deposited in the Trade Corridors Improvement Fund.  These funds are 

allocated by the CTC for infrastructure improvements on corridors that have a high volume of 
freight movement.  The remainder of the funds raised by SB 16 are allocated to both state and 
local projects.  5% percent is set aside for counties which pass local sales and use taxes for 

transportation purposes, but have not previously passed such taxes.  The remainder is split 50/50 
between state and local projects.  The local project funding is allocated pursuant to an existing 

statutory formula where 50% goes to cities based on population and 50% goes to counties based 
on a combination of the number of registered vehicles and the miles of county roads.  In order to 
receive these funds, the city and county must maintain their historic commitment to funding 

street and highway purposes by annually expending not less than the average of its expenditures 
for the 2009-10, 2010-11 and 2011-12 fiscal years.  The California Transportation Commission 

(CTC) shall annually evaluate each agency receiving funds to ensure that the funds are spent 
appropriately.   

SB 16 provides that loans made by the General Fund to the State Highway Account, the Motor 
Vehicle Fuel Account, the Highway Users Tax Account, and the Motor Vehicle Account must be 

Page 158



SB 16 (Beall) 4/15/15   Page 3 of 5 
 

repaid over three years.  The outstanding loan amounts are estimated at about $1 billion.  After 
the loans are repaid, they will be used to fund the road maintenance backlog by deposits in the 

RMRA.  To backfill the loss to the General Fund from the loan repayments, funds from the 
Budget Stabilization Account (BSA), will focus on paying down state debts and unfunded 
mandates.  The BSA balance at the beginning of FY2015-16 is estimated to be $1.6 billion. 

Additionally, the bill requires Caltrans, by March 1, 2016, to provide the CTC with a plan to 

increase the department’s efficiency by 30% over the prior three years.  The savings shall 
increase the funding for the road maintenance and repair work.   

As an urgency measure, SB 16 takes effect immediately and is repealed by its own terms as of 

July 1, 2020.  The bill makes legislative findings and declarations to support its purpose. 

State Revenue Impact 

According to the Board of Equalization, the increase in gasoline and diesel excise tax revenues is 
$1.789 billion in 2015-16, and $1.795 billion in 2016-17.  The associated increase in state and 

local sales and use tax revenues is $77 million in 2015-16, and $75 million in 2016-17. 

Comments 

1. Purpose of the bill.  According to the author, “This bill solves a crisis that threatens our 
deteriorating streets and highways.  California faces a $59 billion backlog in deferred 

maintenance that will grow by billions every year.  The state transportation system is critical to 
California's economic well-being, as it enables us to move goods, people, and ideas around the 
state.  SB 16 creates a much-needed, temporary funding plan to address the maintenance backlog 

of our aging systems.  Under this bill, everyone who uses the roads will share in paying for the 
cost of these essential repairs.   

SB 16 will provide more resources for the state to repair the infrastructure under its jurisdiction 

and it also distributes billions to the local level.  The author notes that the state has failed to keep 
pace with repairs due to several factors, including the diversion of road maintenance revenues for 
other uses and the decline of the gas tax revenue.   

This bill is the result of four Transportation Committee hearings that were held across the state 

that received testimony from local government officials, transportation experts, businesses, and 
the public.  The author believes that all agree that this is a problem that needs to be fixed now.” 

2. Need for the bill.  In his 2015 inaugural address, the Governor noted that the state faces a $59 

billion shortfall over the next 10 years to adequately maintain the existing state highway system.  
Local governments have estimated the funding shortfall for maintaining existing local streets, 

highways and bridges is $78 billion over the same time period.  SB 16 is estimated to increase 
excise tax revenues by almost $1.8 billion dollars a year, which will help, but not eliminate the 
funding gap that exists.  This will cost the average driver driving 12,000 miles per year about 

$180 per year or $0.50 per day.   

3. Floor stock tax. A floor stock tax equalizes the excise tax paid on those fuel gallons held in 
inventory by a supplier, wholesaler or retailer prior to the effective date of a tax increase and 

those gallons purchased after the tax increase.  Having a large fuel inventory before a tax rate 
increase takes effect can bring about a small windfall to a seller, who can raise the selling price 

Page 159



SB 16 (Beall) 4/15/15   Page 4 of 5 
 

of the fuel purchased prior to the increase and attribute the price increase to the tax rate increase. 
Since this bill contains a sizeable gasoline and diesel fuel excise tax increase, a floor stock tax 

increase should be considered for both tax laws.  However, BOE states a floor stock tax requires 
six month’s lead time to allow adequate time to notice the different parties in the supply chain 
that they must pay the one-time lump-sum tax increase on their fuel inventories.  The Committee 

may wish to consider adding a floor stock tax. 

4. Sales and use tax impact.  Existing Sales and Use Tax Law expressly includes within the 
definition of “gross receipts” and “sales price” the amount of any tax imposed by the state under 

the MVFTL.  Thus, an increase in gasoline tax results in an increase in sales and use tax 
revenues.  Although the fuel tax swap provides a state General Fund sales and use tax exemption 
on gasoline sales, a statewide base sales and use tax rate of 2.25% that is dedicated to local 

governments will continue to apply, as will higher tax rates in certain districts with voter-
approved district tax rates.   

5. Double-referral.  The Senate Rules Committee ordered a double-referral of SB 16 to the 

Senate Committee on Transportation and Housing, which considered the bills’ transportation 
funding provisions, and to the Senate Governance and Finance Committee, which will consider 

the bills’ tax provision.  The Senate Transportation & Housing Committee considered SB 16 at 
its hearing on April 29, and approved the bill on the vote of 6-1.   

6. Urgency clause.  As an urgency statute, SB 16 must be approved by 2/3 vote of each house of 
the Legislature.  Regular legislation takes effect on the January 1 following its passage, but 

urgency bills take effect as soon as they're passed, signed, and chaptered.  The Committee may 
wish to consider delaying the operative date to give the BOE time to implement the tax 

provisions of the bill.     

7. Related bills.   

 SB 321 (Beall) amends the method BOE uses to adjust the fuel tax swap rates.  The bill 
was approved by the Committee on April 15, 2015. 

 SB 433 (Berryhill) would require the Department of Finance, instead of the BOE, to 
determine the annual excise tax rate adjustment for gasoline and diesel fuel under the 

“fuel tax swap” provisions.  The bill was approved by the Committee on April 22, 2015.  

Support and Opposition (4/30/15) 

Support:  American Society of Civil Engineers; Associated General Contractors; California 
Alliance for Jobs; California Association of Councils of Governments; California Contract Cities 

Association; California State Association of Counties; California Infill Federation; City of 
Calexico; City of Cathedral City; City of Brisbane; City of Burbank; City of Clearlake; City of 
Downey; City of Gilroy; City of Hanford; City of Hayward; City of Hercules; City of Hughson; 

City of Lafayette; City of Lakeport; City of Los Altos; City of Livermore; City of Modesto; City 
of Montclair; City of Morgan Hill; City of Rancho Cucamonga; City of Rancho Mirage; City of 

Sacramento; City of San Jose; City of Santa Ana; City of Santa Clara; City of Santa Maria; City 
of Santa Rosa; City of Seaside; City of Soledad; City of Thousand Oaks; City of Watsonville; 
City of Whittier; CTM Construction; DeSilva Gates Construction; Granite Construction; League 

of California Cities; LIUNA Locals 777 & 792; Northern California Carpenters Regional 

Page 160



SB 16 (Beall) 4/15/15   Page 5 of 5 
 

Council; Santa Clara County Board of Supervisors; Town of Danville; Transportation California; 
United Contractors. 

 

Opposition:  Association of California Car Clubs; Howard Jarvis Tax Payers Association. 

-- END -- 

Page 161



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 162



 
 

 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150528\8.2_SR_Relinquishment\8.2_SR_Relinquishment.docx  

 

Memorandum  8.2 

 
DATE: May 21, 2015 

SUBJECT: State Route Relinquishment Proposal by Caltrans 

RECOMMENDATION: Receive information on the State Route Relinquishment Proposal  
by Caltrans and take a legislative position on SB 254. 

 

Summary  

State routes are key components of the regional and local transportation network. The 
California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) owns and operates the conventional 
state highways (state routes) in addition to the freeways in California. The California Streets 
and Highways Code Section 73 stipulates the requirements and the process for 
relinquishing a state route to a local jurisdiction.  

The state began a legislative process through a budget trailer bill to amend the existing 
legislation for relinquishment and to require Caltrans to identify the routes that do not support 
regional travel and identify routes from this list as candidates for relinquishment. 
Subsequently, the relinquishment was transitioned out of a budget bill and incorporated into 
Senate Bill 254 (see Attachment A). Caltrans has begun the process of identifying potential 
state routes for relinquishment. Caltrans District 4 (in the Bay Area) has provided a draft list of 
state routes identified for potential relinquishment in Alameda County.  

Alameda CTC has gathered information related to these state routes proposed for 
relinquishment in Alameda County to inform the jurisdictions and to facilitate discussion on 
what relinquishment of these routes entails, including assuming responsibility for the state 
routes and other implications of this proposal, and to identify next steps.  

Based upon discussions at the PPLC meeting on May 11, 2015 on this item, staff recommends 
an oppose unless amended position on SB 254, including 1) define state of good repair jointly 
by the local jurisdiction and Caltrans; 2) if relinquishment proceeds, Caltrans brings the facility 
to a state of good repair, as jointly defined in item 1; and 3) Caltrans will not start 
relinquishment proceedings unless specifically requested by a local jurisdiction. 

Discussion 

Alameda County’s highway system consists of 140 miles of freeways and 71 miles of 
conventional state routes. These state routes uniquely support travel by all modes. 
Caltrans currently operates and maintains these routes.  

Page 163



 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150528\8.2_SR_Relinquishment\8.2_SR_Relinquishment.docx  

 

The CA Streets and Highways Code Section 73 describes the authorized routes in the state 
highway system and includes provisions for relinquishment to local agencies of state 
routes that were deleted from the state highway system either through legislative 
enactment or through relocation. Existing law prohibits relinquishment of routes that were 
relocated until they were brought to state of good repair. 

Proposed draft relinquishment by Caltrans 

The administration has proposed an amendment to existing legislation on the state routes 
relinquishment stating that the routes on the state highway system that primarily support 
regional travel and do not facilitate interregional movement of people and goods are 
typically best managed by local or regional entities. In this regard, the proposal removes 
the clause for relinquishment of the routes deleted by legislative enactment. The proposal 
requires Caltrans to identify a list of potential routes that do not support regional travel by 
October 1, 2015 and to indicate which of those routes or segments are candidates for 
relinquishment, including the cost associated with maintaining or preserving these routes.  

The proposal also states that if and when a particular state route is determined to be 
relinquished, the department will give 90-day notification to the concerned local 
agency’s elected body. The local agency can protest, stating reasons including but not 
limited to citing the route to not be in a state of good repair, etc. However, the proposal 
does not require a state of good repair on these routes proposed for relinquishment by 
meeting the inter-regional travel criteria before Caltrans relinquishes them to local 
jurisdictions.  

Table 1 on the following page and Attachments B and C show the list of state 
routes/segments in Alameda County proposed for relinquishment. Out of 71 miles of state 
routes within Alameda County, Caltrans District 4 has identified 34.3 miles as potential 
routes for relinquishment. Two state route segments of 3.0 miles in total length, 1.0 mile of 
SR 61 (Webster Street) in Alameda and 2.0 miles of SR 238 in Hayward, have already been 
relinquished. Relinquishment is in progress for 7.3 miles of routes in Hayward and Fremont.  

The state routes (SRs) of interregional significance that Caltrans proposed to retain 
include: 

• SR 84 – between SR 238 and I-580 
• SR 262 – between I-880 and I-680 
• SR 260 – Posey and Webster Tubes 
• SR 61 – I-880 and Oakland Airport; Atlantic Avenue in Alameda and Posey and 

Webster Tubes 
• SR 92 (Foothill Boulevard) – between SR 238 (Mission) and I-580 

With the exception of the City of Berkeley that expressed interest in having Caltrans 
relinquish SR 13 (Ashby) in Berkeley, Caltrans District 4 indicated that no other local 
jurisdictions has contacted District 4 to express interest in relinquishment of a state route. If 

Page 164



 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150528\8.2_SR_Relinquishment\8.2_SR_Relinquishment.docx  

 

any jurisdictions are interested in relinquishment, it is important to understand the 
implications and responsibilities of taking over a state route. 

Table 1 Proposed Relinquishment of State Route Segments in Alameda County 

State 
Route 

Beginning 
Point Ending Point 

Length 
(miles) Jurisdiction 

Relinquishment Status/ 
Caltrans Interest 

13 SR 24 I-80 4.31 Berkeley 
Initial discussion held with Caltrans; 

interest expressed by local jurisdiction 

112 I-880 SR 185 (E-14th) 1.18 San Leandro 
High Caltrans interest; no recent 

inquiries made or no interest by locals 

61 Hegenberger 
Rd Webster St 

5.90 
Alameda 
Oakland 

High Caltrans interest; no recent 
inquiries made or no interest by locals 

77 I-880 SR 185 (E-14th) 0.35 Oakland High Caltrans interest; no recent 
inquiries made or no interest by locals 

185 A St Hayward City 
Limit 0.53 Hayward Relinquishment in process; initial 

agreements in place 

185 
Hayward 
City Limit 
(North) 

SR 77 9.56 

Alameda 
County 

 Oakland 
San Leandro 

High Caltrans interest; no recent 
inquiries made or no interest by locals 

84 I-880 SR 238 3.88 Fremont Relinquishment in process; initial 
agreements in place 

92 Santa Clara 
St Watkins St 1.37 Hayward Relinquishment in process; initial 

agreements in place 

123 I-580 Contra Costa 
County Line 5.18 

Berkeley 
Emeryville 
Oakland 

High Caltrans interest; no recent 
inquiries made or no interest by locals 

238 
I-680 

City Limit of 
Hayward/Union 

City 
7.81 Fremont 

Union City 
High Caltrans interest; no recent 

inquiries made or no interest by locals 

Industrial 
Parkway 

Hayward City 
Limit 1.51 Hayward Relinquishment in process; initial 

agreements in place 
Total Length of State Routes Proposed 
to Be Newly Relinquished 34.3  

Relinquishment in Progress 7.3  

Source: Caltrans District 4 (see Attachment C). 

Information and condition of the proposed routes for relinquishment 

To facilitate a better understating of the condition, performance, key infrastructure, and 
role these proposed relinquishments play in the countywide core transportation network, 
Alameda CTC has gathered information on the following: 

• Pavement Condition  
• Infrastructure  

Page 165



 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150528\8.2_SR_Relinquishment\8.2_SR_Relinquishment.docx  

 

o Bridges and overpasses 
o Transit routes 
o Bike routes 

• Operations  
o Traffic volume 
o Speed  

• Land Use Support 
o Surrounding land use 

• Safety 
o Collisions 

Information was requested from Caltrans on the cost of operations and maintenance, and 
utilities on these routes, among other data. Alameda CTC has not received this information.  

Summary of information on these proposed routes  

• Pavement Condition (Attachment D, Pavement Condition Map)  
o Overall pavement condition on these proposed state routes is mostly distressed or 

at-risk, based on the Caltrans assessment. 
 

• Infrastructure (Attachment E, Bridge and Overpass Condition Map; Attachment F, Transit 
Routes Map; and Attachment G, Bike Facilities Map) 

o Bridges and Overpasses: Six bridges over water bodies and one overpass over I-880 
exists on these proposed routes. In 2013, the Federal Highway Administration stated 
that the routes are in a structurally sufficient condition (as of 2012). 

o Transit Routes: The majority of the routes proposed for relinquishment have transit 
routes running along them. About 194 total directional miles of bus routes run along 
the proposed roads. The amenities on these roads are expected to be 
commensurate with the level of transit service on these routes. SR 123 (San Pablo) 
has 20 transit routes, the highest number, followed by SR 13 and SR 185 with the 
number of transit routes ranging between 16 and 20. 

o Bike facilities: There are 34 miles of bike facilities along these routes. Most of  
them are in South County, and some are along SR 61, SR 185 and SR 13 in the  
North County. 

 
• State Route Operations (Attachment H, Average Daily Traffic Volume Map; Attachment I, 

AM Peak-Period Level of Service Map; and Attachment J, PM Peak-Period Level of 
Service Map) 

o Traffic Volume: In 2013 the highest average daily traffic volume of 54,000 was 
observed on SR 92 at I-880. Average daily traffic volume was found to be high 
(over 30,000) where the state routes connect to the freeways, two state routes 
meet, and at Alameda’s Bay Farm bridge.  

Page 166



 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150528\8.2_SR_Relinquishment\8.2_SR_Relinquishment.docx  

 

o Level of Service (LOS): Generally, state route segment connections to freeways are 
performing at congested conditions (LOS E or F) during peak periods. SR 84 in 
Fremont in the morning and SR 123 (San Pablo) in the evening performed at LOS F.  

 
• Key Land Use Supported (Attachment K, Surrounding Land Use Map) 

o The proposed state routes serve generally an intense mix of residential and 
businesses (along SR 123 and SR 185) and some industrial areas where the state 
routes parallel the freeway (SR 123). Key interregional facility or activity centers 
located on these routes are Oakland International Airport along SR 61and Bay Fair 
Mall on SR 185. Additionally, San Leandro and Hayward downtowns are traversed 
by the state routes, and SR 238 in Fremont traverses through dense business areas. 

 
• Safety (Attachment L, Collisions Map) 

o Between 2008 and 2013, a total of 92 collisions that either included serious injuries 
or were fatal occurred on these routes as shown in Attachment L. Out of the 92 
collisions, 18 involved fatalities. Many collisions were along SR 185, and a few were 
on SR 123 and SR 61.  

Potential implications of the relinquishment 

The Caltrans proposal could have significant financial implications on local jurisdictions, since 
the proposed state route relinquishments have no funding committed to them. The only 
potential upside to this proposal is if any jurisdiction desires to do street rehabilitation or 
redesign to suit a planned land use context, and if the proposed design does not meet the 
Caltrans design guidelines (generally due to right-of-way constraints), then the jurisdiction 
doesn’t have to go through the Caltrans design-exemption process and can implement the 
planned design without any challenges.    

The key impacts to assuming the state routes are funding issues for operations and 
maintenance, and liabilities from high number of collisions. Having key infrastructure on these 
routes compound the maintenance need. While lack of information on utilities underground 
and intelligent transportation system infrastructure and coordination with adjacent 
jurisdictions on these state routes is an issue, available data shows that this proposal could 
have a significant financial impact on the jurisdictions.  

In addition, a majority of these routes are in a “distressed” state, indicating considerable 
funding is needed to bring the routes to a state of good repair. Also, some of these routes 
pass through more than one jurisdiction (SR 123 and SR 238), and some are potential freeway 
congestion-reliever routes (SR 92, SR 238, and SR 123). Rather than the local jurisdictions 
assuming control of state routes, it may be more important to keep these routes as a part of 
the state system, so they can be maintained as part of the higher level transportation system, 
which is beyond the capability of any one jurisdiction.    

Based upon discussions at the PPLC meeting on May 11, 2015 on this item, staff recommends 
an oppose unless amended position on SB 254, including 1) define state of good repair jointly 

Page 167



 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150528\8.2_SR_Relinquishment\8.2_SR_Relinquishment.docx  

 

by the local jurisdiction and Caltrans; 2) if relinquishment proceeds, Caltrans brings the facility 
to a state of good repair, as jointly defined in item 1; and 3) Caltrans will not start 
relinquishment proceedings unless specifically requested by a local jurisdiction. 

Fiscal Impact: There is no fiscal impact.  

Attachments 

A. Senate Bill 254 Amended on April 22, 2015 
B. Map of State Routes in Alameda County and Relinquishment Status 
C. Details of Proposed State Routes for Relinquishment from Caltrans 
D. State Route Segments Proposed for Relinquishment – Pavement Condition Map  
E. State Route Segments Proposed for Relinquishment – Bridge and Overpass  

Condition Map 
F. State Route Segments Proposed for Relinquishment – Transit Routes Map 
G. State Route Segments Proposed for Relinquishment – Bike Facilities Map 
H. State Route Segments Proposed for Relinquishment – Traffic Volume Map 
I. State Route Segments Proposed for Relinquishment – AM Peak-Period Level of  

Service Map 
J. State Route Segments Proposed for Relinquishment – PM Peak-Period Level of  

Service Map 
K. State Route Segments Proposed for Relinquishment – Surrounding Land Use Map  
L. State Route Segments Proposed for Relinquishment – Collisions Map  

Staff Contacts 

Tess Lengyel, Deputy Director of Planning and Policy 

Saravana Suthanthira, Senior Transportation Planner 

Daniel Wu, Assistant Transportation Planner 

Page 168

mailto:tlengyel@alamedactc.org
mailto:ssuthanthira@alamedactc.org


SB 254 Senate Bill - AMENDED

http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/pub/15-16/bill/sen/sb_0251-0300/sb_254_bill_20150422_amended_sen_v98.html[4/28/2015 11:25:35 AM]

BILL NUMBER: SB 254     AMENDED
        BILL TEXT

        AMENDED IN SENATE  APRIL 22, 2015

INTRODUCED BY   Senator  Leyva   Allen 

                        FEBRUARY 18, 2015

    An act to amend Section 30275 of the Public Utilities
Code, relating to transit districts.   An act to amend
Section 73 of the Streets and Highways Code, relating to state
highways. 

        LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL'S DIGEST

   SB 254, as amended,  Leyva   Allen  .
 Transit districts: ordinances.   State
highways: relinquishment.  
   Existing law gives the Department of Transportation full
possession and control of all state highways. Existing law describes
the authorized routes in the state highway system and establishes a
process for adoption of a highway on an authorized route by the
California Transportation Commission. Existing law also provides for
the commission to relinquish to local agencies state highway segments
that have been deleted from the state highway system by legislative
enactment or have been superseded by relocation, and in certain other
cases. Existing law prohibits relinquishments of those segments that
have been superseded by relocation until the department has placed
them in a state of good repair and maintenance, as defined, including
litter removal, weed control, and tree and shrub trimming. 

   This bill would revise and recast these provisions to delete the
requirement that the portion to be relinquished be deleted from the
state highway system by legislative enactment or superseded by
relocation. The bill would authorize the commission to relinquish to
a county or a city a portion of a state highway that is not part of
the interregional road system, if the department has entered into an
agreement with the county or city providing for the relinquishment
and the road has been placed in a state of good repair. The bill
would delete the requirement that good repair includes maintenance.
 
   The bill would require the department, not later than April 1,
2016, and biennially thereafter, to make a specified report to the
commission on which state highway routes or segments primarily serve
regional travel and do not primarily facilitate interregional
movement of people and goods. The bill would also authorize the
department to identify in the report which of those routes and
segments are the best candidates for relinquishment.  
   The bill would also authorize the commission to relinquish a
portion of a state highway to a county or city, if the department and
the county or city concerned have entered into an agreement
providing for the relinquishment of a portion of a state highway,
within the territorial limits of the county or city, that is not an
interstate highway and does not primarily facilitate the
interregional movement of people and goods, as determined in the
report. The bill would also require that the relinquishment of those
routes and segments is subject to certain conditions, including that
the department complete a specified cost-benefit analysis and hold a
public hearing on the proposed relinquishment.  
   The bill would require the commission to compile a list of all
portions of the state highway system relinquished in the previous 12
months and include this information in its annual report to the
Legislature, as specified.  
   Existing law provides for the creation of the Southern California
Rapid Transit District in and around the County of Los Angeles, with
specified powers and duties relative to providing public transit
service. Existing law requires an ordinance passed by the board of
directors of the district to be published once within 15 days after
passage in a newspaper of general circulation printed and published
in the district.  
   This bill would authorize the district to print and publish an
ordinance in a newspaper of general circulation more than once within
15 days after passage. The bill would require the district to also
make an ordinance available online on appropriate Internet Web sites
within 15 days after passage. By requiring a local agency to perform
an additional duty, this bill would impose a state-mandated local

8.2A

Page 169



SB 254 Senate Bill - AMENDED

http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/pub/15-16/bill/sen/sb_0251-0300/sb_254_bill_20150422_amended_sen_v98.html[4/28/2015 11:25:35 AM]

program.  
   The California Constitution requires the state to reimburse local
agencies and school districts for certain costs mandated by the
state. Statutory provisions establish procedures for making that
reimbursement.  
   This bill would provide that no reimbursement is required by this
act for a specified reason. 
   Vote: majority. Appropriation: no. Fiscal committee: yes.
State-mandated local program:  yes   no  .

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS:

   SECTION 1.    Section 73 of the   Streets
and Highways Code   is amended to read:  
   73.  The commission shall relinquish to any county or city any
portion of any state highway within the county or city that has been
deleted from the state highway system by legislative enactment, and
the relinquishment shall become effective upon the first day of the
next calendar or fiscal year, whichever first occurs after the
effective date of the legislative enactment. It may likewise
relinquish any portion of any state highway that has been superseded
by relocation. Whenever 
    73.    (a) The Legislature finds and declares both
of the following:  
   (1) Ownership and management of transportation infrastructure
should be placed at the most appropriate level of government.
Transportation infrastructure primarily serving regional travel and
not primarily facilitating interregional movement of people and goods
is typically best managed by local and regional government entities.
Transportation infrastructure, including interstate highways, that
is needed to facilitate interregional movement of people and goods is
typically best managed at the state government level.  
   (2) The Legislature intends for the department to identify routes,
and segments of routes, that may be appropriate candidates for
relinquishment and to streamline the process of approving
relinquishments where the department and the city or county have
entered into an agreement providing for the relinquishment. 

   (b) (1) The commission may relinquish to a county or city a
portion of a state highway within the county or city that is not part
of the interregional road system as defined in Section 164.3. 

   (2) The commission shall not relinquish a portion of a state
highway pursuant to paragraph (1) until the department has entered
into an agreement with the county or city providing for the
relinquishment and the department has placed the highway in a state
of good repair. This requirement shall not obligate the department
for widening, new construction, or major reconstruction. 
   (c)     Whenever  the department and
the county or city concerned have entered into an agreement providing
therefor, or the legislative body of the county or city has adopted
a resolution consenting thereto, the commission may relinquish, to
that county or city, any frontage or service road or outer highway,
within the territorial limits of the county or city,  which
has a right-of-way of at least 40 feet in width and which 
 that  has been constructed as a part of a state highway
project, but does not constitute a part of the main traveled roadway
thereof.  The 
    (d)     The  commission may also
relinquish, to a county or city within whose territorial limits it is
located, any nonmotorized transportation facility, as defined in
Section 887, constructed as part of a state highway project if the
county or city, as the case may be, has entered into an agreement
providing therefor or its legislative body has adopted a resolution
consenting thereto. 
   (e) (1) The commission may relinquish a portion of a state highway
to a county or city if the department and the county or city
concerned have entered into an agreement providing for the
relinquishment of that portion of that state highway, within the
territorial limits of the county or city, that is not an interstate
highway and does not primarily facilitate the interregional movement
of people and goods as determined in the report described in
subdivision (h). The department and the county or city shall agree
upon the condition or state of the relinquished portion of the state
highway at the time of its transfer from the department to the county
or city. The agreement shall specify any financial terms upon which
the department and county or city have agreed. The agreement shall
transfer all legal liability for the relinquished portion of the
state highway at the time of its transfer from the department to the
county or city.  

Page 170



SB 254 Senate Bill - AMENDED

http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/pub/15-16/bill/sen/sb_0251-0300/sb_254_bill_20150422_amended_sen_v98.html[4/28/2015 11:25:35 AM]

   (2) A relinquishment pursuant to paragraph (1) shall not occur
unless all of the following conditions are met:  
   (A) The commission has determined the relinquishment is in the
best interest of the state.  
   (B) The department completes a cost-benefit analysis on behalf of
the state, that may include a review of route continuity, market
value assessments of the proposed relinquishment and associated
parcels, a review of historical and estimated future maintenance
costs of the proposed relinquishment, or any other quantifiable
economic impacts.  
   (C) The commission holds a public hearing on the proposed
relinquishment.  
   (3) Upon relinquishment of a portion of a state highway under this
subdivision, the county or city accepting the relinquished former
portion of state highway shall maintain within its jurisdiction signs
directing motorists to the continuation of the remaining portions of
the state highway, if any, to the extent deemed necessary by the
department.  
   Relinquishment 
    (f)     Relinquishment  shall be by
resolution. A certified copy of the resolution shall be filed with
the board of supervisors or the city clerk, as the case may be. A
certified copy of the resolution shall also be recorded in the office
of the recorder of the county where the land is located and, upon
its recordation, all right, title, and interest of the state in and
to that portion of  any  state highway shall vest in
the county or city, as the case may be, and that highway or portion
thereof shall thereupon constitute a county road or city street, as
the case may be. 
   The 
    (g)     The  vesting of all right,
title, and interest of the state in and to portions of  any
 state highways heretofore relinquished by the commission,
in the county or city to which it was relinquished, is hereby
confirmed. 
   (h) Not later than April 1, 2016, and biennially thereafter, the
department shall report to the commission on which state highway
routes or segments primarily serve regional travel and do not
primarily facilitate interregional movement of people and goods. The
department may identify these routes or segments by one or more
categories and shall indicate which routes and segments are the best
candidates for relinquishment. The report shall include an aggregate
estimate of future maintenance and preservation costs of the
identified routes and segments. The commission, in consultation with
the department, shall develop guidelines for this report. 

    Prior 
    (i)     (1)     Prior
 to relinquishing  any   a  portion of
a state highway to a county or a  city, except where
required by legislative enactment,   c   ity
pursuant to subdivisions (b) to (d), inclusive,  the department
shall give 90 days' notice in writing of intention to relinquish to
the board of supervisors, or the city council, as the case may
 be.   be, of both the jurisdiction and location
of the portion of the state highway to be relinquished and the
jurisdictions immediately adjacent to the route where the state
highway continues.  Where the resolution of relinquishment
contains a recital as to the giving of the notice, adoption of the
resolution of relinquishment shall be conclusive evidence that the
notice has been given. 
   The commission shall not relinquish to any county or city any
portion of any state highway that has been superseded by relocation
until the department has placed the highway, as defined in Section
23, in a state of good repair. This requirement shall not obligate
the department for widening, new construction, or major
reconstruction, except as the commission may direct. A state of good
repair requires maintenance, as defined in Section 27, including
litter removal, weed control, and tree and shrub trimming to the time
of relinquishment.  
    Within 
    (2)     Within  the 90-day period, the
board of supervisors or the city council may protest in writing to
the commission stating the reasons therefor, including, but not
limited to, objections that the highway is not in a state of good
repair, or is not needed for public use and should be vacated by the
commission.  In the event that   If  the
commission does not comply with the requests of the protesting body,
it may proceed with the relinquishment only after a public hearing
given to the protesting body on 10 days' written notice. 
   (j) The commission shall compile a list of all portions of the

Page 171



SB 254 Senate Bill - AMENDED

http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/pub/15-16/bill/sen/sb_0251-0300/sb_254_bill_20150422_amended_sen_v98.html[4/28/2015 11:25:35 AM]

state highway system relinquished in the previous 12 months and
include this information in its annual report to the Legislature
pursuant to Section 14535 of the Government Code.  
  SECTION 1.    Section 30275 of the Public
Utilities Code is amended to read:
   30275.  An ordinance shall be signed by the president or the vice
president of the board and attested by the secretary. An ordinance
shall be published at least once within 15 days after passage in a
newspaper of general circulation printed and published in the
district and shall also be made available online on appropriate
Internet Web sites within 15 days after passage.  
  SEC. 2.    No reimbursement is required by this
act pursuant to Section 6 of Article XIII B of the California
Constitution because a local agency or school district has the
authority to levy service charges, fees, or assessments sufficient to
pay for the program or level of service mandated by this act, within
the meaning of Section 17556 of the Government Code. 
                                                   

                                                              

Page 172



State Routes in Alameda County 
Relinquishment Status 

5.2B
8.2B

Page 173



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 174



Details of Proposed State Routes for Relinquishment from Caltrans

District: Selection criteria:

Contact:  - Segment has, or will likely garner local support

Phone #:  - Segment location is a conventional highway within an urbanized area or incorporated city

Date: 10/16/2014  - Segment no longer serves interregional travel and acts more as a local arterial Other facilties

Route County Segment Description P.M. Begin P.M. End Center Line 

Mileage

Line Miles Local support likely (Y/N)  Issues District Justification / Comments

92 ALA

Santa Clara Street to Watkins Street; conventional city 

street serving local traffic. 6.78 8.15 1.268 6.478 Y

PSR completed in 2010. To be relinquished after completion of 238 

Corridor Improvement Project (LATIP*). Hayward received CTC 

authorization (August 2014) for use of LATIP funds to start project 

development work, with the understanding that City will accept 

relinquishment prior to start of construction (target construction 

2016).

185 ALA

A Street to Hayward city limits; conventional city 

street serving local traffic. 0.38 0.91 0.564 2.258 Y

PSR completed in 2010. To be relinquished after completion of 238 

Corridor Improvement Project (LATIP*). Hayward received CTC 

authorization (August 2014) for use of LATIP funds to start project 

development work, with the understanding that City will accept 

relinquishment prior to start of construction (target construction 

2016).

238 ALA

Industrial Pkwy to southern Hayward city limits 

(Blanche Street); conventional city street serving local 

traffic. 7.813 9.32 1.494 5.976 Y

Hayward received CTC authorization (August 2014) for use of LATIP 

funds to start project development work, with the understanding 

that City will accept relinquishment prior to start of construction 

(target construction 2016).

84 ALA

Jct 880 to Jct 238; conventional city street serving 

local traffic. 6.948 10.83 0 0 Y

In accordance to MOU with the City of Fremont, Caltrans 

recommends city move forward with no-cost relinquishment in 

advance of LATIP funding through legislative enactment.

13 ALA SR 24 to I-80; Conventional - Primarily Local Traffic R9.621 13.931 4.265 14.108

No official request, but initial 

interest expressed by Berkeley; 

Oakland unknown. Primarily serving as local street.

61 ALA

Hegenberger Rd in Oakland to Webster St in Alameda; 

Conventional city street facility serving Oakland 

Airport and local  traffic. 16.07 21.967 5.897 20.464 Local support unclear

SR 61 connection to the 

Oakland Airport is retained. Serving as local street.

77 ALA

I-880 to SR 185; urban conventional facility serving 

local traffic (Davis Street). 0.098 0.452 0.354 1.416 Local support unclear Serving as local street.

112 ALA

I-880 to SR 185; City street conventional facility 

serving local traffic; accesses Oakland Airport from I-

880 (aka Davis Street). 0.6 1.782 1.18 4.72 Local support unclear

Relinquish portion from 185 to 880; retain 112 for portion 

connecting I-880 to SR 61 (Airport access).

123 ALA

I-580 to I-80; conventional urban arterial serving local 

traffic. ALA 0.000/5.177 CC 0.000/2.198 7.366 31.908 Local support unclear

Potential conflict with ICM 

effort. Alameda CTC will 

require legal agreement for 

freeway system 

management.

185 ALA

Northern Hayward city limit to SR 77 in Oakland; 

urban arterial serving local traffic. 0.91 10.473 9.519 37.666 Local support unclear

Hayward portion of SR 185 

is relinquished as part of 

the LATIP*. Local street. AC Transit BRT to be implemented in the corridor.

238 ALA

I-680 to Hayward/Union City limits; conventional 

highway serving local and regional traffic. 0.00 7.813 7.813 31.252 Local support unclear

Local arterial; northern portion already relinquished. Pavement 

rehab completed late 2011.

Notes:

Relinquishment in process; initial agreements in place. 

Initial dicsussion held; some interest by locals.

High D4 interest; no recent inquiries made or no interest by locals. 

DIVISION OF TRANSPORTATION PLANNING
2014 State Highway Proposed Relinquishments of Urban Conventional Highways

4

Ina Gerhard

510.286.5598

* LATIP = Central Alameda County Local Alternative Transportation Improvement Program

Relinquishment in process; initial agreements in place. 

Initial dicsussion held; some interest by locals.

High D4 interest; no recent inquiries made or no interest by locals. 

4/28/2015

5.2C
8.2C

Page 175



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 176



State Routes Segments Proposed for Relinquishment 
Pavement Condition 

Source:  Caltrans Highway Pavement Condition Inventory 
Note: Some segments do not have directional pavement data 

2013 Pavement Condition 

8.2D

Page 177



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 178



State Routes Segments Proposed for Relinquishment 
Bridge and Overpass Condition 

Source:  Federal Highway Administration: National Bridge Inventory (1992-2012) 
Note: Structural sufficiency is defined by the National Bridge Inventory’s scoring 
criteria for bridge deck area 

• 6 bridges and 1 overpass 
• All bridges and overpass are 

structurally sufficient* 

• 6 Bridges and 1 Freeway Overpass 
• All Bridges and Overpass  are Structurally 

Sufficient 

2012 Bridge and 
Overpass Condition 

8.2E

Page 179



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 180



State Routes Segments Proposed for Relinquishment 
Transit Routes 

Sources: AC Transit and Union City Transit  

Bus routes along or intersecting 
proposed relinquishment routes: 67  
 
Bus route length along proposed 
relinquishment routes*: 194 miles 

8.2F

Page 181



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 182



State Routes Segments Proposed for Relinquishment 
Bike Facilities      

Bike facility length along proposed 
relinquishment routes: 34 miles 

Sources:  MTC Bike Mapper and Existing Facilities documented by Alameda CTC 
Note: Bike facility length are directional 

8.2G

Page 183



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 184



State Routes Segments Proposed for Relinquishment  
Traffic Volume              

Source:  Caltrans 2013 Traffic Census Database 
Note: Traffic Volume is bi-directional Annual Average Daily Traffic (AADT) for all 
vehicles 

2013 Traffic Volumes  
(Bi-directional) 

8.2H

Page 185



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 186



State Routes Segments Proposed for Relinquishment 
  AM Peak Period Level of Service (LOS) 

Source:  Alameda CTC 2014 LOS Monitoring Report 

Construction on Davis St/San 
Leandro Blvd in 2014 

2014 AM Peak 
Period LOS 

8.2I

Page 187



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 188



State Routes Segments Proposed for Relinquishment 
  PM Peak Period Level of Service (LOS) 

Source:  Alameda CTC 2014 LOS Monitoring Report 

2014 PM Peak 
Period LOS 

8.2J

Page 189



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 190



State Routes Segments Proposed for Relinquishment 
Surrounding Land Use  

Source:  SCS General Plan Land Use 

8.2K

Page 191



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 192



State Routes Segments Proposed for Relinquishment 
Collisions                     

Source:  CHP Statewide Integrated Traffic Records System (SWITRS) 

Crashes Involving Fatality: 18 
Crashes Involving Severe Injuries: 74 

2008 - 2013 Fatal and 
Severe Injury Crashes 

8.2L

Page 193



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 194



 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150528\9.1_Investment_Policy\9.1_Investment_Policy_Staff_Report_5-
2015.docx 

 

 

Memorandum 9.1 

 

DATE: May 21, 2015 

SUBJECT: Investment Policy 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the Alameda CTC investment policy. 

 

Summary  

An update to the Alameda CTC investment policy is attached as a red line version to show 
the changes recommended since the Alameda CTC investment policy was adopted in April 
2014.  The only material change to the policy is to Section VIII. Authorized Investments where 
item 14 has been added which allows for the investment in:  

“United States dollar denominated senior unsecured unsubordinated obligations issued or 
unconditionally guaranteed by the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development, 
International Finance Corporation, or Inter-American Development Bank and eligible for 
purchase and sale within the United States.”   

These types of investments are frequently referred to as Supranationals.  Supranationals are 
international development institutions that provide financing, advisory services and other 
financial services to their member countries to achieve the overall goal of improving living 
standards through sustainable economic growth.  Investments in Supranationals is authorized 
for local agency funds per section 53601(q) of the California Government Code for up to 30 
percent of an agencies portfolio.  However, staff is recommending that the Alameda CTC’s 
policy be more restrictive and allow for investments in Supranationals for up to 10 percent of 
the Alameda CTC’s portfolio.  This investment option, as authorized in California Government 
Code, will allow for additional flexibility in the Alameda CTC’s portfolio when choosing high 
grade, secure investments. 

Background 

The proposed investment policy was developed in accordance with the California 
Government Code in order to define parameters and guide staff and investment advisors in 
managing Alameda CTC’s investment portfolio. The policy formalizes the framework for 
Alameda CTC’s investment activities that must be exercised to ensure effective and prudent 
fiscal and investment management of Alameda CTC’s funds.  The guidelines are intended to 
be broad enough to allow staff and the investment advisors to function properly within the 

Page 195



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150528\9.1_Investment_Policy\9.1_Investment_Policy_Staff_Report_5-
2015.docx 

 

 

parameters of responsibility and authority, yet specific enough to adequately safeguard the 
investment assets.  The primary objectives of the investment activities within the policy, in 
order of priority, are to safeguard Alameda CTC assets by mitigating credit and interest rate 
risk, provide adequate liquidity to meet all operating requirements of Alameda CTC, and 
attain a market rate of return on investments taking into account the investment risk 
constraints of safety and liquidity needs.  Through the proposed investment policy, the 
Commission appoints the Executive Director and the Director of Finance and Administration 
as Investment Officers who will be responsible for the investment program of the Alameda 
CTC and will act responsibly as custodians of the public trust. 

The policy requires the Investment Officers to design internal controls around investments that 
would prevent the loss of public funds from fraud, employee error, misrepresentation by third 
parties, unanticipated changes in financial markets or imprudent actions by employees and 
officers of the Alameda CTC.  It also allows the Investment Officers to periodically reset 
performance benchmarks to reflect changing investment objectives and constraints. 

Fiscal Impact 

There is no fiscal impact.  

Attachments 

A. Draft Alameda CTC Investment Policy May 2015 
 

Staff Contact  

Patricia Reavey, Director of Finance and Administration 

 

Page 196

mailto:preavey@alamedactc.org


Alameda CTC Investment Policy MayApril 20154 

Page 1 of 13 

 
Alameda County Transportation Commission 

 
Investment Policy 

MayApril 20154 
 
 

 
 
I. Introduction 
 The intent of the Investment Policy of the Alameda County Transportation Commission 

(Alameda CTC) is to define the parameters within which funds are to be managed.  The 
policy formalizes the framework for Alameda CTC’s investment activities that must be 
exercised to ensure effective and prudent fiscal and investment management of Alameda 
CTC’s funds.  The guidelines are intended to be broad enough to allow Alameda CTC’s 
Investment Officers (as defined below) to function properly within the parameters of 
responsibility and authority, yet specific enough to adequately safeguard the investment 
assets.   

 
II.  Governing Authority 
 The investment program shall be operated in conformance with federal, state, and other 

legal requirements, including the California Government Code. 
  
III.  Scope 
 This policy applies to activities of Alameda CTC with regard to investing the financial 

assets of all funds (except bond funds and retirement funds).  In addition, any funds held by 
trustees or fiscal agents are excluded from these rules; however, all such funds are subject 
to regulations established by the State of California.   

  
 Note that any excluded funds such as employee retirement funds, proceeds from certain 

bond issuances and Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) trust assets are covered by 
separate policies. 

  
IV. General Objectives 
 The primary objectives, in order of priority, of investment activities shall be: 
 

1. Safety 
Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment program.  Investments shall 
be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the preservation of capital in the overall 
portfolio.  The goal will be to mitigate credit and interest rate risk. 
 
 

9.1A

Page 197



Alameda CTC Investment Policy MayApril 20154 

Page 2 of 13 

 
2. Liquidity 
The investment portfolio shall remain sufficiently liquid to meet all operating requirements 
that may be reasonably anticipated. 
 
3. Return 
The investment portfolio shall be designed with the objective of attaining a market rate of 
return throughout budgetary and economic cycles, taking into account the investment risk 
contraints of safety and liquidity needs. 

 
V. Standard of Care 

1. Prudence 
The standard of prudence to be used by investment officials shall be the "prudent investor" 
standard (California Government Code Section 53600.3) and shall be applied in the context 
of managing an overall portfolio.  Investment Officers acting in accordance with written 
procedures and the investment policy and exercising due diligence shall be relieved of 
personal responsibility for an individual security's credit risk or market price changes, 
provided deviations from expectations are reported in a timely fashion and appropriate 
action is taken to control adverse developments. 

 
 "When investing, reinvesting, purchasing, acquiring, exchanging, selling, or 

managing public funds, a trustee shall act with care, skill, prudence, and diligence 
under the circumstances then prevailing, including, but not limited to, the general 
economic conditions and the anticipated needs of the agency, that a prudent person 
acting in a like capacity and familiarity with those matters would use in the conduct 
of funds of a like character and with like aims, to safeguard the principal and maintain 
the liquidity needs of the agency.  Within the limitations of this section and 
considering individual investments as part of an overall strategy, investments may be 
acquired as authorized by law." 

  
2. Delegation of Authority and Responsibilities 
Responsibilities of the Commission - The Commission, in its role as Alameda CTC’s 
governing body, will retain ultimate fiduciary responsibility for the portfolios.  They will 
receive quarterly reports for review, designate Investment Officers and annually review and 
adopt the investment policy. 
 
The Commission hereby designates the Executive Director and  the Director of Finance and 
Administration, as Treasurer, as the Investment Officers.     
 
Responsibilities of the Investment Officers - The Investment Officers are jointly 
responsible for the operation of the investment program.  The Investment Officers shall act 
in accordance with written procedures and internal controls for the operation of the 
investment program consistent with the Investment Policy.  All participants in the 

Page 198



Alameda CTC Investment Policy MayApril 20154 

Page 3 of 13 

investment process shall seek to act responsibly as custodians of the public trust.  No 
officer may engage in an investment transaction except as provided under the terms of this 
policy and supporting procedures.   
 
Responsibilities of the Investment Advisor - Alameda CTC may engage the services of one 
or more external investment advisors to assist in the management of the investment 
portfolio in a manner consistent with Alameda CTC’s objectives.  Investment advisors may 
be granted discretion to purchase and sell investment securities in accordance with this 
Investment Policy and the California Government Code and must be registered under the 
Investment Advisors Act of 1940 or be a bank, regulated by the Office of the Comptroller 
of the Currency (OCC) or Federal Reserve operating under the fiduciary exemption from 
the Security and Exchange Commission.  Any investment advisor shall be required to 
prepare and provide comprehensive reports on Alameda CTC’s investments on a monthly 
and quarterly basis, and as requested by Alameda CTC’s Investment Officers.  At no time 
shall the investment advisor maintain custody of Alameda CTC cash or assets.   
 
Responsibilities of the Custodian - A third party bank custodian shall hold Alameda CTC 
cash and assets under management by any investment advisor in the name of Alameda 
CTC.  The custodian shall receive direction from the investment advisor on settlement of 
investment transactions.   

 
VI. Selection of Financial Institutions and Broker/Dealers 
 Alameda CTC’s procedures are designed to encourage competitive bidding on transactions 

from an approved list of broker/dealers in order to provide for the best execution on 
transactions.   

 
 The Investment Officer, or the investment advisors, shall maintain a list of authorized 

broker/dealers and financial institutions that are approved for investment purposes.  This 
list will be developed after a process of due diligence confirming that the firms qualify 
under the Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15C3-1 (uniform net capital rule). 
Alameda CTC shall purchase securities only from authorized institutions or firms. 

 
 The Investment Officer, or the investment advisor, shall obtain competitive bid information 

on all purchases of investment instruments purchased on the secondary market.  A 
competitive bid can be executed through a bidding process involving at least three separate 
brokers/financial institutions or through the use of a nationally recognized trading platform. 

 
VII. Safekeeping and Custody 

1. Delivery vs.  Payment 
All trades of marketable securities will be executed on a delivery vs. payment (DVP) basis 
to ensure that securities are deposited in Alameda CTC’s safekeeping institution prior to 
the release of funds. 
 

Page 199



Alameda CTC Investment Policy MayApril 20154 

Page 4 of 13 

2.  Third-Party Safekeeping 
Securities will be held by an independent third-party safekeeping institution selected by 
Alameda CTC’s Investment Officers.  All securities will be evidenced by safekeeping 
receipts in Alameda CTC’s name.  The safekeeping institution shall annually provide a 
copy of its most recent report on internal controls – Service Organization Control Reports 
(formerly SAS 70) prepared in accordance with the Statement on Standards for Attestation 
Engagements (SSAE) No. 16 (effective June 15, 2011.) 
 
3.  Internal Controls  
The Investment Officers are responsible for establishing, maintaining and documenting an 
internal control structure designed to ensure that the assets of Alameda CTC are protected 
from loss, theft or misuse.  The controls shall be designed to prevent the loss of public 
funds arising from fraud, employee error, misrepresentation by third parties, unanticipated 
changes in financial markets, or imprudent actions by employees and officers of Alameda 
CTC. 

 
VIII.  Authorized Investments 

The following investments will be permitted by this policy and are those authorized in the 
California Government Code. 

 
1. United States Treasury notes, bonds, bills, or certificates of indebtedness, or those 

for which the faith and credit of the United States are pledged for the payment of 
principal and interest. 

 
a. Maximum maturity:  5 years 
b. Maximum percent of portfolio:  100% 

 
2. Federal agency or United States government-sponsored enterprise obligations, 

participations, or other instruments, including those issued by or fully guaranteed 
as to principal and interest by federal agencies or United States government-
sponsored enterprises. 

 
a. Maximum maturity:  5 years 
b. Maximum percent of portfolio:  100% 
c. Type:  Senior debt obligations 
d. Maximum per issuer:  35% 

 
3. Repurchase Agreements used solely as short-term investments. 
 

The following collateral restrictions will be observed:  Only U.S. Treasury 
securities or Federal Agency securities, as described in VIII 1 and 2 above, will be 
acceptable collateral.  All securities underlying Repurchase Agreements must be 
delivered to Alameda CTC's custodian bank versus payment or be handled under 

Page 200



Alameda CTC Investment Policy MayApril 20154 

Page 5 of 13 

a tri-party repurchase agreement.  The total of all collateral for each Repurchase 
Agreement must equal or exceed, on the basis of market value plus accrued 
interest, 102 percent of the total dollar value of the money invested by Alameda 
CTC for the term of the investment. Since the market value of the underlying 
securities is subject to daily market fluctuations, the investments in repurchase 
agreements shall be in compliance if the value of the underlying securities is 
brought back up to 102 percent no later than the next business day. For any 
Repurchase Agreement with a term of more than one day, the value of the 
underlying securities must be reviewed on a regular basis. 

 
 Market value must be calculated each time there is a substitution of collateral. 
 
 Alameda CTC or its trustee shall have a perfected first security interest under the 

Uniform Commercial Code in all securities subject to Repurchase Agreement. 
 
 Alameda CTC may enter into Repurchase Agreements with (1) primary dealers in 

U.S. Government securities who are eligible to transact business with, and who 
report to, the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, and (2) California and non-
California banking institutions having assets in excess of $25 billion and having 
debt rated in the highest short-term rating category as provided by a nationally 
recognized statistical rating organization. 

 
 Alameda CTC will enter into a Master Repurchase Agreement, substantially in 

the form approved by the Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association 
(SIFMA) and by Alameda CTC’s counsel, with each firm with which it enters 
into Repurchase Agreements. 

 
a. Maximum maturity:  90 days 
b. Maximum percent of portfolio:  20% 

 
4. Obligations of the State of California or any local agency within the state, 

including bonds payable solely out of revenues from a revenue-producing 
property owned, controlled or operated by the state or any local agency or by a 
department, board, agency or authority of the state or any local agency. 

 
a. Maximum maturity:  5 years 
b. Maximum percent of portfolio:  10% 
c. Minimum credit quality:  A (S&P); or A2 (Moody’s); or A (Fitch) 
d. Maximum per issuer:  5% 

 
5. Registered treasury notes or bonds of any of the other 49 states in addition to 

California, including bonds payable solely out of revenues from a revenue-

Page 201



Alameda CTC Investment Policy MayApril 20154 

Page 6 of 13 

producing property owned, controlled or operated by the state or by a department, 
board, agency or authority of any of the other 49 states, in addition to California. 
 
a. Maximum maturity:  5 years 
b. Maximum percent of portfolio:  10% 
c. Minimum credit quality:  A (S&P); or A2 (Moody’s): or A (Fitch) 
d. Maximum per issuer:  5% 
 

6. Bankers' Acceptances, otherwise known as bills of exchange or time drafts which 
are drawn on and accepted by a commercial bank. 

 
a. Maximum maturity: 180 days 
b. Maximum percent of portfolio: 40% 
c. Minimum credit quality:  A1 (S&P); or P1 (Moody’s); or F1 (Fitch) 
d. Maximum per issuer:  5% 

 
7. Commercial paper rated in the highest two short-term rating categories, as 

provided by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization.  The entity that 
issues the commercial paper shall meet all of the following conditions: (a) is 
organized and operating in the United States as a general corporation; (b) has total 
assets in excess of five hundred million dollars ($500,000,000); and (c) has debt 
other than commercial paper, if any, that is rated "A" or higher by a nationally 
recognized statistical-rating organization. 

 
a. Maximum maturity:  270 days 
b. Maximum percent of portfolio:  25% 
c. Minimum credit quality:  A1 (S&P); or P1 (Moody’s); or F1 (Fitch) 
d. Maximum per issuer:  5% 

 
8.  Medium-term notes, defined as all corporate and depository institution debt 

securities with a maximum remaining maturity of five years or less, issued by 
corporations organized and operating within the United States or by depository 
institutions licensed by the U.S. or any state and operating within the U.S.  
Medium-term corporate notes shall be rated a minimum of "A" or its equivalent 
by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. 

 
a. Maximum maturity:  5 years 
b. Maximum percent of portfolio:  30% 
c. Minimum credit quality:  A (S&P); or A2 (Moody’s); or A (Fitch) 
d. Maximum per issuer:  5% 

 
 

Page 202



Alameda CTC Investment Policy MayApril 20154 

Page 7 of 13 

9. FDIC insured or fully collateralized time certificates of deposit in financial 
institutions located in California. 

 
a. Maximum maturity:  1 year  
b. Maximum percent of portfolio:  10% 
c. Maximum per issuer:  5% 

 
10. Negotiable certificates of deposit or deposit notes issued by a nationally or state-

chartered bank, a savings association or a federal association, a state or federal 
credit union, or by a federally licensed or state-licensed branch of a foreign bank. 

 
a. Maximum maturity:  3 years 
b. Maximum percent of portfolio:  30% 
c. Minimum credit quality:  A (S&P); or A2 (Moody’s); or A (Fitch) 
d. Maximum per issuer:  5% 

 
11. State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 

 
Although LAIF may invest in securities not permitted in the Alameda CTC’s 
Investment Policy, such investments shall not exclude LAIF from the Alameda 
CTC’s list of eligible investments, provided that LAIF’s periodic reports allow the 
Investment Officer to adequately assess the risk inherent in LAIF’s portfolio.  
Funds invested in LAIF will follow LAIF policies and procedures.  
 
a. Maximum percent of portfolio:  as determined by LAIF 
 
The LAIF portfolio shall be reviewed annually in order to monitor its continuing 
suitability as an investment option for the Alameda CTC. 

 
12. The California Asset Management Program (CAMP) 
 

a. Maximum percent of portfolio:  5% 
 
The CAMP shall be reviewed annually in order to monitor its continuing 
suitability as an investment option for Alameda CTC.  Funds invested in CAMP 
will follow CAMP policies and procedures.  

 
13. Shares of beneficial interest issued by diversified management companies that are 

money market funds registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission 
under the Investment Company Act of 1940 (15 U.S.C. Sec. 80a-1, et seq.).  To 
be eligible for investment pursuant to this subdivision, these companies shall 
either:  (1) attain the highest ranking or the highest letter and numerical rating 
provided by not less than two nationally recognized statistical rating 

Page 203



Alameda CTC Investment Policy MayApril 20154 

Page 8 of 13 

organizations; or (2) retain an investment advisor registered or exempt from 
registration with the Securities and Exchange Commission with not less than five 
years experience managing money market mutual funds with assets under 
management in excess of five hundred million dollars ($500,000,000).  

 
a. Maximum percent of portfolio:  20% 
b. Maximum per Prime Money Market Fund:  5% 
c. Maximum per Government Money Market Fund: 10% 
d. Minimum credit qualityrating:  AAAm (S&P); or Aaa-mf (Moody’s); 

AAAmmf (Fitch) 
  

14. United States dollar denominated senior unsecured unsubordinated obligations issued 
or unconditionally guaranteed by the International Bank for Reconstruction and 
Development, International Finance Corporation, or Inter-American Development Bank 
and eligible for purchase and sale within the United States.  

 
a. Maximum maturity: 5 years 
b. Maximum percent of portfolio: 10% 
c. Minimum credit quality: AA (S&P); or Aa (Moody’s); or AA (Fitch) 

d.  
 
Important Notes: 
a) The percentage limitation for all categories of investments refers to the 

percentage in the overall Alameda CTC portfolio on the date the security or 
shares are purchased. 
 

b) If the credit rating of a security is downgraded below the minimum required 
rating level for a new investment of that security type subsequent to its purchase, 
the investment advisor shall promptly notify the Investment Officer.  The 
Investment Officer shall evaluate the downgrade on a case-by-case basis in order 
to determine if the security should be held or sold.  The Investment Officer will 
apply the general objectives of safety, liquidity, yield and legality to make the 
decision.   

 
IX. Ineligible Investments 

Any security type or structure not specifically approved by this policy is hereby specifically 
prohibited.  Security types which are thereby prohibited include, but are not limited to: 

 
1. “Complex” derivative structures such as range notes, dual index notes, inverse floaters, 

leveraged or de-leveraged floating-rate notes, or any other complex variable-rate or 
structured note; 

 

Page 204



Alameda CTC Investment Policy MayApril 20154 

Page 9 of 13 

2. Interest-only strips that are derived from a pool of mortgages, or any security that could 
result in zero interest accrual if held to maturity; 

 
3. Mortgage-backed pass-through securities; 
 
4. Other mortgage-backed securities; 
 
5. Collateralized mortgage obligations; and 
 
6. Asset-backed securities. 

 
 
 
X. Investment Parameters 

1. Credit Risk – Credit risk is the risk that a security or a portfolio will lose some or all of 
its value due to a real or perceived change in the ability of the issuer to repay its debt.  
The diversification requirements included in Section VIII are designed to mitigate 
credit risk.  Alameda CTC shall additionally mitigate credit risk by adopting the 
following diversification strategies: 

 
a. Avoiding overconcentration in any one issuer or business sector; 

 
b. Limiting investments in securities with higher credit risks;  

 
c. Investing in securities with varying maturities; and  

 
d. Maintaining a portion of the portfolio in a highly liquid investment such as 

LAIF 
   

2. Market Risk - Market risk is the risk that the portfolio will fluctuate due to changes in 
the general level of interest rates.  Alameda CTC recognizes that, over time, longer-
term portfolios have the potential to achieve higher returns.  On the other hand, longer-
term portfolios have higher volatility of return.  Alameda CTC shall mitigate market 
risk by providing adequate liquidity for short-term cash needs, and by making some 
longer-term investments only with funds that are not needed for current cash flow 
purposes.  Alameda CTC further recognizes that certain types of securities, including 
variable rate securities, securities with principal paydowns prior to maturity, and 
securities with embedded options, will affect the market risk profile of the portfolio 
differently in different interest rate environments.  Alameda CTC, therefore, adopts the 
following strategies to control and mitigate its exposure to market risk: 
 

Page 205



Alameda CTC Investment Policy MayApril 20154 

Page 10 of 13 

a. Alameda CTC shall maintain a minimum of three months of budgeted operating 
expenditures in short term investments to provide sufficient liquidity for 
expected disbursements; 

 
b. The maximum percent of callable securities in the portfolio shall be 25%; 

 
c. The maximum stated final maturity of individual securities in the portfolio shall 

be five years, except as otherwise stated in this policy; 
 

d. Liquidity funds will be held in LAIF or in money market instruments maturing 
within one year or less; 

 
e. Longer term/Core funds will be defined as the funds in excess of liquidity 

requirements. The investments in this portion of the porfolio will have 
maturities between 1 day and 5 years and will only be invested in higher quality 
and liquid securities; and 

 
f. The duration of the portfolio shall at all times be approximately equal to the 

duration of a Market Benchmark Index selected by Alameda CTC based on 
Alameda CTC’s investment objectives, constraints and risk tolerances, plus or 
minus 25%.  This increase in duration flexibility is necessary because of the 
very short-term benchmarks currently utilized on the portfolio due to capital 
project cashflow demands. 

 
3. Maximum percentages for a particular issuer or investment type may be exceeded at a 

point in time subsequent to the purchase of a particular issuer or investment type.  
Securities need not be liquidated to realign the portfolio; however, consideration 
should be given to this matter when future purchases are made to ensure that 
appropriate diversification is maintained. 

 
XI. Performance and Program Evaluation 

 The investment portfolio will be managed in accordance with the parameters specified 
within this policy.  The portfolio should obtain a market average rate of return during a 
market/economic environment of stable interest rates.  A series of appropriate benchmarks 
shall be established against which portfolio performance shall be compared on a regular 
basis.  The benchmarks shall be reflective of the actual securities being purchased and risks 
undertaken and the benchmarks shall have a similar weighted average maturity and credit 
profile commensurate with investment risk constraints and liquidity needs of Alameda 
CTC.    

 
Alameda CTC may periodically update the performance benchmarks to reflect current 
investment objectives and constraints and shall communicate such changes to the 
investment advisor.  

Page 206



Alameda CTC Investment Policy MayApril 20154 

Page 11 of 13 

 

Page 207



Alameda CTC Investment Policy MayApril 20154 

Page 12 of 13 

Appendix I 
 

AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS SUMMARY TABLE 
 

  PURCHASE MAXIMUM MINIMUM 
INVESTMENT % OF PORTFOLIO RESTRICTIONS MATURITY CREDIT QUALITY 

 Per Cal. 
Gov’t Code 

Alameda 
CTC Policy Alameda CTC Policy Per Cal. 

Gov’t Code 
Alameda CTC 

Policy 
Per Cal.  

Gov’t Code 
Alameda CTC 

Policy 
 
US. Treasury Notes, Bonds, Bills or 
Certificates of Indebtedness 
 

100% 100% None 5 years 5 years NA NA 

Federal or U.S. Sponsored Obligations 
fully guaranteed by Federal Agencies or 
U.S. Government Sponsored Enterprises 

100% 100% Max 35% per issuer 5 years 5 years NA Senior Debt 

Repurchase Agreements NA 20% 
Strict collateral 
requirements;  Master 
Repurchase Agreement  

1 year 90 days NA NA 

State of California and California Local 
Agency Bonds NA 10% Max 5% per issuer 5 years 5 years NA 

A (S&P) or A2 
(Moody’s) or A 

(Fitch) 

Bonds of any of the other 49 states in 
addition to California NA 10% Max 5% per issuer 5 years 5 years NA 

A (S&P) or A2 
(Moody’s) or A 

(Fitch) 

Bankers’ Acceptances 40% 40% Max 5% per issuer  180 days 180 days NA A1 or P1 or F1 

Page 208



Alameda CTC Investment Policy MayApril 20154 

Page 13 of 13 

  PURCHASE MAXIMUM MINIMUM 
INVESTMENT % OF PORTFOLIO RESTRICTIONS MATURITY CREDIT QUALITY 

 Per Cal. 
Gov’t Code 

Alameda 
CTC Policy Alameda CTC Policy Per Cal. 

Gov’t Code 
Alameda CTC 

Policy 
Per Cal.  

Gov’t Code 
Alameda CTC 

Policy 

Commercial paper of US corporations 
with total assets exceeding $500,000,000 25% 25% 

Max 5% of outstanding 
paper of any single issuer & 
max 5% of portfolio of any 
one issuer 

270 days 270 days A1 or P1 or F1 A1 or P1 or F1 

Medium Term Corporate Notes  of U.S. 
Corporations 30% 30% Max 5% per issuer Max 5 years 5 years A 

A (S&P) or A2 
(Moody’s) or A 

(Fitch) 

California Collateralized Time Deposits NA 10% Max 5% per issuer NA 1 year NA NA 

Negotiable Certificate of Deposits 30% 30% Max 5% per issuer 5 years 3 years NA 
A (S&P) or A2 
(Moody’s) or A 

(Fitch) 

State of California- Local Agency 
Investment Fund (LAIF) NA NA As limited by LAIF 

(currently $50 million) NA NA NA NA 

California Asset Management Program NA 5% NA NA NA NA NA 

Shares of Beneficial Interests (Money 
Market Funds)  20% 20% 

Max 5% per Prime fund, 
Max 10% per Government 
fund  

NA N/A AAA  

AAAm (S&P) 
or Aaa-mf 

(Moody’s) or 
AAAmmf 

(Fitch) 
Obligations issued or unconditionally 
guaranteed by the International Bank for 
Reconstruction and Development, 
International Finance Corporation, or 
Inter-American Development Bank 

30% 10% NA 5 years 5 years AA 
AA (S&P) or 
Aa (Moody’s) 
or AA (Fitch) 

 
 

Page 209



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 210



 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150528\9.2_FY2015-16_Draft_Budget\9.2_FY2015-
16_Budget_Staff_Report.docx 

 

 

Memorandum 9.2 

 
DATE: May 21, 2015 

SUBJECT: Alameda CTC Proposed Consolidated Budget for FY2015-16 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the Alameda CTC proposed consolidated budget for FY15-16 

 
Summary  

The Alameda County Transportation Commission’s (Alameda CTC) FY2015-16 Proposed 
Consolidated Budget demonstrates a sustainable, balanced budget utilizing projected 
revenues and fund balance to fund total expenditures.  A budget is considered balanced 
when (1) total revenues equal total expenditures, (2) total revenues are greater than total 
expenditures, or (3) total revenues plus fund balance are greater than total expenditures.  
The Alameda CTC budget should fit into this third category over the next few years, as the 
accumulation of Measure B, Vehicle Registration Fee (VRF) and Transportation Fund for 
Clean Air funds are utilized to fund capital projects and programs in Alameda County. 
 
The proposed budget has been prepared based on the modified accrual basis of 
accounting, which is consistent with the basis of accounting utilized to prepare our audited 
financial statements.  It has been segregated by fund type and includes an adjustment 
column to eliminate interagency revenues and expenditures on a consolidated basis.  The 
fund types are comprised of General Funds, Enterprise Fund, Special Revenue Funds, 
Exchange Fund, Debt Service Fund and Capital Project Funds.  The Enterprise Fund is a new 
fund set up to record operating activity once the I-580 Express Lanes become operational. 
 
The proposed budget contains projected revenues totaling $321.4 million of which sales tax 
revenues comprise $270.0 million, or 84 percent, and VRF revenues comprise $12.0 million, or 
4 percent.  In addition, the proposed budget also includes a projected FY2014-15 ending 
fund balance of $221.0 million for total available resources of $542.4 million.  The projected 
revenues are offset by $266.1 million in anticipated expenditures of which $72.8 million, or 27 
percent, are allocated for capital projects.  These revenue and expenditure totals constitute 
a net increase in fund balance of $55.4 million and a projected consolidated ending fund 
balance of $276.3 million.  The increase in fund balance is mostly due to increased receipts of 
sales tax funds related to Measure BB. 
 
Approval of the Proposed Capital Projects budgets is requested for the amounts found in the 
“Proposed FY2015-16 Capital Budget with Estimated Roll Over” column on each of the 

Page 211



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150528\9.2_FY2015-16_Draft_Budget\9.2_FY2015-
16_Budget_Staff_Report.docx 

 

 

capital budget sheets for the Congestion Management function, 2000 Measure B sales tax, 
1986 Measure B sales tax and 2014 Measure BB sales tax.  This column includes both the 
additional capital budget amount requested for FY2014-15 as well as an estimated roll over 
balance from FY2014-15.  The capital amount carried forward to the consolidated Alameda 
CTC Proposed Budget sheet does not include the roll forward balances because these 
amounts are still included in the projected roll forward fund balance from the FY2014-15 
adopted budget.  During the mid-year budget update process, the roll forward fund 
balance will be updated to actual based on the audited financial statements.  Therefore, 
the capital budget amount on the consolidated budget spreadsheet for the mid-year 
budget update will be for the full capital budget including both the actual roll forward 
balance from FY2014-15 and any additional requested capital budget for FY2015-16.  This 
methodology is required to ensure accurate and reliable fund balance information in 
Alameda CTC budgets. 
 
The proposed budget includes revenues and expenditures necessary to provide the 
following vital programs and planning projects for Alameda County: 
 

• Measure B and Measure BB Discretionary Grants and Direct Local Distribution 
Programs 

• Vehicle Registration Fee Programs 
• Transportation Fund for Clean Air Programs 
• Sustainable Communities Technical Assistance Program 
• Safe Routes to School (SR2S) and BikeMobile Programs 
• Student Transit Pass Program 
• Countywide Transit Plan and Transportation Plan Update 
• Integrated Arterial Corridor Strategy 
• Congestion Management Programs 
• Countywide Goods Movement Plan 
• Community Based Transportation Plan 
• Countywide Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan 
• Travel Demand Model Strategy 

 
In addition to the planning projects and programs listed above, the proposed budget also 
contains revenues and expenditures necessary to fund and deliver significant capital 
projects that expand access and improve mobility in Alameda County consistent with the 
FY2015-16 Comprehensive Investment Plan which will be considered next month by the 
Commission.  Some of the more significant projects included in the proposed budget are as 
follows: 
 

• BART Warm Springs Extension Project 
• I-680 Express Lanes Project 
• Route 92 Clawiter-Whitesell Interchange 
• Route 84 Expressway Project 

Page 212



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150528\9.2_FY2015-16_Draft_Budget\9.2_FY2015-
16_Budget_Staff_Report.docx 

 

 

• I-580 Corridor Improvements Project 
• Isabel Avenue – Route 84/I-580 Interchange Project 
• I-880 to Mission Boulevard East-West Connector Project 
• I-880 South Bound HOV Lane Project 
• I-80 Integrated Corridor Mobility Project 

 
The proposed budget allows for an additional inter-fund loan from the ACTA Capital Fund to 
the Alameda County Congestion Management Agency (ACCMA) General Fund of $5 
million, if and when necessary during FY2015-16, which would bring the total authorized loan 
amount to $15 million.  The loan program was adopted by the Commission in March 2011 to 
help cash flow the ACCMA Capital Projects Fund.   
 
Background 

The proposed budget for FY2015-16 focuses on the mission and core functions of the 
Alameda CTC and enable the Alameda CTC to plan, fund and deliver transportation 
programs and projects that expand access and improve mobility in Alameda County.  The 
proposed budget helps meet these goals by assigning available resources in the budget to 
formulate strategies and solutions for transportation opportunities and needs identified in 
planning processes; assigning the funding necessary to evaluate, prioritize, and finance 
programs and projects; and programming funds in order to deliver quality programs and 
projects in Alameda County on schedule and within budget. 
 
It is expected that current staffing levels and resources should be adequate to meet the 
needs for FY2015-16, although it will require all staff to be prudent of available funding 
throughout the year.  Unanticipated tasks may require staff to identify additional staffing 
and/or funding resources in order to meet demands outside of the scope of work 
included in the budget.   

Major Line Item Detail 
Sales Tax Revenues – Increase of $142.5 million, or 111.8 percent, over the FY2014-15 Revised 
Budget of $127.5 million to $270.0 million due to the implementation of the new Measure BB.   
 
Vehicle Registration Fee (VRF) Revenues – There is no change in this projection. 
 
Grant Revenues – Decrease of $50.2 million, or 68.9 percent, from the FY2014-15 Revised 
Budget to $22.7 million due to capital project roll forward balances accounted for in the 
budgeted fund balance rolled forward from FY2014-15.   
 
Salaries and Benefits – Increase of $0.4 million, or 12.4 percent, over the FY2014-15 Revised 
Budget of $3.5 million to $4.0 million.  The proposed budget for FY2015-16 provides funding for 
23 of the 26 approved Full Time Equivalent (FTE) positions in compliance with the approved 
salary and benefit structure.  This is an increase of one position over the FY2014-15 Revised 
budget as we prepare to administer Measure BB. 

Page 213



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150528\9.2_FY2015-16_Draft_Budget\9.2_FY2015-
16_Budget_Staff_Report.docx 

 

 

 
General Office Expenses – Increase of $0.1 million, or 1.4 percent, over the FY2014-15 Revised 
Budget of $7.4 million to $7.5 million due to debt service costs and scheduled upgrades to 
the information technology infrastructure. 
 
Other Administration – Increase of $0.6 million, or 25.2 percent, over the FY2014-15 Revised 
Budget of $2.3 million to $2.9 million mostly related to additional administration for 
professional services related to Measure BB. 
 
Operations – Increase of $1.2 million over the FY2014-15 Revised Budget of $0 related to the 
anticipated operations of the I-580 Express Lanes in fall 2015. 
  
Planning Expenditures – Decrease of $0.4 million, or 5.4 percent, from the FY2014-15 Revised 
Budget of $7.0 million to $6.6 million based on the specific planning projects that are 
expected to be completed in FY2015-16. 
 
Programs Expenditures – Increase of $79.5 million, or 72.6 percent, over the FY2014-15 Revised 
Budget of $109.5 million to $188.9 million mostly related to Measure BB Direct Local 
Distributions to Alameda County, cities within Alameda County and transit operators based 
on the calculations as described in the 2014 Transportation Expenditure Plan.   
 
Capital Projects Expenditures – Decrease of $178.0 million, or 76.6 percent, from the FY2014-
15 Revised Budget to $54.5 million due to the capital budget rolled from FY2014-15 included 
in the roll forward fund balance from the FY2014-15 Revised Budget.  
 
Limitation Ratios 
The 2000 Measure B Salary and Benefits Limitation ratio of 0.18 percent and the Administrative 
Cost Limitation ratio of 1.38 percent were calculated based on the proposed budgeted 
revenues and expenditures and were found to be in compliance with the 1.00 percent and 
4.50 percent limitation requirement, respectively, and the Measure BB Salary and Benefits 
Limitation ratio of 0.52 percent and the Administrative Cost Limitation ratio of 2.42 percent 
were calculated based on the proposed budgeted revenues and expenditures and were 
found to be in compliance with the 1.00 percent and 4.00 percent limitation requirement, 
respectively.   
 
Fiscal Impact 

The fiscal impact of the FY2015-16 Proposed Consolidated Budget would be to provide 
resources of $321.4 million and authorize expenditures of $266.1 million, with an overall 
increase in fund balance of $55.4 million for a projected ending fund balance of $276.3 
million. 
  

Page 214



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20150528\9.2_FY2015-16_Draft_Budget\9.2_FY2015-
16_Budget_Staff_Report.docx 

 

 

Attachments 

A. Alameda CTC FY2015-16 Proposed Consolidated Budget 
B. Congestion Management FY2015-16 Proposed Capital Projects Budget 
C. 2000 Measure B Sales Tax FY2015-16 Proposed Capital Projects Budget 
D. 2014 Measure BB Sales Tax FY2015-16 Proposed Capital Projects Budget 
E. 1986 Measure B Sales Tax FY2015-16 Proposed Capital Projects Budget 
F. 2000 Measure B and 2014 Measure BB Sales Tax FY2015-16 Proposed Budget 

Limitations Calculations 
 
Staff Contact  

Patricia Reavey, Director of Finance and Administration 
Seung Cho, Contracting, Administration and Fiscal Resource Manager 

Page 215

mailto:preavey@AlamedaCTC.org
mailto:scho@alamedactc.org


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 216



Alameda County Transportation Commission 
FY2015-16 Proposed Budget

Printed 4/29/2015

General 
Funds

Enterprise
Fund

Special
Revenue 

Funds 
Exchange 

Fund
Debt Service

Fund

Capital 
Project 
Funds

Inter-Agency 
Adjustments/
Eliminations Total 

Projected Beginning Fund Balance 27,048,215$        -$                        21,765,840$        5,003,160$          14,725,414$        152,417,815$      -$                        220,960,444$      

Revenues: -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
Sales Tax Revenues 11,475,000          -                          162,833,928        -                          -                          95,691,072          -                          270,000,000        
Investment Income 33,000                 -                          104,000               -                          23,000                 525,000               -                          685,000               
Member Agency Fees 1,394,819            -                          -                          -                          -                          -                      -                          1,394,819            
VRF Funds 108,108               -                          12,000,000          -                          -                          -                      (108,108)              12,000,000          
Toll Revenues -                          1,425,000            -                          -                          -                          -                      -                          1,425,000            
Violation Penalty Revenues -                          300,000               -                          -                          -                          -                      -                          300,000               
Other Revenues 133,946               800,507               2,016,957            10,935,179          -                          1,193,900            (2,144,974)           12,935,515          
Grants 12,914,765          557,250               310,259               -                          -                          27,672,825          (18,772,512)         22,682,588          

Total Revenues 26,059,638          3,082,757            177,265,144        10,935,179          23,000                 125,082,798        (21,025,594)         321,422,922        

Expenditures:
Administration

Salaries and Benefits 1,859,775            -                          -                          -                          -                          114,921               -                          1,974,696            
General Office Expenses 1,662,176            -                          3,000                   -                          5,701,350            187,063               (3,000)                 7,550,589            
Other Administration 2,648,733            -                          40,000                 -                          -                          226,877               -                          2,915,610            
Commission and Community Support 131,150               -                          28,250                 -                          -                          -                      (28,250)               131,150               
Contingency 188,000               -                          -                          -                          -                          12,000                 -                          200,000               

Operations
Salaries and Benefits -                          33,168                 -                          -                          -                          -                      -                          33,168                 
Project Management and Support -                          246,250               -                          -                          -                          -                      -                          246,250               
Operating Expenditures -                          2,305,464            -                          -                          -                          -                      (1,357,757)           947,707               

Planning
Salaries and Benefits 778,530               -                          -                          -                          -                          -                      -                          778,530               
Planning Management and Support 720,149               -                          -                          -                          -                          -                      -                          720,149               
Transportation Planning 6,983,589            -                          -                          -                          -                          -                      (1,774,102)           5,209,487            
Congestion Management Program 680,000               -                          -                          -                          -                          -                      -                          680,000               
Other Planning Projects -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                      -                          -                      

Programs
Salaries and Benefits 279,750               -                          741,627               40,758                 -                          -                      (181,271)              880,863               
Programs Management and Support 188,500               -                          1,836,360            5,000                   -                          -                      -                          2,029,860            
Safe Routes to School Programs 2,675,230            -                          -                          -                          -                          -                      (328,324)              2,346,906            
VRF Programming and Other Costs -                          -                          16,354,108          -                          -                          -                      (108,108)              16,246,000          
Measure B/BB Direct Local Distribution -                          -                          139,514,658        -                          -                          -                      -                          139,514,658        
Grant Awards -                          -                          12,179,201          -                          -                          -                      -                          12,179,201          
Other Programming 270,000               -                          5,605,233            10,889,421          -                          -                      (131,331)              16,633,323          

Capital Projects
Salaries and Benefits -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          412,908               (101,410)              311,497               
Project Management and Support -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          4,487,419            -                          4,487,419            
Capital Project Expenditures -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          67,337,358          (17,294,721)         50,042,637          

Indirect Cost Recovery/Allocation
Indirect Cost Recovery from Capital, Spec Rev & Exch Funds (282,682)              -                          -                          -                          -                          -                      282,682               -                      

Total Expenditures 18,782,900          2,584,882            176,302,436        10,935,179          5,701,350            72,778,545          (21,025,594)         266,059,698        

Net Change in Fund Balance 7,276,738            497,875               962,708               -                          (5,678,350)           52,304,253          -                          55,363,223          

Projected Ending Fund Balance 34,324,953$        497,875$             22,728,548$        5,003,160$          9,047,064$          204,722,068$      -$                        276,323,667$      

9.2A

Page 217



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 218



Congestion Management
Fiscal Year 2015-2016

Proposed Capital Project Budget

Printed 4/29/2015

(A) - (B) = (C) (D) (C) + (D) = (E)

Project Name Project #

 Estimated 
FY 2014-15
Rollover to
FY 2015-16 

 Proposed 
FY 2015-16

Capital Budget 

 Proposed 
FY 2015-16

Capital Budget
w/ Estimated 

Rollover 

Total 
Local 

Funding 
Sources

Total 
Regional
Funding 
Sources

Total 
State

Funding 
Sources

Total 
Federal
Funding 
Sources

I-580 San Leandro Soundwall/Landscape 774.0-1 138,289$                  (115,882)$                 22,407$                      $              16,288  $                        -  $                     (0)  $                6,119 
Grand MacArthur 702.0 1,481                        (481)                          1,000                                                  0                            -                            -                    1,000 
I-680 HOT Lane 710.0-5 4,104,165                 (1,065,420)                3,038,744                              2,728,429                            -                  11,078                299,238 
I-680 Northbound HOV / Express Lane 721.0 672,782                    8,327,218                  9,000,000                              6,000,000                            -             3,000,000                            - 
I-80 Gilman Interchange Improvements 765.0 621,723                    1,500,000                  2,121,723                              1,624,436                            -                            -                497,286 
I-580 PSR at 106th Eastbound Off-Ramp 735.0 -                               -                                -                                                           -                            -                            -                            - 
Smart Corridors Operation and Maintenance 945.0 1,188,664                 -                                1,188,664                              1,188,664                            -                            -                            - 
Smart Corridors Operation and Maintenance/Tri-Valley 945.1 -                               -                                -                                                           -                            -                            -                            - 
Caldecott Tunnel 716.0 1,278,900                 2,721,100                  4,000,000                              4,000,000                            -                            -                            - 
Center to Center 715.0 -                               -                                -                                                           -                            -                            -                            - 
I-880 North Safety & Op Improv 23rd&29th 717.0 4,476,975                 2,140                        4,479,115                              2,777,093             1,701,075                       947                           0 
I-580 Eastbound HOV Lane 720.0 2,000                        -                                2,000                                                   -                    2,000                            -                            - 
I-580 Enviromental Mitigation 720.3 197,196                    -                                197,196                                                -                197,196                            -                            - 
I-580 Eastbound Express (HOT) Lane 720.4 5,088,757                 1,936,159                  7,024,916                              4,681,954                438,669                904,292             1,000,000 
I-580 Eastbound Auxiliary (AUX) Lane 720.5 3,126,152                 1,942,246                  5,068,398                              4,537,978                530,420                            -                         (0)
I-580 Right of Way Preservation 723.0 128,419.94               -                                128,420                                    128,420                            -                         (0)                            - 
I-580 Westbound HOV Lane 724.0, 4-5 7,761,715                 (5,871,538)                1,890,177                              1,772,177                         (0)                118,000                           0 
I-580 Westbound HOT Lane 724.1 1,923,458                 11,552,504                13,475,962                          13,445,962                            -                  30,000                         (0)
Altamont Commuter Express Operations 725.0 0                              20,000                      20,000                                       20,000                            -                            -                            - 
Altamont Commuter Express 725.1 1,862,087                 451,935                     2,314,022                              1,862,087                            -                451,935                            - 
I-880 Southbound HOV Lane 730.0-2 5,185,826                 367,621                     5,553,447                              5,553,448                            -                            -                         (0)
I-880 Southbound HOV Lane Landscaping/Hardscaping 730.3 7,983                        646,550                     654,533                                               0                            -                            -                654,533 
Webster Street Smart Corridor 740.0-2 235,535                    (220,330)                   15,205                                         8,025                            -                            -                    7,180 
Marina Boulevard/I-880 PSR 750.0 222,037                    (222,036)                   0                                                          -                            -                            -                            - 
I-680/880 Cross Connector PSR 770.0 340,493                    -                                340,493                                    340,493                            -                            -                            - 
I-680 SB HOV Lane 772.0 3,920,649                 (67,315)                     3,853,334                                 143,226                            -             3,541,749                168,359 
Route 84 Widening Project - Pigeon Pass to Interstate 680 780.0 1,790,000                 610,000                     2,400,000                              2,400,000                            -                            -                            - 
I-80 Integrated Corridor Mobility 791.0-6 7,835,320                 -                                7,835,320                  228,087               -                          7,543,951            63,281                 
Project Management / Closeout 700.0 16,367                      100,000                     116,367                     116,367               -                          -                          -                          

52,126,974$             22,614,470$              74,741,444$              53,573,132$        2,869,361$          15,601,953$        2,696,997$          

Funding Sources

9.2B

Page 219



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 220



 2000 Measure B Sales Tax 
Fiscal Year 2015-2016

Proposed Capital Project Budget

Printed 4/29/2015

(A) - (B) = (C) (D) (C) + (D) = (E)

Project Name Project #

 Estimated 
FY 2014-15
Rollover to
FY 2015-16 

 Proposed 
FY 2015-16

Capital Budget 

 Proposed 
FY 2015-16

Capital Budget
w/ Estimated 

Rollover 

Total 
Local 

Funding 
Sources

Total 
Regional
Funding 
Sources

Total 
State

Funding 
Sources

Total 
Federal
Funding 
Sources

ACE Capital Improvements 601.0 2,384,599$                1,559,773$                3,944,372$                 $         3,944,372  $                        -  $                        -  $                        - 
BART Warm Springs Extension 602.0 -                                11,540,207                11,540,207                          11,540,207                            -                            -                            - 
BART Oakland Airport Connector 603.0 -                                -                                -                                                           -                            -                            -                            - 
Downtown Oakland Streetscape 604.0 3,782,700                  -                                3,782,700                              3,782,700                            -                            -                            - 
Telegraph Avenue Bus Rapid Transit 607.1 24,930                      469,200                     494,130                                    494,131                            -                            -                            - 
I-680 Express Lane 608.0-1 7,288,656                  3,427,218                  10,715,874                          10,715,874                            -                            -                            - 
Iron Horse Trail 609.0 1,000,000                  2,000,000                  3,000,000                              3,000,000                            -                            -                            - 
I-880/Broadway-Jackson Interchange 610.0 2,322,727                  -                                2,322,727                              2,322,727                            -                            -                            - 
I-580/Castro Valley Interchanges Improvements 612.0 0                               250,000                     250,000                                    250,000                            -                            -                            - 
Lewelling/East Lewelling 613.0 536,000                     (536,000)                   0                                                         0                            -                            -                            - 
I-580 Auxiliary Lanes 614.0 1,230                        -                                1,230                                           1,230                            -                            -                            - 
I-580 Auxiliary Lanes - Westbound Fallon to Tassajara 614.1 6,992                        888,450                     895,442                                    895,442                            -                            -                            - 
I-580 Auxiliary Lanes - Westbound Airway to Fallon 614.2 2,691,775                  (799,124)                   1,892,651                              1,892,651                            -                            -                            - 
I-580 Auxiliary Lanes - E/B El Charro to Airway 614.3 (7,797,014)                7,797,014                  (0)                                                         -                            -                            -                            - 
Rte 92/Clawiter-Whitesell Interchange 615.0 5,861,302                  6,000,000                  11,861,302                          11,861,302                            -                            -                            - 
Hesperian/Lewelling Widening 617.1 63,622                      -                                63,622                                       63,622                            -                            -                            - 
Westgate Extension 618.1 (0)                              178,652                     178,652                                    178,652                            -                            -                            - 
E. 14th/Hesperian/150th Improvements 619.0 1,753,271                  -                                1,753,271                              1,753,271                            -                            -                            - 
I-238 Widening 621.0 7,541,398                  (7,541,398)                (0)                                                         -                            -                            -                            - 
I-680/I-880 Cross Connector Study 622.0 336,063                     30,437                      366,500                                    366,499                            -                            -                            - 
Isabel - Route 84/I-580 Interchange 623.0 7,298,695                  -                                7,298,695                              7,298,695                            -                            -                            - 
Route 84 Expressway 624.0-3 18,227,547                9,650,000                  27,877,547                          27,877,546                            -                            -                            - 
Dumbarton Corridor 625.0 173,896                     -                                173,896                                    140,313                  33,583                            -                            - 
Dumbarton Corridor - Central Avenue Overpass 625.1 2,800,000                  -                                2,800,000                              2,800,000                            -                            -                            - 
I-580 Corridor Improvements 626.0 9,342,571                  2,400,000                  11,742,571                          11,742,571                            -                            -                            - 
I-80 Integrated Corridor Mobility 627.2 45,000                      -                                45,000                                       45,000                            -                            -                            - 
I-880 Corridor Improvements in Oakland and San Leandro 627.3 2,229,579                  20,000                      2,249,579                              2,249,579                            -                            -                            - 
CWTP/TEP Development 627.4 48,689                      -                                48,689                                       48,689                            -                            -                            - 
Studies at Congested Segments/Locations on CMP 627.5 176,172                     -                                176,172                                    176,172                            -                            -                            - 
Project Management / Closeout 600.0 1,545,771                  5,000,000                  6,545,771                  6,545,771            -                          -                          -                          

69,686,171$              42,334,429$              112,020,600$            111,987,016$      33,583$               -$                        -$                        

Funding Sources

9.2C

Page 221



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 222



 Measure BB Sales Tax
Fiscal Year 2015-2016

Proposed Capital Project Budget

Printed 4/29/2015

(A) - (B) = (C) (D) (C) + (D) = (E)

Project Name Project #

 Estimated 
FY 2014-15
Rollover to
FY 2015-16 

 Proposed 
FY 2015-16

Capital Budget 

 Proposed 
FY 2015-16

Capital Budget
w/ Estimated 

Rollover 

Total 
Local 

Funding 
Sources

Total 
Regional
Funding 
Sources

Total 
State

Funding 
Sources

Total 
Federal
Funding 
Sources

Telegraph Ave/East 14th/International Blvd Project 13.00 -$                             -$                              -$                               $                        -  $                        -  $                        -  $                        - 
Alameda to Fruitvale BART Rapid Bus 14.00 -                               75,000                      75,000                                       75,000                            -                            -                            - 
Grand/MacArthur BRT 15.00 -                               75,000                      75,000                                       75,000                            -                            -                            - 
College/Broadway Corridor Transit Priority 16.00 -                               75,000                      75,000                                       75,000                            -                            -                            - 
Irvington BART Station 17.00 -                               75,000                      75,000                                       75,000                            -                            -                            - 
Bay Fair Connector/BART METRO 18.00 -                               75,000                      75,000                                       75,000                            -                            -                            - 
BART Station Modernization and Capacity Program 19.00 -                               75,000                      75,000                                       75,000                            -                            -                            - 
BART to Livermore Extension, Phase 1 20.00 -                               -                                -                                                           -                            -                            -                            - 
Dumbarton Corridor Area Transportation Improvements 21.00 -                               75,000                      75,000                                       75,000                            -                            -                            - 
Union City Intermodal Station 22.00 -                               75,000                      75,000                                       75,000                            -                            -                            - 
Railroad Corridor Right of Way Preservation and Track Impr 23.00 -                               75,000                      75,000                                       75,000                            -                            -                            - 
Oakland Broadway Corridor Transit 24.00 -                               75,000                      75,000                                       75,000                            -                            -                            - 
Capitol Corridor Service Expansion 25.00 -                               75,000                      75,000                                       75,000                            -                            -                            - 
Congestion Relief, Local Bridge Seismic Safety 26.00 -                               1,250,000                  1,250,000                              1,250,000                            -                            -                            - 
Countywide Freight Corridors 27.00 -                               200,000                     200,000                                    200,000                            -                            -                            - 
I-80 Gilman Street Interchange Improvements 29.00 -                               1,500,000                  1,500,000                              1,500,000                            -                            -                            - 
I-80 Ashby Interchange Improvements 30.00 -                               75,000                      75,000                                       75,000                            -                            -                            - 
SR-84/I-680 Interchange and SR-84 Widening 31.00 -                               3,950,000                  3,950,000                              3,950,000                            -                            -                            - 
SR-84 Expressway Widening (Pigeon Pass to Jack London) 32.00 -                               -                                -                                                           -                            -                            -                            - 
I-580/I-680 Interchange Improvements 33.00 -                               75,000                      75,000                                       75,000                            -                            -                            - 
I-580 Local Interchange Improvement Program 34.00 -                               250,000                     250,000                                    250,000                            -                            -                            - 
I-680 HOT/HOV Lane from SR-237 to Alcosta 35.00 -                               2,000,000                  2,000,000                              2,000,000                            -                            -                            - 
I-880 NB HOV/HOT Extension from A Street to Hegenberge 36.00 -                               75,000                      75,000                                       75,000                            -                            -                            - 
I-880 Broadway/Jackson Multimodal Transportation and Circ  37.00 -                               -                                -                                                           -                            -                            -                            - 
I-880 Whipple Road/Industrial Parkway Southwest Interchan  38.00 -                               75,000                      75,000                                       75,000                            -                            -                            - 
I-880 Industrial Parkway Interchange Improvements 39.00 -                               75,000                      75,000                                       75,000                            -                            -                            - 
I-880 Local Access and Safety Improvements 40.00 -                               250,000                     250,000                                    250,000                            -                            -                            - 
Gap Closure on Three Major Trails 42.00 -                               550,000                     550,000                                    550,000                            -                            -                            - 
East Bay Greenway 42.01 -                               3,200,500                  3,200,500                              1,872,500                            -                            -             1,328,000 

-$                             14,350,500$              14,350,500$              13,022,500$        -$                        -$                        1,328,000$          

Funding Sources

9.2D

Page 223



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 224



 1986 Measure B Sales Tax
Fiscal Year 2015-2016

Proposed Capital Project Budget

Printed 4/29/2015

(A) - (B) = (C) (D) (C) + (D) = (E)

Project Name Project #

 Estimated 
FY 2014-15
Rollover to
FY 2015-16 

 Proposed 
FY 2015-16

Capital Budget 

 Proposed 
FY 2015-16

Capital Budget
w/ Estimated 

Rollover 

I-880 to Mission Blvd. Route 262 Interchange Reconstruction 501.0 497,631$                   497,631$                   
I-880 to Mission Blvd. and East-West Connector 505.0 22,340,570                22,340,570                
Route 238/Mission-Foothill-Jackson Corridor Improvement 506.0 7,132,273                  (7,132,273)                 -                                
I-580 Interchange Improvements Project in Castro Valley (for APN 612.0) 507.0 3,571,384                  3,571,384                  
Central Alameda County Freeway System Operational Analysis 508.0 402,963                     402,963                     
Castro Valley Local Area Traffic Circulation Improvement 509.0 1,981,941                  1,981,941                  
Project Closeout 500.0 79,442                       70,558                       150,000                     

36,006,203$              (7,061,715)$               28,944,489$              

9.2E

Page 225



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 226



Measure B Measure BB
Net Sales Tax 135,000,000$          135,000,000$          A
Investments & Other Income 5,347,266                 1,652,863                 B

   Funds Generated 140,347,266$          136,652,863$          C

Administrative Salaries & Benefits 245,634$                  696,983$                  D
Other Administration Costs 1,614,547                 2,572,612                 E
   Total Administration Costs 1,860,181$              3,269,595$              F

Gross Salaries & Benefits to Net Sales Tax 0.1820% 0.5163% = D/A

Gross Salaries & Benefits to Funds Generated 0.1750% 0.5100% = D/C

Total Administration Costs to Net Sales Tax 1.3779% 2.4219% = F/A

2000 Measure B and 2014 Measure BB Sales Tax
Fiscal Year 2015-2016

Proposed Budget Limitation Calculations 

9.2F

Page 227



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 228


	hyperlinked_Commission_Agenda_20150528
	Commission_Packet_20150528
	6.1_Combo
	6.2_Combo
	6.2_I580_HOV_EL_Update
	6.2A_I580EBHOVLaneStatusUpdate
	6.2B_I580WBHOVLaneProjectsStatusUpdate
	6.2C_I580EBHOTLaneProjectsStatusUpdate
	6.2D_I580WBHOTLaneProjectsStatusUpdate
	6.2E_I580ExpressLaneSystemIntegrationUpdate
	6.2F_I580CorridorProjects_LocationMap
	6.2G_ProjectLocationMap

	6.3_Combo
	6.3_I580EL_UpdateOn-BATA-ACTC-RCSCAgmt_20150423
	6.3A_ProjectLocationMap

	6.4_Combo
	6.4_I580EL_UpdateOn_HoursOfOperation_20150423
	6.4A_ProjectLocationMap

	6.5_Combo
	6.5_EnvironmentalDocReview
	6.5A_Attachment A_Oakland_CHO_FEIR

	6.6_Combo
	6.6_PerformanceReport
	DRAFT_AlaCTC_2014_Performance_Report_Executive-Summary_20150520a

	6.7_Combo
	6.7_Memo_Admin_Code_Amendments
	6.7A_Greyline_Admin_Code

	6.8_Combo
	6.8_Memo_2016STIP_Final
	6.8A_AlaCTC_STIP_Programming History
	6.8B_STIP2016_Development_Schedule-jpo
	6.8C_STIP2016_Principles_Rev

	6.9_Combo
	6.10_Combo
	6.11_Combo
	6.11_MBB_Staff_Report_Reso_Auth_ED_to_Examine_Records
	6.11A_Resolution15-017_FINAL
	A Resolution Authorizing the Examination of
	Transactions (Sales) and Use Tax Records


	6.12_Combo
	6.12_FY14-15_Q3_Investment_Report
	6.12A_FY14-15_Q3_Consolidated_Investment_Report
	3-31-15 Report

	6.12B_Portfolio_Review_for_Quarter_Ending_Mar_31_2015
	Alameda County Transportation Commission
	Portfolio Review for the Quarter Ending
	March 31, 2015
	Compliance with Investment Policy Statement
	For the quarter ending March 31, 2015, the Alameda CTC portfolio was in compliance with the adopted investment policy statement.
	Budget Impact
	Bond Proceeds Portfolios
	For the quarter ending March 31, 2015, the Alameda CTC Series 2014 Bonds Interest Fund and Project Fund portfolios were invested in compliance with the Bond Indenture dated February 1, 2014.

	6.12C_Fixed_Income_Portfolio_Mar_31_2015
	Fixed Income Portfolio-3.15
	1986MB-CDARS-Statement-2015_0331
	2000MB-CDARS-Statement-2015_0331


	6.13_Combo
	6.13_FY14-15_Q3_Financial Report
	6.13A-F_FY14-15_3rd_Qtr_Financial_Statement
	A - Consolidated GF
	B - Consolidated SRF
	C - Exchge
	D - Debt Svc
	E - Consolidated Cap Funds
	F - Limitations Calculations


	7.1_Combo
	7.2_Combo
	7.3_Combo
	8.1_Combo
	8.1_LegislativeUpdate
	8.1A_2015_Legislative_Platform_Table_20150105
	8.1_AttachB_SB16_Senate Governance And Finance_v

	8.2_Combo
	8.2_SR_Relinquishment
	Attachments_A-L
	A-Senate Bill 254 Amended on April 25 2015
	ca.gov
	SB 254 Senate Bill - AMENDED


	B-Map_of_State_Routes_in_Alameda_County_and_Relinquishment_Status
	Slide Number 1
	Alameda County Conventional Highway State Routes �Proposed Relinquishment Segments

	C-Details_of_Proposed_State_Routes_for_Relinquishment_from_Caltrans
	D-Pavement_Condition_Map
	E-Bridge_and_Overpass_Condition_Map
	F-Transit_Routes_Map
	G-Bike_Facilities_Map
	H-Traffic_Volume_Map
	I-AM_Peak_Period_Level_of_Service_Map
	J-PM_Peak_Period_Level_of_Service_Map
	K-Surrounding_Land_Use_Map
	L-Collisions_Map


	9.1_Combo
	9.1_Investment_Policy_Staff_Report_5-2015
	9.1_Attachment_A_ACTC_Investment_Policy_5-2015
	IV. General Objectives
	The primary objectives, in order of priority, of investment activities shall be:
	V. Standard of Care
	1. Credit Risk – Credit risk is the risk that a security or a portfolio will lose some or all of its value due to a real or perceived change in the ability of the issuer to repay its debt.  The diversification requirements included in Section VIII are...
	a. Avoiding overconcentration in any one issuer or business sector;
	b. Limiting investments in securities with higher credit risks;
	c. Investing in securities with varying maturities; and
	d. Maintaining a portion of the portfolio in a highly liquid investment such as LAIF

	XI. Performance and Program Evaluation


	9.2_Combo
	9.2_FY2015-16_Budget_Staff_Report
	9.2_AlaCTC_FY2015-16_Budget_for_Board
	ACTC ConBudget
	CMA_CapBudget
	ACTIA_CapBudget
	MBB_CapBudget
	ACTA_CapBudget 
	Limitations Calculations





<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice




